# So(Switch

## Solutions that shine



# SolSwitch Administrator Guide

(version 3.6.1)

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.

www.sunwire.ca

www.solswitch.ca



# **Table of Contents**

| Dashboard                          | 7  |
|------------------------------------|----|
| Phone System                       | 8  |
| 911 Information                    | 9  |
| API Digit Validation               | 9  |
| Caller ID Override                 | 11 |
| Caller ID Routing                  | 11 |
| DID Routing                        | 12 |
| Extensions                         | 13 |
| Extension Speed-Dial Settings      | 17 |
| Fax Switch                         | 20 |
| Fax to Email                       | 21 |
| Find-Me Follow-Me                  | 22 |
| Interactive Voice Response (IVR)   | 24 |
| Voice Detected IVR                 | 25 |
| Meet-Me Conference (Basic)         | 26 |
| Meet-Me Conference (Advanced)      | 29 |
| Meet-Me Conference (Feature Codes) |    |
| Miscellaneous Settings             |    |
| Music on Hold                      |    |
| Paging Groups                      |    |
| Parking Lots                       |    |
| Queues                             |    |
| Reason Codes                       | 40 |
| Busy Reason Codes                  | 40 |
| Call Reason Codes                  | 41 |
| Recording Backup                   | 42 |



## Solutions that shine

| Scheduled Routing                   |    |
|-------------------------------------|----|
| Scripts                             |    |
| SMS Management                      |    |
| Surveys                             |    |
| System Recordings                   |    |
| Time Rules                          |    |
| Virtual Extensions                  | 55 |
| Voicemail                           |    |
| Webchat                             |    |
| XMPP Presence                       | 62 |
| Call Features                       | 63 |
| Placing a Call                      | 63 |
| Receiving a Call                    | 63 |
| Call Forwarding                     | 63 |
| Recording a Call                    | 64 |
| Parking a Call                      | 64 |
| Do Not Disturb (DND)                | 64 |
| Roaming Extensions                  |    |
| Login/Logout of Queue               | 65 |
| Agent Ready/Not Ready               | 65 |
| Call Monitoring                     | 65 |
| Silent Mode                         |    |
| Coaching Mode                       |    |
| Barge-In Mode                       |    |
| Monitor Type: Single Call           |    |
| Monitor Type: Continuous Monitoring |    |
| Paging Groups                       | 67 |
| Anonymous Calling                   | 67 |
|                                     |    |



## Solutions that shine

| Call Transfer67                  |
|----------------------------------|
| Call Conference                  |
| Telephone Feature Codes          |
| Speed-Dial Keys70                |
| Voicemail70                      |
| Accessing the Voicemail70        |
| Types of Greetings               |
| Busy Greeting71                  |
| Unavailable Greeting72           |
| Temporary Greeting72             |
| Leaving a Message in a Mailbox72 |
| Logging Into your Mailbox        |
| The First Time You Log In        |
| Voicemail Menu Options74         |
| Main Menu74                      |
| Greetings74                      |
| Mailbox Options74                |
| During Message Playback74        |
| After Message Playback75         |
| Advanced Options75               |
| SolSwitch Connect75              |
| Accounts75                       |
| SolSwitch Connect Download79     |
| SolSwitch Connect Rosters79      |
| Reporting79                      |
| Call Detail Records              |
| Call Report Builder              |
| Current Calls                    |



## Solutions that shine

| Extension Time Report81                   |
|---|
| Live Agent Stats                          |
| Live Queue Stats                          |
| Live Stats Report                         |
| Multichannel Messages                     |
| Queue Agent Busy Report                   |
| Queue Alerts                              |
| Queue Call Breakdown                      |
| Queue Call Reason Report                  |
| Queue Callback Details                    |
| Queue Graphs                              |
| Queue Service Level Report                |
| Scheduled Reporting                       |
| SIP Ping Monitor Report90                 |
| SMS Log91                                 |
| Survey and IVR Reports92                  |
| Toll Report92                             |
| Usage Report93                            |
| Voicemail Usage Report93                  |
| Provisioning                              |
| Device Provisioning                       |
| Rebooting a phone through the SolSwitch97 |
| Provisioning a Mitel/Aastra IP Phone97    |
| Configuring the Phone97                   |
| Manually Rebooting a Mitel Phone97        |
| Provisioning a Polycom IP Phone           |
| Configuring the Phone                     |
| Manually Rebooting a Polycom Phone98      |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



## Solutions that shine

| Provisioning a Cisco SPA-122 ATA                   | 98 |
|--|----|
| Configuring the ATA                                | 98 |
| Manually Rebooting an ATA                          | 99 |
| Provisioning a Grandstream ATA                     | 99 |
| Configuring the ATA                                | 99 |
| Rebooting a Grandstream ATA via Web GUI or a Phone | 99 |
| Provisioning Other Devices                         | 00 |
| Directory Profiles                                 | 00 |
| Feature Profiles10                                 | 02 |
| SIP Accounts1                                      | 13 |
| Add-on Tools1                                      | 15 |
| Create Callback1                                   | 15 |
| Outbound Faxes1                                    | 15 |
| SolCast1   | 16 |
| Advanced Tools                                     | 20 |
| 911 Management12                                   | 20 |
| API Management12                                   | 20 |
| Backup & Restore12                                 | 21 |
| Customer Management                                | 21 |
| Firewall12   | 22 |
| Guardian12   | 23 |
| Monitor and Debug12                                | 23 |
| Concurrent Calls12                                 | 24 |
| Customer Usage12                                   | 25 |
| Device Statistics                                  | 25 |
| Portal Activity12                                  | 25 |
| Resource Monitoring12                              | 25 |
| SIP and RTP Captures                               | 25 |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



## Solutions that shine

| SIP Connection Times     |
|--------------------------|
| System Current Calls     |
| System Logs126           |
| System Status            |
| Trunk Graph              |
| Trunk Missed Calls       |
| Trunk Monitoring127      |
| Verify CIDs              |
| Voicemail Transcripts128 |
| Network Management       |
| Reboot / Shutdown130     |
| Recording Backup130      |
| SMS Providers            |
| SNMP Configuration130    |
| System Settings          |
| System Updates           |
| Toll Billing             |
| Toll Management          |
| Toll Minute Groups       |
| Toll Plans               |
| Toll Rate Lists          |
| Toll Reporting134        |
| Trunks and Routing135    |
| DID Management           |
| Rate Centres             |
| Route Groups             |
| Trunk Management137      |
| Security138              |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



| Portal Permissions |     |
|--------------------|-----|
| Portal User Types  |     |
| Portal Users       |     |
| Notes              | 141 |
| Glossary           | 141 |

# Dashboard

This is the main screen, from here you can see Frequently Viewed pages, a Call Overview and a Portal Overview. You can also search for anything in the SolSwitch by using the search field in the bottom left. In the top right, you can view your account details or make the page fullscreen. If you have a Multi-Tenant Licence, select the customer from the search bar at the top left. You can also edit that customer's details by clicking on the edit button to the right of the customer search bar.

| readed in the second of the se   | witch        | SUNWIRE INC.   |             |                     |  |  |                  |
|--|--------------|--|-------------|---------------------|--|--|------------------|
| try more in the second  |              | Frequently Viewed                                    |             |                     |  |  |                  |
| and bind bind bind bind bind bind bind bi  | itch Connect | Call Detail Records                                  | Extensions  | Device Provisioning | Queues   | Accounts   | SIP Accounts     |
|  |              |  |             |                     |  |  |                  |
| et los<br>proprieto robord estimate.   |              |  |             |                     |  |  |                  |
| CUECE CALLS  |              |  |             |                     |  |  | Dashboard View   |
| OUE CALS       Image: Construction of the cons   |              | A glimpse into your call volumes.                    |             |                     |  |  | System Wide      |
| Portal Overview  Portal Overview Portal Overview  Portal Overview  Portal  |              |  |             |                     |  |  |                  |
| Portal Overview  |              | QUEUE CALLS  | 35          |                     |  |  |                  |
| Image: Construction of the construc  |              |  |             |                     |  |  | Concurrent Calls |
| Portal Overview<br>Lat 30 Gays<br>Lat 30 Gays<br>L                           |              | $\sim$   |             |                     |  | N N  |                  |
| Accessed Trady<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18<br>18   |              |  |             |                     | A n  | 14/I   |                  |
| Answerd Today<br>185<br>185<br>185<br>185<br>185<br>185<br>185<br>185  |              | Answer Hate  |             |                     | 11/1 N   |  |                  |
| 105     105       105     100        105     100       105   <   |              |  | 15          |                     | 1410 A.I   |  |                  |
| Proteil Overview  Portal Overview Portal Ove   |              |  |             |                     |  |  |                  |
| Description     Description       0 420     0 0000       0   |              |  | 10          |                     |  |  |                  |
| Portal Overview  |              |  | 5           |                     | / WWW  | N° w[  |                  |
| Becent Activity         Becent Activity           Users         Sameins Dagoort<br>states at states<br>Last 30 days         dashbaard php<br>states at states<br>Sameins Dagoort<br>States at states<br>Sameins Dagoort<br>Sameins Sagoort<br>Sameins  |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo                            | s<br>Inth o | ~                   |  |  |                  |
| Bacent Activity         Schwarz Bageort<br>schwarz Bageort<br>Schwar |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo                            | s<br>Inth o | 06:00               |  | 1500 1800  | 2100             |
| Becent Activity         Activity           User's         Activity         Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support         disthourd php<br>activity           User's         Activity         Survive Support<br>Survive Support         activity           Last 30 days         Activity         Survive Support<br>Survive Support         wristshe           Activity         Survive Support         wristshe           Activity         Survive Support         wristshe           Activity         Survive Support         wristshe           Activity         Survive Support         wristshe   |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo                            | s<br>Inth o | 06:00               |  | 15:00 18:00  | 2160             |
| Emiliar         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         diathbaard php           Users         Activity         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         cathbaard php           Last 30 days         Activity         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         in Hist php           Last 30 days         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         in Hist php           Activity         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         in Hist php           Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         Summer Support<br>size 4 is 1900 r         in Hist php   |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo                            | s<br>Inth o | 08:00               |  | 1500 1800  | 2100             |
| Emiliar         Survive Support<br>2024 415 60017         dashboard php           Users         Activity         Survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         cati-datal-records.php           Last 30 days         Activity         Survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         in relat.php           Last 30 days         Survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         in relat.php           Activity         Survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         in relat.php           Survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         survive Support<br>2024 415 6001         in survive Support<br>2024 415 6001   |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo<br>2845 842                | s<br>Inth o | 0800                |  | 1500 1800  | 2100             |
| Users     Activity     Summe Support     dashbaard.php       Last 30 days     Activity     Summe Support     sambaland.php       Last 30 days     Last 30 days     Summe Support     sambaland.php   |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo<br>2845 842                | s<br>Inth o | 0800                | 0800 1200  | 1500 1500  | 2160             |
| Summer Support         call-detail records php           Users         Activity         Summer Support         In-relat.php           Last 30 days         Last 30 days         Summer Support         In-relat.php           Lost 30 days         Last 30 days         Summer Support         In-relat.php           Lost 30 days         Summer Support         extensions-list.php           Description         Summer Support         extensions-list.php   |              | 185<br>This Month Last Mo<br>2845 842                | seth 0 0300 |                     | 0800 1200  | 1500 1800  | 2100             |
| Users Activity Burnet Buport In-Instance<br>Last 30 days Last 30 days Subscription Activity Burnet Subscri  |              | 185<br>This Month<br>2845 Bet<br>Portal Overview     | ann 0 0.000 |                     | 0000 1200<br>Recent Activity   |  | 2100             |
| Leat 30 days 2024 41 tricks?<br>Survey Support extension-45 gbp<br>2024 41 tricks?<br>Survey Support extension-45 gbp<br>2024 41 tricks?<br>Survey Support   |              | 185<br>This Month<br>2845 Bet<br>Portal Overview     | enn 0 0300  |                     | 99-00 12:00<br>Recent Activity<br>Survive Support<br>Texture 19:001  | dashboard php  | 2160 0           |
| Lani Jo unyo Sucori e eterologia - de La Sucori - Sucori - de La S   |              | 185<br>This steen<br>2845<br>Portal Overview         |             |                     | Becent Activity Burnets Support States 4 19 1947 Burnets Support Table 4 19 1947   | dashboard phy<br>call-detal-records php  | 2100 (           |
| V V Drawley Subout dram-get tub  |              | 185<br>This Koem<br>2845<br>Portal Overview<br>Users | eth 0 0200  | E                   | Recent Activity Barnete Support Samete Support  | dashboard phy<br>call-detal-records php  | 2100 (           |
| 2024-04-15 1504-56   |              | 185<br>This Koem<br>2845<br>Portal Overview<br>Users | eth 0 0200  | E                   | Becert Activity Burnite Support Survive Survive Support Survive Support Surviv | dashboard php<br>call-detal-records php<br>br-fatt php                         | 2100             |
|  |              | 185<br>This Koem<br>2845<br>Portal Overview<br>Users | eth 0 0200  | E                   | Recent Activity<br>Books Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support<br>Survive Support  | dashboard php<br>cail-detail-records php<br>Ivr-last php<br>extension-tail php | 2102             |

**Frequently Viewed:** This will show all the pages on the SolSwitch that have been viewed the most with the most popular pages starting from the left.

**Call Overview:** This will show the total amount of concurrent calls on the entire system or a specific customer. It also shows the answer rate of queue calls and the total number of queue calls answered.



**Portal Overview:** This will show how many user accounts have logged into the SolSwitch and for each action taken by a user it is recorded as an activity.

To navigate the SolSwitch you'll use the categories that are on the left side of the page. Selecting a category will expand the list of options available.

| S          | o(Switch          |   |
|------------|-------------------|---|
| പ്         | Dashboard         |   |
| Ľ          | Phone System      | > |
|            | SolSwitch Connect | > |
| .1         | Reporting         | > |
| Ж          | Provisioning      | > |
| <b>.</b>   | Add-on Tools      | > |
| $\Diamond$ | Advanced Tools    | > |
| 8          | Security          | > |
| P          | Notes             |   |

## **Phone System**

The Phone System section is where the majority of the PBX and phone features are configured.

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



#### 911 Information

This section should only be used when 911 Provider Configuration has been setup under Advanced Tools. Every DID configured will be displayed here with the ability to create, edit and delete that DIDs 911 record. The records are instantly synched with the 911 provider via their API. This information is used when an extension dials 911. The 911 call taker will see the information attached to their CID number or E911 CID number if one is specified.

#### **API Digit Validation**

API Digit Validation (DV) is similar to an IVR except that the location that the call is routed to is determined by an external API.

For example, a user calls into the DV and is asked to enter their telephone number. The digits entered by the caller are sent to an external API for validation. The call is then routed to the desired location based on the response from the API.

The fields to configure a DV are as follows:

- Name: Enter a name to describe the function of this DV.
- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your DV.
- **System Recording:** Select the pre-recorded System Recording you would like to use when a user enters the DV. See the System Recording section for more details on how to setup a System Recording.
- Digit Length (Min Max): You may pre-validate the digits entered based on the length. For example, a valid phone number would be 10 to 11 digits. Therefore, for a phone number, in this section, you would enter "10 11". Any other digit length entered will be rejected and the user will be asked to try again until "Retry Attempts" is reached.
- URL of API Command: This is the URL that the SolSwitch will call in order to validate the digits. This URL must be prefixed by http:// or https://. The method used to call the API is POST. The following variables will be sent:
  - Extension Number Extension number of the DV
  - $\circ$  CDRCallID CDR Call ID can be used to obtain additional information about the call
  - o CIDNum Caller ID number of the caller
  - CIDName Caller ID name of the caller
  - $\circ$   $\hfill \hfill \hf$
  - $\circ$   $\;$  Digits Digits that were entered which require validation



- **API Failure Alert Email:** If the API does not respond, or does not provide a valid response, send an alert to this email address. You may enter multiple email addresses by separating them with commas. See the "API Responses" section below to understand how the API should respond.
- **Retry Attempts:** If the user does not enter the correct digit length, this option specifies how many times to retry. This option is also used to specify how many times to retry the API if it does not respond.
- **Default Destination:** Enter the location where the call should be sent if the API did not respond correctly, or when the response does not match specified responses. See "API responses" below for more information.

**API Responses:** Once a DV is saved, a Behaviour section will appear on the right side. Use this to configure how to handle API responses.

The external API should be programmed to respond with a single word in clear text. In the Response section, you would enter all the possible words and specify the location to route each word.

For example, if we wanted to validate a phone number, we may have two responses. The first response may be "SUCCESS" which would route to the Main IVR. The second response may be "FAIL" which would route to another DV indicating that the user entered an invalid number.

| git Validation Details  |   |   | Behaviour           |                                      |   |   |
|---|---|---|---------------------|--------------------------------------|---|---|
| Name<br>Validate Phone Number                                       |   |   | Response<br>FAIL    | Destination<br>DV: 104 (Invalid Phor | ~ | × |
| Extension Number<br>175   | System Recording<br>Generic Welcome           | Ŕ | Response<br>SUCCESS | Destination<br>IVR: 500 (Main IVR)   | ~ | × |
| Digit Length (Min)<br>10  | - Digit Length (Max)<br>11                    |   | Response            | Destination<br>None                  | ~ | + |
| URL of API Command<br>http://www.solswitch.com/api/pos <sup>-</sup> | API Failure Alert Email<br>support@sunwire.ca |   | S                   | ave Response Settings                |   |   |
| Retry Attempts v  | Default Destination<br>IVR: 8000 (Main)       | À |                     |                                      |   |   |

All calls sent to a DV are logged in a special DV Log table. The log may be queried by using the DV log API function. See Advanced Tools > API Management for more information about how to use the SolSwitch API.



#### Caller ID Override

The CID Override feature allows you to override incoming caller ID information on the system. The feature works by identifying the CID Number you would like to be modified on incoming calls and assigning a new name and number to that CID information. Anytime an incoming call of the CID Number is made on the system, the SolSwitch will automatically replace the Caller ID information when it gets to the phone.

In the following example, anytime the number 7055216777 calls into the SolSwitch, whichever phone is set to ring would display: 7055550000: OFFICE

| CID Number *<br>7055216777   |  |  |  |
|------------------------------|--|--|--|
| New CID Number<br>7055550000 |  |  |  |
| New CID Name<br>OFFICE       |  |  |  |
|                              |  |  |  |

set to ring would display: 7055550000: OFFICE

#### **Caller ID Routing**

Caller ID Routing allows you to route incoming calls based on the CID number or the rate centre when rate centres have been configured in the Advanced Tools section under Trunks and Routing.

Adding a CID Route: To add a CID route, click the 'Add CID Route' button.

- CID Route Type
  - $\circ$   $\;$  CID: Creates the routing based on the incoming CID number.
  - o Rate Centre: Routes the call based on the Rate Centre the call is coming from.
- CID Number/Rate Centre: If the type chosen is CID, then enter the 10-digit CID number you would like to match. If the type chosen is Rate Centre, select the rate centre you would like to match from the dropdown menu.



- Match DID: This dropdown menu will display all of the existing DIDs. If you want to route a call no
  matter what company DID was dialled, then set this option to 'None'. Selecting a specific DID will
  only route the call when that particular DID is called from the CID number/Rate Centre (whichever
  type is chosen).
- Destination: Select the location you would like the calls to be routed to.

**Blocking Calls:** To block incoming calls from a specific Caller ID or Prefix, enter the name or number and set the route to None.

| New CID Route 🔗                   |               |   | $\times$ |
|-----------------------------------|---------------|---|----------|
| Match On: 🧿 CID/Prefix            | Rate Center   |   |          |
| Caller ID or Prefix<br>7055216777 |               |   |          |
| Match DID<br>None                 |               |   | ~        |
| Destination<br>None               |               | ~ | Ŕ        |
|                                   | Save Settings | × | Close    |

#### **DID Routing**

This section allows you to route incoming calls for each of your DIDs. If you do not see the DID you would like to route, ensure it has been added under Advanced Tools  $\rightarrow$  Trunks and Routing  $\rightarrow$  DID Management.



To route a single DID, click on the 'Edit' button next to that particular DID or simply click on the DID. From there, choose where you would like that DID to be routed from the dropdown menu. Multiple DIDs can also have their routing modified by using the checkboxes to the left of the DID. Simply select any combination of DIDs and hit the 'Selected items' button followed by 'Edit Selected' to change the routing on all the selected DIDs.

#### **Extensions**

Extensions are numbers that can be dialled system wide to reach certain phones or other features of the phone system. The Extensions category of Phone System shows all of the extensions with SIP accounts that can be attached to devices. Extensions can be individually added using the 'Add Extension' button or they can be imported from a CSV file using the 'Import file. Once all the extensions have been created, an extension list can also be exported to CSV using the 'Export' button.

**Importing Extensions from CSV:** To mass import extensions, along with voicemail and SIP accounts. Simply download the CSV template from the Extension CSV Import page. Fill it out accordingly and upload it back to the system. Below is a list of each column of the CSV file and what information is held in the field.



 $\times$ 

| Import Ext | tensions |
|------------|----------|
|------------|----------|

| Choose File         | No file chosen   |
|---------------------|--|
|                     | ad the CSV template to fill out and upload back using the form above.                              |
| rieuse domino       | The Covitemplate to fin out and upload back using the form above.                                  |
| Note: The CSV file. | file <b>must</b> have the header line as this tool will always skip the first line in the uploaded |
| The CSV file ha     | s some requirements on it listed below:  |
| • Column A is re    | equired - Extension Number   |
|                     | equired - Extension Name   |
|                     | ptional - CID Name   |
|                     | ptional - CID Number   |
|                     | ptional - E911 CID Number<br>ptional - Directory Searchable (0 for NO, 1 for YES)                  |
|                     | iptional - Default NPA   |
|                     | ptional - Wrap Time (default: 0)   |
| Column I is op      | otional - Record Call (1 for Always, 2 for On Demand)(default: 2)                                  |
| • Column J is o     | ptional - Forward Time (default: 25)   |
|                     | ptional - Record Notify Email  |
|                     | ptional - Roaming Passcode   |
|                     | optional - VM Extension Number<br>optional - VM Forward Email                                      |
|                     | ptional - VM to Email Only (0 for NO, 1 for YES)(default: 0)                                       |
|                     | equired when M is filled   |
| • Column Q is o     | ptional - SIP Username.  |
| • Column R is o     | ptional - If Column Q is set and Column R isn't specified, a password will be auto-generated.      |
| Column S is o       | ptional - Extension Active (0 for NO, 1 for YES)(default: 1)                                       |
|                     |  |
|                     |  |
|                     | Upload X Close   |

**Exporting Extensions to CSV:** There is an option to export all existing extensions located on the list extensions page, which allows a user to import the CSV to another system or customer.

Additional information on what each of these fields does can be found below.

Note: The CSV file <u>must</u> have the header line. The tool will always skip the first line of the CSV file.

Adding Individual Extensions: Individual extensions can be added using the 'Add Extension' button. Below is a description of each field asked for on the Edit Extension page as well as a screenshot of what a completed extension may look like.



#### **Extension Details:**

- Extension Active: Choose whether or not the extension is active. If an extension is not active, it cannot be dialled or dial out.
- Extension Number: The number to dial in order to access the extension.
- Name: Enter the name of the extension. This name will be used to search the extensions through the directory.
- Caller ID Name: Enter the caller ID name that will be displayed on external calls.
- Caller ID Number: Enter the caller ID number that will be displayed on external calls.
- Display Incoming Caller ID: Specifies whether or not caller ID is displayed on incoming calls.
- Dial-by-Name Searchable: Enabling this will allow callers to find this extension when performing a search using the directory feature.
- Profile Image: Import an image for other Mitel phones to see when you call them internally.
- Forward All Calls: You can choose to forward all incoming calls to a specific internal location or any external number. This can also be done from the phone itself using the appropriate \* code.
- Forward Busy/DND/Out: Where to forward calls if the extension is busy, on Do Not Disturb or logged out.
- Forward No Answer: Where to forward calls when the extension is not answered.
- Forward On SIP Offline: Where to forward calls when the SIP account is offline.
- Time before forwarding: Specify the number of seconds before forwarding to the Forward No Answer location. One ring typically takes 5 seconds.
- Call Waiting: If enabled, this extension will be able to receive new calls while on an existing call.
- Record Calls: Can either be set to On Demand or Always. Always will record all calls on that extension whereas On Demand will require the user to press the 'Record' button or #1 during a call.
- Record Notify Email: If a call is recorded, a copy of the recording will be sent to the email address specified here.
- SIP Device: The device to attach this extension to. This will not always be required if an extension is set to be a roaming extension.
- Parking Lot Group: Select which Parking Lot Group this extension should use for Parking calls.

#### Advanced Options:

- Language: Default language to use when playing system messages for calls from this extension. An extension will show (en) or (fr) if the extension has selected English or French.
- Wrap time: After a call is hung up from this extension, no calls will ring this extension until the Wrap time has elapsed. Wrap time is specified in seconds.



- Privacy Enabled: If enabled, this extension cannot be monitored by extensions that have Call Monitoring turned on. Also, all recorded calls will not be made public in the Call Detail Records report; they will only be emailed to the address specified in the Record Notify Email field.
- Distinctive Ring Direct Calls: This allows the extension to ring differently if a direct call is received.
- E911 Caller ID Number: If 911 Information has been configured, all calls made to 911 will show the 911 provider the number specified in this field.
- CID Internal Override: Use this field to override caller ID numbers on internal calls. If this field is left blank, the extension number will be used for the caller ID number on internal calls.
- Make CID Private: Enabling this will cause calls placed from the extension to be private/anonymous.
- Always use Caller ID: By default, a route group can override caller ID. Enabling this option will ensure that the caller ID specified in this extension will always be displayed.
- Route Group: Specify the route group to use on this extension. Route Groups are setup under Trunks and Routing in the Advanced Tools menu.
- Default NPA: The default 3-digit area code. This area code will be prefixed on all 7-digit calls.
- LD Pass code: This pass code will be required to place any long-distance call. Password requirements are configured in Route Group settings. If no pass code is entered, this extension will have the ability to place long-distance calls.
- Join Message: You can select a System Recording from this list and callers will hear the sound upon reaching the extension.
- Time Rule: Select a specific time rule if this extension is only available during certain times. Time Rules are configured under the Phone System category.
- Closed Destination: If a time rule is set and its status is closed, calls will be sent to the location specified here.
- Route No Ans. Transfers: When this extension initiates a call transfer, the call will be routed to this location if the destination of the transfer is busy or does not answer. This option overrides the Forward Busy and Forward No Answer settings.
- Block Internal Calling will prevent the extension from calling any other internal extensions on the same customer.
- Paused Presence will show the extension as busy on other phones when paused.
- Roaming Pass Code: Entering a passcode in this field allows this extension to be a roaming extension with the ability to log in and out of that extension from any SIP device. If no pass code is entered, the extension must be logged in manually by specifying its SIP device.
- Can Monitor Calls: This option should only be enabled for managers and will allow this extension to monitor the calls of others. Single Call will monitor a call if one is active, then disconnect when



the call has ended. Continuous Monitoring will continue to monitor incoming calls until the user decides to stop monitoring.

#### 229 - Justin Allan 🔗

| Extension De                       | etails                              |                                |   | Speed Dial Settings   |
|------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|---|
| Active<br>Yes ~                    |                                     |                                |   | Use Global Profile<br>Staff Directory   |
| Ext. #<br>229                      | Name<br>Justin Allan                |                                |   | Manage Private Speed Dial List 🗸 🗸  |
| Caller ID Name<br>SUNWIRE          |                                     | Caller ID Number<br>7055216777 |   | SIP Device (SolSwitch)  |
| Display Incoming<br>Yes            | g Caller ID 🗸                       | Dial-by-Name Searchable<br>Yes | ~ | Name         00085D766260 - Justin Allan           SIP         162.33.175.81:34755 - OK (45 ms)   |
| Profile Image<br>Choose File       | No file chosen                      |                                |   | SIP         162.33.173.61.34735 - OK (45 IIIs)           SSC Desktop         207.38.48.9:10883 - OK (42 ms)           SSC Mobile         207.38.48.27:5060 - OK (12 ms) |
| Forward All Calls<br>Off (Default) | s <b>v</b>                          |                                |   | Device Provisioning   |
| Forward Busy/DI<br>Voicemail: 922  | ND/Out<br>29 (Justin Allan)         |                                | ŵ | 00085D766260 00085D766260   |
| Forward No Ans<br>Voicemail: 922   | <sup>wer</sup><br>29 (Justin Allan) | Time Before F<br>30 seconds    |   | Feature Profiles  |
| Forward On SIP<br>None             | Offline                             |                                | ŵ |   |
| Call Waiting<br>Enabled on Al      | I Calls                             |                                | ~ | Directory Profiles           Aastra         Staff Directory   |
| Record Calls<br>Always             | ~ Rec                               | ord Notify Email               |   |   |
| SIP Device<br>00085D76626          | 60 (Justin Allan)                   |                                | Ŕ |   |

#### **Extension Speed-Dial Settings**

Extensions -Dial Keys can be added and managed from your telephone set or through the portal. Speed dials can be from 1 - 999. All speed dials are preceded by '0'. Therefore, to call speed dial 1,



you would simply dial: 01. Below are instructions on setting your speed dial through the phone as well as through the web-portal.

#### Speed Dial Settings (through phone)

- Configuring your speed dial settings is simple:
  - 1. Dial: 00
  - 2. Enter the speed dial number to edit followed by the pound key.
  - 3. Enter the phone number to be assigned to this speed dial followed by the pound key.
  - 4. You will hear a recording stating: "Speed Dial Saved."
  - 5. You will then be brought back to the main menu to add more speed dials.
- If you select a speed dial which already has an entry, you will be given three dial options.
  - 1. Edit the existing entry.
  - 2. Delete the existing entry.
  - 3. Playback the number assigned to the existing entry.

#### Speed Dial Settings (through web-portal)

- Use Global Profile: This dropdown menu is a list of existing directory profiles that can be used for speed dial settings. For more on directory profiles, see the Provisioning → Directory Profiles section.
- Private List: Here is where you can manage your private speed dial list. You can use a global profile in conjunction with the private list. If there are any duplicate entries between the two, the private list will take priority. Ensure to always add a '0' before your speed dial. Adding a 'w' will wait for a pickup before entering the next digits.

# So(Switch...

## Solutions that shine

| Ise Global Profile<br>Staff Directory |  |      |
|---------------------------------------|--|------|
| Manage Privat                         | e Speed Dial List                                    | ^    |
|                                       | ur extension to manage your pri<br>a your phone set. | vate |
| Dial #<br>00                          | Speed Dial Contact<br>7055216777                     | ×    |
| Dial #<br>01                          | Speed Dial Contact<br>3432446777                     | ×    |
| Dial #<br>02                          | Speed Dial Contact<br>4168536777                     | ×    |
| Dial #<br>03                          | Speed Dial Contact<br>7052226777                     | ×    |
| Dial #                                | Speed Dial Contact                                   | +    |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



#### Fax Switch

The Fax Switch feature is for a DID that shares a Fax and a Phone; the fax feature will check and route according to whether the incoming caller is a phone or a fax. Assign a Fax extension, a phone extension, and an extension for the Fax switch, then apply it to the DID in question.





#### Fax to Email

Fax to Email is a feature where incoming faxes to a specified number will be converted to PDF and emailed to a particular address or multiple addresses. In order to add a Fax-to-Email, there must be an unassigned DID available.

| Tier2 Faxing Main 🔗                 |               | $\times$ |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|----------|
| Name                                |               |          |
| Tier2 Faxing Main                   |               |          |
| 7058056389                          | ~             | Ŕ        |
| Route Group<br>Use Default          | ~             | ŵ        |
| Email Address<br>tier2@sunwire.ca   |               | ×        |
| Email Address<br>support@sunwire.ca |               | ×        |
| Ado                                 | d Email Addre | ess      |
| Save Setti                          | ngs X         | Close    |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.

# So(Switch...

## Solutions that shine

#### Find-Me Follow-Me

The SolSwitch can look for a user by calling a succession of extensions or numbers while keeping the incoming call on hold. You can have as many find-me numbers as you like. To add a Find-Me Follow-Me route, click the 'Add New' button. When a Find-Me number is called, the user is given the option to accept or reject the call. Rejecting immediately goes to the next number in the list or the overflow (whichever is set to be next).

- Extension Number: Specify the Find-Me Follow-Me's extension number.
- Name: Enter the name you would like to use for the Find-Me Follow-Me. This is for reference purposes only.
- Caller ID Type: Check whether you would like the Type to be Passthrough as is or Specified below.
- Caller ID Name: Enter a name to display when dialling external numbers.
- Caller ID Number: Enter a number to display when dialling external numbers.
- Follow Me Numbers: The numbers that should be called. Multiple numbers can be added to this field and they will all sequentially be called in the order that they appear.
- Overflow: If none of the attempted numbers were answered, the Find-Me Follow-Me will overflow to the location specified here.
- Time Rule: Set hours of operation for the Find-Me Follow-Me.
- Closed Destination: If the time rule is closed this option will send calls to the specified destination.
- Step Time: The amount of time, in seconds, before attempting the next Find-Me number in the list.
- Join Message: Whether or not to playback the incoming status message before the system starts the Follow-Me steps. This message reads the following:
  - "The person you are calling is unavailable. I will try to locate them for you. Please hold while I try to locate the person you are calling."
- Ask for Name: If set to Yes, the caller will be asked to record their name so that it can be announced to the recipient of each of the Follow-Me numbers when answered.
- Proceeding Message: This option allows for a message to play while a calling is being placed.
- Unreachable Message: If all of the Follow-Me steps have been exhausted or the call recipient has selected not to be reachable, an unreachable status message will be played back to the caller.
- Answer Type: If set to Press 1, when a call is answered by the Follow Me Number they will have to press 1 to accept the call or 2 to reject it. If set to Auto, the call is immediately connected when answered.
- Record: If checked, the system will automatically record the call if it is answered.



| ew Find-Me Follow-Me 🔗                           |       |       |   |        |   |
|--|-------|-------|---|--------|---|
| -<br>ollow Me Details                            |       |       |   |        |   |
| Extension Number<br>1234                         |       |       | Name<br>Find-Me Follow-Me                   |        |   |
| Caller ID Type<br>As Specififed                  |       | ~     |   |        |   |
| Caller ID Name<br>Sunwire                        |       |       | Caller ID Number<br>7055216777              |        |   |
| Follow Me Nun                                    | nbers |       |   |        |   |
| Follow Me Number<br>7052226777                   |       |       |   | ×      |   |
| Follow Me Number<br>3432446777                   |       |       |   | ×      |   |
|  |       | Add N | umber                                       |        |   |
| Overflow<br>Voicemail: 9000 (Admin)              | ~     | Ŕ     | Time Rule<br>None                           |        | Â |
| Closed Destination<br>None                       | ~     | ŵ     | Step Time<br>20                             |        |   |
| Join Message<br>- System Default Message -       |       |       | Ask For Name<br>No                          |        | ~ |
| Proceeding Message<br>- System Default Message - |       |       | Unreachable Message<br>- System Default Mes | sage - |   |
| Answer Type<br>Press 1                           |       | ~     | Record<br>Yes                               |        | ~ |
|  |       |       |   |        |   |

# So(Switch...

## Solutions that shine

#### Interactive Voice Response (IVR)

IVR, also known as auto attendant, is a computerized phone system that enables a person, typically a telephone caller, to make a selection from a voice menu. The selection is made using keypad entries. Dialling an existing extension at any point while in the IVR will send the caller to that particular extension.

The phone system plays pre-recorded voice messages and the person on the call typically presses a series of digits on the telephone keypad to select the correct option associated with the voice prompt. IVRs will often point to each other to drill down into a menu. When creating a new IVR, follow the instructions below.

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your IVR.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your IVR for reference purposes (i.e. Daytime IVR, Closed IVR, French IVR, etc).
- System Recording: Select the pre-recorded System Recording you would like to use when people enter the IVR. See the System Recording section for more details on how to setup a System Recording.
- Time Rule: Each IVR can be set to have its own time rule to route calls based on whether or not a Time Rule is open or closed.
- Closed Destination: The call will be sent to this location if a time rule is specified and that rule is closed. If there is no time rule, this field should be set to 'None'.
- Timeout: The length of time before your message is replayed or the time before the caller is sent to the Overflow Destination.
- Max Repeat: If no available option is selected by the caller, the System Recording will be replayed this many times on the same interval that is specified in the Timeout field. Once the message has been repeated the specified number of times, it then goes to the Overflow Destination.
- Overflow Destination: If a caller does not select any of the available options, the call will be sent to the overflow destination following the timeout time.
- Dial-By-Name: This will allow users to press the pound (#) key at any time during the IVR to access the company directory and allow people to search for a person by dialling any combination within their name.
- Dial-By-Name Greeting: controls the greeting/message that users will hear when accessing the dial-by-name directory.
- Language: This language controls the voice recognition language, if 'Voice Detected IVR' is enabled, as well as any system messages including the Dial-by-Name Directory. IVRs will show (en) or (fr) if English or French is the selected language.



On the right, you'll see the IVR Options menu. This is used to enter dial options and route calls based on the option selected by the caller. Valid options are 0 to 99 only; excluding the parking lots. Once all these options have been filled out, hit the 'Save Settings' button.

| teractive Voice Recording De                               | taile                         |     | IVR Opti    | ons                                    |   |   |
|--|-------------------------------|-----|-------------|--|---|---|
| Ext. # IVR Name  | lans                          |     | Opt. #<br>0 | Description<br>Queue: 7000 (Sunwire    | ŵ | × |
| 8000 Main System Recording                                 |                               |     | Opt. #<br>1 | Description<br>IVR: 8002 (Business)    | Ŕ | × |
| Sunwire Main   |                               | \$  | Opt. #<br>2 | Description<br>IVR: 8001 (Residential) | ŵ | × |
| None<br>Closed Destination                                 |                               | * & | Opt. #      | Destination<br>None                    | ŵ | + |
| Timeout<br>3 seconds                                       | Max Repeat                    | ~   |             |  |   |   |
| Overflow Destination<br>Queue: 7000 (Sunwire Main Overflow |                               | Â   |             |  |   |   |
| Dial-By-Name Enabled?                                      | Dial-By-Name Greeting<br>None | ø   |             |  |   |   |
| Voice Detected IVR   | Language<br>English           | ~   |             |  |   |   |
|  |                               | ŵ   |             |  |   |   |

#### Voice Detected IVR

If set to yes, the IVR will listen for voice options instead of DTMF tones once the system recording has played. This can only be changed if there are no menu options already added. Type the word you want the system to listen for inside the IVR Option. **Note:** This system does not guarantee 100% accuracy. As such similar sounding works may result in people matching on the wrong option.



• Voice Digit Destination: When Voice Detected IVR is enabled if DTMF is detected before the end of the IVR recording the system will redirect the call to this destination. **Note:** If Dial-By-Name is enabled the # DTMF will direct to the Dial-By-Name directory instead.

#### Meet-Me Conference (Basic)

This feature allows you to create a conference room which allows multiple people to call in and join a phone meeting. People can join a conference room by dialling the extension associated with the room. A DID can also be routed directly to a Meet-Me room to avoid having callers enter an extension number. Meet-Me Rooms have the option of being grouped together. Pointing a DID to a Meet-Me Room that is part of a group will allow you to join the desired room by simply entering the user or administrator PIN for that room. A basic Meet-Me rooms that are part of a group will require PINs to be unique throughout all rooms in that group. Anytime a new PIN is saved in any room in any group, a check is performed to prevent conflicts. To create a Basic Meet-Me Room, click the 'Add Conference' button and select 'Basic' as the Conference Type.

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your room.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your meet-me room for reference purposes.
- Pin: Enter a pin that users must enter to join the conference.
- Administrator Pin: Anyone who logs into the conference using the Administrator Pin will have additional permissions such as muting users, removing users and locking the room.
- Listen Only: Listen only mutes all regular users so that only the administrators may talk. This can also be done by the administrator using \*96 in a meet-me room to mute all participants and \*97 to un-mute all the participants.
- Lock Room: If checked, this will lock the meet-me room so that no other participants may enter or join.
- Require Admin: This option will not allow any meet-me room to begin until an administrator has joined. Users waiting for the administrator will hear music on hold.
- Announce Participants: If selected, all users who enter a Meet-Me Room will be prompted to record their name followed by the # key. When this person enters the meet-me room, all others in the meet-me room will hear a recording stating: "[Name] has joined."
- Max Participants: Specify a limit of participants to have in the Meet-Me Room.
- Group: When a DID is pointing to a Meet-Me Room that is part of a group, users can join the proper Meet-Me Room simply by entering the unique user or administrator PIN for that group. Grouping allows for multiple Meet-Me Rooms to have the same PIN as long as they are in different groups. Grouping options are as follows:



- Ungrouped: Default; the meet-me room does not belong to any group.
- New Group: If you wish to create a new group for that meet-me room to belong to, select this option and a text-box will appear allowing you to create a Group name.
- Select from Existing Groups: Any previously created group will show up. If the meet-me room is to belong to an existing group, simply select it from the list.

\*Groups will be removed from the existing group's list when they no longer hold any Meet-Me Rooms.

- Record: Meet-Me Rooms can be recorded in their entirety. There are three options for this feature:
  - Disabled: No recording will occur on this call.
  - Once: Will only record 1 occurrence of the meet-me room. If the meet-me room is currently in progress, only that call will be recorded. For any calls thereafter, the record option will be changed to 'Disabled'. If no call is currently in progress, then only the next call to take place will be recorded.
  - Always: All calls in this meet-me room will be recorded.
- Record Email: If the record option above is enabled the email addresses entered here will receive a notification message with an encrypted download link to the call recording of the entire Meet-Me room. Multiple emails can be added by separating them with a comma.





So(Switch.

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.

# So(Switch...

## Solutions that shine

#### Meet-Me Conference (Advanced)

This feature allows you to create a conference room which allows multiple people to call in and join a phone meeting. Advanced allows users and administrators to have their own pins if they choose to. To create an Advanced Meet-Me Room, click the 'Add Conference' button and select 'Advanced' as the Conference Type. Advanced rooms are setup similarly to Basic rooms although Pins are not specified until after the room is created. Therefore, to configure Pins in an Advanced Meet-Me Room, users must enter all the necessary information and select the 'Save Settings' button. Once this is done, a new table will be visible where conference users can be specified as well as their Pin and permission level.

| onference D                           | etails           |                                  |          |         |
|---------------------------------------|------------------|----------------------------------|----------|---------|
| Conference Type<br>Advanced           |                  | Extension Number<br>1234         |          |         |
| <sup>lame</sup><br>Advanced Meet-Me R | loom             |                                  |          |         |
| listen Only<br>No                     | ~                | Lock Room<br>Yes                 |          |         |
| Require Admin<br><b>(es</b>           | ~                | Announce Participants<br>Yes     |          | ~       |
| Max Participants<br>Jnlimited         | ~                |                                  |          |         |
| Broup<br>Fier2                        | v                |                                  |          |         |
| Record<br>Disabled                    | ~                | Record Email<br>tier2@sunwire.ca |          |         |
|                                       |                  |                                  | ✓ Save S | Setting |
| Conference Users                      |                  |                                  |          | ^       |
| User Name<br>Derrick                  | User PIN<br>1234 | User Type<br>Admin               | ~        | ×       |
| User Name<br>Jason                    | User PIN<br>6789 | User Type<br>User                | ~        | ×       |
| User Name<br>John                     | User PIN<br>4567 | User Type<br>User                | ~        | ×       |
| User Name<br>Jack                     | User PIN<br>4158 | User Type<br>User                | ~        | ×       |



#### Meet-Me Conference (Feature Codes)

There are feature codes available for Meet-Me conferences. These options include mute/un-mute options, lock/unlock options, participant count options and record options. Please consult the Telephone Feature Codes section of this manual under 'Call Features' for a complete list.

#### **Miscellaneous Settings**

**Operator Destination:** When a device from inside the phone system dials '0', this is where the call will be routed. This is useful for hospitality industries where users dial 0 to reach an internal operator.

**911 Notify Extension:** This setting allows you to configure the system so that if anyone dials 911, a notification is sent out to a destination extension that's set here which announces a custom recording from the System Recordings section.

**911 Notify Message ID:** Select a system recording to be used when notifying the extension. The recording would typically be something like: "911 was dialled from extension number:" The custom recording is followed by the extension number that dialled 911.

#### Music on Hold

Music on Hold (MoH) is the music that callers will hear when they are put on hold or parked. The three MoH options are the default royalty-free music, the ability to select your own stream from the internet as well as the option to upload a custom playlist supporting WAV or MP3 files. You can have multiple Music on Hold files in the event that different types of music should be played at different times. Click the 'Add New MoH' button to create a new music on hold.

- Name: For reference purposes.
- Default: If checked, this class will be used as the default unless otherwise specified (in a queue, extension, etc.)
- Source: Select whether this class will be a stream or a playlist.

Adding a Music Stream: If the source is set to 'Stream', you will have the ability to enter a URL as well as listen to the stream to ensure its functionality. Once this is done, hit the 'Save Settings' button.





| New Mus                    | sic On Hold 🔗             |                     | $\times$ |
|----------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------|----------|
| Name                       |                           |                     |          |
| Defa<br>Source<br>O Stream | ult<br>m 🔵 Files/Playlist |                     |          |
|                            | Stream URL:<br>http://    | C)D                 |          |
|                            |                           | ✓ Save Settings × 0 | Close    |

Adding a Music Playlist: If the source is set to 'Files/Playlist', choose the file you with to upload and his 'Save Settings'. You will have the ability to upload files in WAV or MP3 format. Only one file can be uploaded at a time. If you wish to upload additional files edit the Music On Hold again and add another file.

| Music     | On Hold 🔗   |            |         | ×     |
|-----------|---|------------|---------|-------|
| Nan<br>Mu | ne<br>sic On Hold                                     |            |         |       |
| Sourc     | Default<br>C <b>e</b><br>ream <b>O</b> Files/Playlist |            |         |       |
|           | 0.mp3   |            | ×       |       |
|           | 1.mp3   |            | ×       |       |
|           | Add Music File  |            |         |       |
|           |   | ✓ Save Set | tings X | Close |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



#### **Paging Groups**

Paging Groups can be set up to target specific persons or extension within the phone system. For example, if a caller is looking for a sales representative, but no one person in particular, a page can be sent to the entire sales team. Paging groups are often tied to a paging system. Add a paging group by clicking the 'Add Paging Group' button. Paging is only supported by desk phones.

Adding a Paging Group: Before adding members to a paging group, it must first be setup and saved by entering the following information.

- Extension Number: The extension number to dial to activate that paging group.
- Name: For reference purposes.
- Description: For reference purposes.

Once the paging group has been saved, you will have the ability to add members to the group. Members are added by selecting their extension from the dropdown menu and clicking the '+' button then saving.

| Company Page 🔗                           | ×                       |
|--|-------------------------|
| Paging Group Details                     | Paging Group Members    |
| Extension Number<br>5000                 | Extension 🗸 +           |
| Name<br>Company Page                     | Save Member Settings    |
| Description<br>Company-wide paging group |                         |
|  | ✓ Save Settings × Close |

#### Parking Lots

This section is where you configure the extension ranges that you would like reserved as parking lot groups.

- Parking Lot Range: Set the range of allowed parking lots (recommended start: 50, cannot be above 99)
- Alert Interval: The length of time in seconds before an agent is reminded they have a parked call still waiting.



- Reminder Type: Sets the reminder type.
  - Reminder: The phone will simply remind you that a call is parked in a specific parking lot.
  - Ring Back/Answer: The phone will ring back to you and give you the option to answer the parked call.
- Forward Destination: After the specified number of reminder attempts, the parked call will be forwarded to this destination.
- Attempts: Specify the number of attempts before a call will be forwarded. This option will only work with the 'Reminder' Alert Type.
- Expiry Time: This option allows you to lock a parking lot for a set amount of time. To allow parking and picking up parks without the parking lot shifting to a new parking lot.

| ROUP |    | LOT RAN | GE | ALERT INTERVAL | ALERT TYPE |   | FORWARD DESTINATION |   | ATTEMPTS | EXPIRY | DELETE |
|------|----|---------|----|----------------|------------|---|---------------------|---|----------|--------|--------|
| 1    | 50 | -       | 55 | 60             | Reminder   | ~ | None                | ~ | 0        | 15     |        |

#### Queues

A phone queue allows calls to sit on hold until a phone agent is ready to handle the call. Queues follow rules for inbound calls and are used as a way to handle incoming calls. Many options are made available so that incoming calls are handled exactly as you need them. Queues can easily be manipulated to suit any system and ensure a better chance of never missing a call. To create a new queue, select the 'Add Queue' button from the Queue List. Queue forwarding is also available using the \* code \*104 followed by the extension number to be forwarded to. Following is a list of details and their functionality associated with a queue as well as an image of the page layout.

#### Creating a Queue:

- Active: Choose whether or not the queue is active. If the queue is not active, it cannot be dialled.
- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your queue.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your queue.
- Language: This option determines which language to use in system generated messages. Supports English and French.
- Weight: The weight of the incoming call refers to how much priority to put on calls in this queue compared to other queues.



- Caller ID Prefix: This feature allows agents to know which queue the call is coming from. For example, you could enter 'Sales:' so that the agent knows the call is originating from the Sales Queue.
- Clear Last Prefix: Determines functionality when a call flows through multiple queues. When set to 'Yes", the prefix will always be added to the original caller ID. When set to "No", prefixes from previous queues will still be included. Ex: 'SALES:SUPP:Caller Name'
- Prefix Internal Calls: Adds a prefix to the Caller ID number of internal users calling the queue to prevent local phone directories from overriding the queue prefix.
- Join Recording: Specify if you would like a message to be played when a caller first joins the queue. These messages are configured in the System Recordings section.
- Time Rule: Select a specific time rule if this queue is only available during certain times. Time Rules are configured in the Phone System menu.
- Closed Destination: If a time rule is set and its status is closed, calls will be sent to the location specified here.
- Forward All Calls: This allows you to forward all calls that go to a queue to a specific internal location on the switch. If it is to go to an external number, simply use the Virtual Extension feature.
- End of Call Survey: At the end of the Call, the customer will be directed to the selected survey.
- Maximum Hold Time: The total amount of time in the queue before the call will be sent to the overflow destination.
- Overflow Destination: Where to send the call when no agents are logged into the queue or when the maximum hold time is reached.
- Forced Exit Destination: This directs the system on how to respond if a customer dials '1' for immediate assistance.
- Ring Members For: How long to ring the agent before trying the next agent in the member list.
- Retry After: Sets the length of time to wait between retrying queue members. Please know any time below 5 seconds is not supported as that is the length of a single ring.
- Ring Strategy: Decides how to distribute calls within the queue. There are three available options:
  - Ring All: Ring all agents in the queue at the same time.
  - $\circ$   $\;$  Least Recent: Ring the agent that has been waiting the longest for a call.
  - Round Robin: Distribute calls in a circular fashion.
- Fill Calls: By default, queue calls work through pending callers one at a time. If 'Fill Calls" is enabled the queue will attempt to send calls to all available agents at once if there are enough calls in the queue. Fill Calls is only compatible with 'least Recent' and 'Round Robin' ring strategies.
- Hold Type: Whether callers should hear a ringing tone or music while holding in the queue.
- Music on Hold: If the hold type is set to music, this specifies which music on hold to play. Music on Hold is configured in Phone System → Music On Hold.



- Record Calls: Specifies whether calls in this queue should always be recorded or if they should only be recorded on Demand. To record calls on demand, users must either dial: #1 or hit the 'Record' soft key if it is available.
- Record Queue Only: Only record the queue leg of the call; if transferred away from the queue, the recording will stop unless the destination has recording enabled.
- Show Missed Calls: Toggles whether queue calls that are missed or answered by another agent show as 'Missed Call' on the phones of queue members.

#### **Queue Member Options:**

- Service Level: Used for reporting how many seconds before a call is answered and is considered as an acceptable service level that all agents should be answering calls within.
- Wrap time: Length of time before the agent is presented to take another call after finishing a call in this queue.
- Auto-Pause Members: If this option is turned on, an agent will be set to 'Not Ready' if they don't answer a call. They will be required to go back to 'Ready' in order to be presented with subsequent calls. To toggle between Ready and Not Ready, dial: \*908.
- Allow Member Forwarding: Choose whether or not a member's phone forwarding settings should affect this queue. The default is set to 'No'. This is only compatible with a phone's internal forwarding and not \*72/\*73.
- Use Call Reason Codes: If 'Yes' is selected, at the end of each call, the SolSwitch will request the agent to enter a reason code for that call. Reason codes are specified under Phone System → Reason Codes.
- Use Busy Codes: If 'Yes' is selected, every time a user toggles their ready/not-ready status (\*908), they will be required to enter a Busy Reason Code. Reason codes are specified under Phone System → Reason Codes.

#### Announcement Options:

- Advanced Announcements: If disabled, the queue will use the default announce message style, using the options described below. If enabled an extra button will appear giving the option to Manage Announcements, which gives a wider range of customizability for announce messages (such as having multiple messages with different wait times). See 'Manage Announcements' below.
- Estimated Hold Time: If set to 'Yes', when an Announce Message is played, the system will also announce the estimated hold time of the queue. The estimated hold time is calculated based on an algorithm pertaining to call volume and queue wait time.


- Announce Interval: If an Announce Message is selected, this specifies the interval between replaying the Announce Message.
- Announce Message: The System Recording to use for announcing messages. These are set in Phone System → System Recordings.
- Announce Position: If set to 'Yes', will announce the caller's current position in the queue.
- Announce First: Allows changing the order of the announce messages, announce hold time and announce interval.

**Manage Announcements:** When using Advanced Announcements and selecting 'Manage Announcements' the page will direct to the announcement options. This page has similar settings to the ones described above for Announce Message but allows more customization. The following additional options are available:

- Time to First Message: The first Announce Message will play after this time. If set to never, announce messages will not play.
- Time to Next Message: How long to wait before playing the next message in the list. This time starts after this message has finished playing.
- Announce Hold Time/Pos: Select whether the hold time and position messages should be announced before or after this message.

The messages set up on this screen will play in the order they are displayed after the set 'Time to Next Message' has elapsed. Clicking 'Save Settings' will apply these changes and return to the queue edit screen.

#### **Callback Options:**

- Enable Callback: This feature allows a caller holding in a queue to press '2' while waiting and a 'Queue Callback' will be created. This means that the caller can hang up and go about their business while keeping their place in the queue. When their call arrives at the front of the queue, the system automatically calls the person back and connects them with the agent.
- Callback Dial Prefix: This field only accepts digits and will prefix the queue Callback number being dialled.
- Callback CID Name: Select the name to display as the Caller ID Name when the system calls the customer back.
- Callback CID Number: Select the number to display as the Caller ID Number when the system calls the customer back.
- Callback Attempts: Select how many times to re-try a callback after an unsuccessful attempt.
- Callback Attempt Interval: Select how long to wait between each dial attempt.



• Callback Fail Notify Email: If a callback fails all of its attempts, a notification will be sent to the email address entered here. You can enter multiple email addresses separated by a comma.

**Multi-Channel Queuing:** Multi-Channel Queueing is the ability for chats and phone calls from multiple platforms to be handled all together in a streamlined central location. Phone calls will flow as they always have while the addition of chats from multiple platforms will also now ring queue members on phones and allow chats to be managed in the Webchat section of Phone Settings.

**SMS:** Short Message Service (SMS) is a text messaging service component of most telephone, Internet and mobile device systems. It uses standardized communication protocols that let mobile phones exchange short text messages, typically transmitted over cellular networks. They have a 160-character limit and communications longer than 160 characters are split into multiple SMS segments.

**Webchat:** Webchat is a format that allows customers to communicate directly with brands online, often on their websites and in real-time. The webchat window pops up as an overlay of the website page in the browser, allowing the user to type messages directly into a text field and is replied to from the SolSwitch Webchat.

**MMS:** Multimedia Messaging Service (MMS) is a standard way to send messages that include multimedia content to and from a mobile phone over a cellular network. The MMS standard extends the core SMS (Short Message Service) capability, allowing the exchange of text messages greater than 160 characters in length. Unlike text-only SMS, MMS can deliver a variety of media, including up to forty seconds of video, one image, a slideshow of multiple images, or audio.

**Facebook:** Facebook Messenger conversations can be sent to Webchat on the SolSwitch and you can communicate back and forth. You'll see the Facebook name of the person contacting you

- Enabled: Once enabled you'll be able to configure Multi-Channel Queuing for SMS, Webchat and Facebook.
- Fill Load: When enabled, queued items with lower load will skip ahead of higher load items in the queue to fill the available load for agents. When disabled, queued items will only be assigned in the order they are received in the queue.
- Response Timeout: The length of time in minutes to wait for an assigned agent to respond to the initial message before sending the call back to the queue. Set to 0 for unlimited.
- Chat Timeout: The length of time in minutes to wait between messages before marking a chat as inactive. Set to 0 for unlimited.
- Load: Load determines how many of these types of tasks an agent can handle at once. Low: up to 5 at once. Medium: Up to 3 at once. High: Only 1 at a time.



- Queue Closed Message: A message to be displayed if the chat is started when the time rule on the queue is closed. All chats will be deferred until the queue opens again.
- Call Queue: Decides whether or not to call the queue. Agents will be expected to pull new chats from the webchat page if this is set to No.
- Notification Recording: This is the recording that will play when an agent answers a call notifying them that they have been assigned the chat.
- Caller ID: to be used when calling an agent to notify of a newly assigned call.
- SMS DID: Select the SMS DID to receive and send messages from.
- Web Key Salt: This is a unique identifier used to send and receive data to this multimedia chat type. Best left default. If you need to invalidate a key, simply submit a blank key to have a new one generated.
- Captcha v3: to enable Captcha v3 on your webchat enter the site here and the secret key as well.
- Custom Webchat Styling: Here you set the colour of all fonts and backgrounds. You can specify a hexadecimal colour code or click on the colour to use our selector tool.
- Template Message: The initial message to be displayed upon opening a webchat. Leave blank to have no initial message.
- Sender Name: The name to be shown to the user when receiving a message from an agent. Default: 'Support Agent'
- Facebook License Key: This is the license key provider to enable linking a Facebook page to a queue.

Multichannel Queuing



# So(Switch...

# Solutions that shine

| ueue Details                  |      |                                 |                            |    |
|-------------------------------|------|---------------------------------|----------------------------|----|
| Active                        |      |                                 |                            |    |
| Yes                           |      |                                 |                            |    |
| ext. #<br>3457                | Name |                                 |                            |    |
| Language<br>English           |      |                                 |                            |    |
| Weight.                       |      |                                 |                            |    |
| None                          |      | Ť                               |                            |    |
| Caller ID Prefix              |      | Prefix Internal C<br>No         | Calls                      | ×  |
| Join Recording<br>None        |      |                                 |                            |    |
| Time Rule<br>None             |      | R                               | Closed Destination<br>None | \$ |
| orward All Calls<br>None      |      |                                 |                            | R  |
| ind of Call Survey<br>None    |      |                                 |                            | ÷  |
| Max. Hold Time<br>Unlimited   | •    | Overflow Destin<br>IVR: 8000 (M |                            | \$ |
| Forced Exit Destination       |      |                                 |                            | \$ |
| ing Members For<br>25 seconds |      | *                               | Retry After<br>5 seconds   |    |
| ling Strategy                 |      |                                 |                            | ~  |
| Ring All                      |      |                                 |                            |    |
| Hold Type<br>Ring             |      |                                 |                            | ×  |
| Record Calls<br>On Demand     |      | •                               | Record Queue Only<br>No    | ÷  |
| Ivanced Details               |      |                                 |                            |    |
| Queue Member Optio            | ns   |                                 |                            | ~  |
| Announcement Optio            | ns   |                                 |                            | ~  |
| Callback Options              |      |                                 |                            | ~  |
|                               |      |                                 |                            |    |

After saving a newly created Queue, you will be given the ability to add members to the queue.

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



Adding Members to a Queue: A new table will now be visible to the right of the Queue Details. Add members by selecting extensions and clicking the '+' button next to that extension then click Save Member Settings. The penalty section here is used to determine a priority on who should be called first. Those with a higher penalty will receive calls after those with a lower penalty. The image below would mean the following:

105 – John Smith and 115 – Jane Doe would ring first for a period of 25 seconds (Ring Members For option). The queue would then wait 5 seconds (Retry After option) and then ring 100 – Jonathan Wick for a period of 25 seconds (Ring Members For option). Once the Maximum Hold Time has elapsed the call will be sent to the Overflow Destination.

| P<br>0 | Extension<br>105 - John Smith    | ~ | × |
|--------|----------------------------------|---|---|
| P<br>0 | Extension<br>115 - Jane Doe      | ~ | × |
| P<br>1 | Extension<br>100 - Jonathan Wick | ~ | × |
| P      | Extension                        | ~ | + |

**Queue Members** 

## **Reason Codes**

These are different reason codes that could be set and required from users based on the phone action or activity. See below for the two types of reason codes.

#### Busy Reason Codes

Located under Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Reason Codes, Busy Reason Codes are used when agents toggle their ready/not ready status. Whether or not busy reason codes are required is set in the Queue Details (Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Queues). If the 'Use Busy Codes:' is activated on that Queue, then when a user dials \*908 to toggle their status, they will be prompted to enter a Busy Reason Code. Reports can then be pulled using the Queue Agent Not-Ready Report.



| Q Search Reason Codes |                   | Add Busy Reason |
|-----------------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| CODE                  | + DESCRIPTION     |                 |
| 11                    | Call Wrap Up      | :               |
| 15                    | 15 Min Break      | :               |
| 20                    | Front Desk        | :               |
| 22                    | Equipment Day     | :               |
| 30                    | Lunch             | :               |
| 41                    | Working on Orders | :               |
| 50                    | Approved Away     | :               |
| 90                    | Home for the day  | :               |

#### Call Reason Codes

Located under Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Reason Codes, Call Reason Codes are used when agents complete a call and are required to enter a reason for the call. Whether or not call reason codes are required is set in the Queue Details (Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Queues). If the 'Use Call Codes:' is activated on that Queue, then when an agent completes a call and the person on the other end of the call hangs up, the system will ask the agent to enter a call reason code. If the agent hangs up before entering a reason code, the SolSwitch will call them back and request it right away. Reports can then be pulled to gather more details regarding the queue, agents and reason codes for specific time periods using the Queue Call Reason Report.

| Q Search |          | Add Call Reason |
|----------|----------|-----------------|
| ♦ CODE   |          |                 |
| 03       | Billing  | 1               |
| 04       | Support  | :               |
| 05       | Sales    | :               |
| 06       | Business | :               |
| 07       | Signup   | :               |



### **Recording Backup**

This section allows you to add an FTP server to have call recordings on a specific customer offloaded or automatically deleted if a size quota or time period is set. Use a value of 0 for unlimited. If the size of the recording approaches a certain percentage of the total threshold you can receive an email notification. To adjust settings SolSwitch wide please see 'Recording Backup' in Advanced Tools.

| FTP Server         |                        |
|--------------------|------------------------|
| FTP Username       | FTP Password           |
| FTP Path           | Day Limit<br>1         |
| Quota (MB)<br>O    | Auto Delete (Quota)    |
| Auto Delete (Days) | Alert Percentage<br>75 |
| Alert Email        |                        |
|                    | Save Information       |





## **Scheduled Routing**

The Scheduled Routing feature allows you to create Scheduled Routes based on date spans. Multiple scheduled routes can be configured to match any schedule. To create a new Scheduled Route, click the 'Add Scheduled Route' button. You can also import a list in the form of a CSV file.

#### Adding a Scheduled Route:

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your scheduled routing.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your scheduled route.
- Default Route: In the event that a date/time range has not been specified, calls will route to the default location. This field can be typed in for quick auto-complete selections.
- Alert Email(s): An alert email will be sent if no time specifications are met, meaning that the default route is being used. Separate additional emails with a comma.
- Auto Repeat: If selected, the scheduled routing will be automatically regenerated when routes run out.
- Add Route Schedule: Select a date range by inserting a start and end date then click the '+' button.
  - Once a date range has been added, time ranges for that date range can be added.
  - Select where on the system you would like the call routed from the dropdown menu and click the 'Add New Rule' button.

You can add multiple time ranges per day range as well as multiple day ranges. Additional options allow you to 'Clone' a daily entry for recurring schedules. Ranges cannot overlap each other.



| Ext. #<br>9633                |                        | Name<br>Sche | eduled Rou  | ting |             |       |                               |
|-------------------------------|------------------------|--------------|-------------|------|-------------|-------|-------------------------------|
| Default Route<br>Extension: 2 | 245 (Room 2            | 45)          |             |      |             |       |                               |
| Alert Email(s)<br>scheduling( | @sunwire.ca            |              |             |      |             |       |                               |
| Auto Repeat<br><b>Yes</b>     |                        |              |             |      |             |       |                               |
| dit Rout                      | es                     |              |             | Rev  | erse Sort ( | Order | Import Spreadsheet Dat        |
| Add New Date<br>2024-04-08    | e Range<br>8 - 2024-04 | -09          |             |      |             |       |                               |
| 24-04-08                      | to 2024-04             | -08          |             |      |             | Ec    | lit Clone Remove              |
| From HH<br>00                 | From MM<br>00          | ~            | To HH<br>08 | ~    | To MM<br>30 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 115 (J |
| From HH<br>08                 | From MM<br>31          | ~            | то НН<br>17 | ~    | To MM<br>00 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 113 (J |
| From HH<br>17                 | From MM<br>01          | ~            | To HH<br>23 | ~    | To MM<br>59 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 115 (J |
| )24-04-09                     | to 2024-04             | -09          |             |      |             | Ec    | lit Clone Remove              |
| From HH<br>00                 | From MM<br>00          | ~            | To HH<br>08 | ~    | To MM<br>30 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 113 (J |
| From HH<br>08                 | From MM<br>31          | ~            | то нн<br>17 | ~    | To MM<br>00 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 115 (J |
| From HH<br>17 ~               | From MM<br>01          | ~            | To HH<br>23 | ×    | To MM<br>59 | ~     | Route To<br>Extension: 245 (  |
|                               |                        |              |             |      |             |       |                               |



#### Importing a Scheduled Route:

#### Automatic Import

This automatic import tool allows you to upload a comma seperated value (CSV) file to create scheduled routing rules. Note that uploading a file will overwrite all existing data in this scheduled route. Follow the instructions below to create your file.

#### Spreadsheet Formatting Requirements:

- In the example, the green sections are start and end dates for a new date range.

- Valid date formats are YYYY-MM-DD and MM/DD/YYYY.
- Records below the date range are time entries.
- The blue records indicate the start and end time of the entry.
- The orange records beside the time entries are route destination.
- Repeat date ranges and time entries as required.
- File must be saved as .csv (comma seperated values)

Please select your file below, and press the Upload button.

| 1 2015-01-02 2015-01-05 |
|-------------------------|
|                         |
| 2 00:00 08:00 201       |
| 3 08:00 17:00 202       |
| 4 2015-01-06 2015-01-10 |
| 5 00:00 08:00 202       |
| 6 08:00 17:00 201       |

#### **Scripts**

The SolSwitch supports the integration of custom scripts, allowing a low-code implementation of custom functionality that goes beyond the default system features.

Phone calls can be routed to custom scripts in the same way as other system features, and SMS can be configured to run custom scripts upon receiving inbound messages.



Updated documentation on the functionality and available features for custom scripting can be found under the "View SolSwitch Scripting Documentation" link when creating a new script.

| New Script 🔗 |      |                                     |                 | ×       |
|--------------|------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---------|
| Ext. #       | Name |                                     |                 |         |
|              | Vie  | ew SolSwitch Scriptir<br>Quick Refe |                 |         |
| Script       |      |                                     |                 | 1.      |
|              |      |                                     | ✓ Save Settings | × Close |

#### **SMS Management**

Once a DID has been added to DID Management with an SMS provider set it will appear under SMs management.

- Default Route: Default destination for incoming SMS. Enter "none" for the URL if you want no default route.
- Prefix: When a message starts with this text, the prefix will be stripped and the message will be directed to this URL instead of the default URL. Ex, Messages beginning with "Dev" or "Test" could be directed to a development server. Multiple prefixes and URLs can be added.
- Auto Response: When set, incoming SMS to this number will receive an automatic reply with this message. The Message will be sent a maximum of once every 24 hours per incoming number.
- Access List: Manage which IPs are allowed to send SMS from the configured SMS DIDs.

#### Surveys

Surveys allow callers to give feedback on their experience once a call has finished.

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your survey.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your survey.
- Join Recording: This recording will be played at the start of the Survey.



- End Recording: This recording will be played once the Survey is complete.
- End Destination: The call will be routed here once the call is complete. If none is selected, the call will end.
- Timeout: The time before the question is replayed.
- Max Repeat: The number of times a question will repeat itself. Intervals are set by the Timeout.

**Survey Questions:** Each question consists of one recording and a series of answer options starting at #1 and incrementing. The answer labels are for internal reporting/reference only, the recording provided should indicate to the caller which option to pick. Select a System Recording as the Question Recording for the first question to ask and press '+' to add another Question Recording. Add a name in the Answer Label to track what the option is. The Answer Label number will be the corresponding numbers they will dial. To add more answer Label's press '+'. When you are finished hit the 'Save Settings' button. Questions and answers cannot be added or removed once created to preserve reporting integrity.

# Sc(Switch...

# Solutions that shine

| w Survey 🔗                      |                    |   |  |   |   |
|---------------------------------|--------------------|---|--|---|---|
| Ext. #<br>1234                  | Name<br>Survey     |   |  |   |   |
| Join Recording<br>Please Answer | The Following QL 💙 | Ŕ | End Recording<br>Thank You For Participating | ~ | ŵ |
| End Destination<br>None         |                    |   |  |   | ø |
| Timeout<br>15 seconds           |                    | ~ | Max Repeat<br>2                              |   | ~ |

#### Survey Questions

Note: After creation, you'll no longer be able to Add/Delete Questions and Labels for reporting integrity.

| + | Question Recording #1<br>Rate Your Experience   | ~ | Answer Label #1<br>Very Dissatisfied | - |
|---|---|---|--------------------------------------|---|
|   |   |   | Answer Label #2<br>Dissatisfied      | > |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #3<br>Neutral           | , |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #4<br>Satisfied         | , |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #5<br>Very Satisfied    | ) |
| × | Question Recording #2<br>Would You Recommend Us | ~ | Answer Label #1<br>Strongly Disagree | - |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #2<br>Somewhat Disagree | 6 |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #3<br>Neutral           | , |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #4<br>Somewhat Agree    |   |
|   |   |   | Answer Label #5<br>Strongly Agree    | ) |



### System Recordings

MP3 or WAV audio files of IVR or Queue greetings, product announcements, company news, business hours, etc are uploaded here.

**Creating a System Recording:** Click the 'Add System Recording' button and enter a name for your recording. Set the 'Active:' field to 'Yes' in order to enable the recording.

**Uploading a System Recording:** If you have a sound file you would like to upload, click the 'Browse' button, select your file and then click the 'Save System Recording' button. The system will accept any standard WAV or MP3 file. The SolSwitch handles sound conversion and bit-rate control so you don't have to.

**Recording a System Recording:** After naming and activating your system recording, press the 'Save System Recording' button. View the system recording and follow the \*-codes to listen, record or toggle the recording.

| Generic We         | elcome 🔗               | $\times$ |
|--------------------|------------------------|----------|
|                    |                        |          |
| Name<br>Main Syste | em Recording           |          |
| Active<br>Yes      | ~                      |          |
| Choose Fi          | Ile No file chosen     |          |
| ▶ 0:00 / 0         | 0:06 •> •              |          |
| Phone Dia          | al Options             |          |
| Listen:            | Dial *1011             |          |
| Record:            | Dial *1021             |          |
| Toggle:            | Dial *1031             |          |
|                    | ✓ Save Settings × Clos | se       |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



### **Time Rules**

Time rules are used by the SolSwitch to direct calls to the appropriate extensions, virtual extensions, queue, IVR, etc. during the specified times as per the created Time Rules. To add a Time Rule, click the 'Add Time Rule Group' button.

- Time Rule Name: Enter a name to identify this group of Time Rules.
- Time Rule Description: For reference purposes.
- Toggle Extension: Calling this extension will toggle this Time Rule from open to closed or closed to open.
- Passcode: Based on the selection below, callers will be prompted for this passcode in order to toggle the Time Rule.
- Ask for Passcode: Specify when a passcode should be asked for when toggling the Time Rule.

#### Click the 'Save' button.

| Time Rule Details  |                            |  |  |  |  |
|--|----------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Namo<br>Main Hours   | STATUS: OPEN Toggle Status |  |  |  |  |
| Description<br>Used to route calls to voicemail after hours. |                            |  |  |  |  |
| Toggle Extension<br>5555                                     | Passcode<br>1234           |  |  |  |  |
| Ask for Passcode: O Always For External Callers Never        |                            |  |  |  |  |
| s  | ave                        |  |  |  |  |

Once your group has been created, you can begin creating individual rules. To add a rule, click the 'Add Rule' button. You are able to toggle the time rule on and off within the web portal by clicking the Toggle status button. There are two types of rules that can be added.

**Range Rules:** Range rules specify a start and an end for a rule. It can be selected based on weekdays or by month and day. To create a range rule by weekday, follow the example below.

# So(Switch...

# Solutions that shine

#### Add Time Rule 🔗 Туре Range Description Open Monday - Friday 9 AM to 5 PM O By Day of Week Date Type: By Month and Day By Nth Day of Week From: Day of Week: Monday 🔽 Tuesday Wednesday ~ Thursday ~ Friday Saturday Sunday Hour Minute Action 09 00 Open To: Day of Week: Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Hour Minute Action V V V 17 00 Closed Save Settings $\times$ Close

The image above shows that this particular range rule will open Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday at 9:00 AM and will close Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday at 5:00 PM.

Creating a Range Rule based on Month and Day (such as for holidays); the following format would be followed:

# So(Switch...

# Solutions that shine

| Date Type: By Day of Week   By Month and Day   By Month and Day   By Month and Day   By Mith Day of Week   From: Month:   January   Pebruary   March   April   May   July   August   September   October   November   December     Closed     Pay   1   Year   1   Year   1   Year   Closed   Year   October   November   December     Closed     Year   2   2   | <sup>Type</sup><br>Range |   | ~  |   |   |
|--|--------------------------|---|--|---|---|
| By Month and Day<br>By Nth Day of Week  From:<br>Month:<br>January<br>February<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>July<br>August<br>September<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>December<br>To:<br>Month:<br>January<br>February<br>March<br>00 V Closed V<br>Closed V<br>To:<br>Month:<br>January<br>February<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>July<br>August<br>September<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>December<br>December<br>December<br>December<br>December<br>December   |                          | da Day  |  |   |   |
| Month:<br>February<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>June<br>June<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>December<br>OC<br>Closed ~<br>To:<br>Month:<br>January<br>Minute<br>OO<br>Closed ~<br>To:<br>Month:<br>January<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>Day<br>June<br>Closed ~<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>December<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>October<br>November<br>December   | Date Type:               | O By  | Month and Day  |   |   |
| February   March   April   May   June   July   August   September   October   November   December     Day   Year   2024     Hour   00   V   Minute   00   V   Month:   January   February   March   April   May   June   July   August   September   October   November   Day   2   Year   2   Year   2024   Year   2024   Year   2024   | From:                    |   |  |   |   |
| 1 2024 Closed Cl | Month:                   | Fe<br>Ma<br>Ap<br>Ma<br>Ju<br>V<br>Ju<br>Au<br>Se<br>Oc | bruary<br>arch<br>wril<br>ay<br>ly<br>ly<br>ugust<br>wptember<br>stober<br>wwember |   |   |
| 00 Closed |                          |   | ~  |   | ~ |
| Month:<br>January<br>February<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>July<br>August<br>September<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>December<br>Hour   |                          | ~   |  | ~ | ~ |
| Month:<br>January<br>February<br>March<br>April<br>May<br>June<br>July<br>August<br>September<br>October<br>November<br>December<br>Hour   | To:                      |   |  |   |   |
| 2 2024 Y   |                          | Fe<br>Ma<br>Ju<br>Ju<br>Ju<br>Ju<br>Se<br>Oc            | bruary<br>arch<br>wril<br>ay<br>ly<br>ly<br>ugust<br>uptember<br>stober<br>ovember |   |   |
|  |                          |   | ~  |   | ~ |
|  |                          | ~   |  | ~ | ~ |

#### **ADMINISTRATOR GUIDE**



## Solutions that shine

Multiple rules can be used in conjunction with each other in order to adjust the time rule properly.

**Instance Rules:** An instance time rule does not have a start and end point to the rule. It simply opens or closes a rule based on weekdays or based on month and day. Multiple instance time rules can be used as well. If there are instance rules and range rules, the range rules will take precedence over instance rules. In the screenshot below, the instance rule opens the time rule every weekday at 8 AM.

| Type<br>Instance               |                               | ~  |   |                |   |
|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|---|----------------|---|
| Description<br>Open Weekdays a | t 8:00 AM                     |  |   |                |   |
| Date Type:                     | О В                           | ly Day of Week<br>ly Month and Day<br>ly Nth Day of Week                   |   |                |   |
| Day of Week:                   | ✓ T<br>✓ V<br>✓ T<br>✓ F<br>S | Monday<br>Tuesday<br>Vednesday<br>Thursday<br>Triday<br>Gaturday<br>Gunday |   |                |   |
| Hour<br>08                     | ~                             | Minute<br>00   | ~ | Action<br>Open | ~ |

Another instance like the one above could also be made in order to close the Time Rule.



Another example of an instance rule, using the month and day format, would be configured similarly to the following:

| Type<br>Instance                 |   | ~  |              |   |                  |   |
|----------------------------------|---|--|--------------|---|------------------|---|
| Description<br>Close on July 1st | at Midnight                                   |  |              |   |                  |   |
| Date Type:                       | O B   | y Day of Week<br>y Month and Day<br>y Nth Day of Wee   |              |   |                  |   |
| Month:                           | Fe<br>M<br>M<br>Ju<br>Ju<br>A<br>Si<br>O<br>N | anuary<br>ebruary<br>larch<br>pril<br>lay<br>une<br>uly<br>ugust<br>eptember<br>ctober<br>ovember<br>ecember |              |   |                  |   |
| Day<br>1                         |   | ~  | Year<br>2024 |   |                  | ~ |
| Hour                             | ~   | Minute<br>00   |              | ~ | Action<br>Closed | ~ |



Following the configuration of all the rules within the Time Rule group, a 'Rule Calendar' is displayed on the Time Rule group page displaying when the Time Rule is scheduled to be open or closed.

| < > Today |                                  | P                                | April 2024                       |                                  | Month                                      | Week Day List |
|-----------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|---------------|
| Sun       | Mon                              | Tue                              | Wed                              | Thu                              | Fri  | Sat           |
|           | 1                                | 2                                | 3                                | 4                                | 5  | 6             |
| 7         | 8                                | 9                                | 10                               | 11                               | 12<br>Closed<br>09:00 Open<br>17:00 Closed | 13<br>Closed  |
| 14        | 15                               | 16                               | 17                               | 18                               | 19   | 20            |
| Closed    | <ul> <li>Closed</li> </ul>       | <ul> <li>Closed</li> </ul>       | <ul> <li>Closed</li> </ul>       | Closed                           | Closed                                     | Closed        |
|           | <ul> <li>09:00 Open</li> </ul>   | 09:00 Open                                 |               |
|           | <ul> <li>17:00 Closed</li> </ul>           |               |
| 21        | 22                               | 23                               | 24                               | 25                               | 26   | 27            |
| Closed    | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                                     | Closed        |
|           | • 09:00 Open                     | <ul> <li>09:00 Open</li> </ul>   | <ul> <li>09:00 Open</li> </ul>   | <ul> <li>09:00 Open</li> </ul>   | 09:00 Open                                 |               |
|           | 17:00 Closed                     | 17:00 Closed                     | 17:00 Closed                     | • 17:00 Closed                   | 17:00 Closed                               |               |
| 28        | 29                               | 30                               | 1                                | 2                                |  | 4             |
| Closed    | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                           | Closed                                     | Closed        |
|           | 09:00 Open                                 |               |
|           | • 17:00 Closed                   | 17:00 Closed                     | 17:00 Closed                     | • 17:00 Closed                   | 17:00 Closed                               |               |

## Virtual Extensions

A virtual extension allows you to create an internal extension number that is attached to an outside telephone number. Therefore, in order to reach an external number; internal users would simply need to dial the appropriate extension. To add a new virtual extension, click the 'Add Virtual Extension' button.

#### Adding a Virtual Extension:

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your virtual extension.
- Name: Enter a name you wish to associate with your virtual extension.
- External Number: An external telephone number that will be associated with this virtual extension.
- Extra Dial String: Enter the digits you would like to be dialled after the call is answered.



X

- This feature is useful in the event that the external number points to an auto-attendant (IVR). Acceptable Characters are: 0-9, \*, #, a, A, b, B, c, C, d, D and w (the w is a 0.5 second pause).
- Call Waiting: If set to 'No', this virtual extension will return a busy signal when a call is already in progress.
- Caller ID Type: If set to 'Passthrough', the caller ID will be that specified by the incoming extension. If set to 'Specify', you will have the ability to specify the Caller ID Name as well as the Caller ID Number.
- Time Rule: Select a specific time rule if this virtual extension is only available during certain times. Time Rules are configured in the Phone System menu.
- Closed Destination: If a time rule is set and its status is closed, calls will be sent to the location specified here.
- Record Calls: Checking this box will record all calls directed to this virtual extension. Leaving the box unchecked will not record any call.

| Extension Number<br>4130      |   | Name<br>John's Cell Phone      |   |      |
|-------------------------------|---|--------------------------------|---|------|
| External Number<br>7055551234 |   | Extra Dial String              |   |      |
| Call Waiting<br><b>Yes</b>    | ~ | Caller ID Types<br>Specify     |   | ~    |
| Caller ID Name<br>OFFICE FWD  |   | Caller ID Number<br>7055550000 |   |      |
| Time Rule<br>None             | ~ | Closed Destination<br>None     | ~ | ŵ    |
| Record Calls<br>Yes           | ~ |                                |   |      |
|                               |   | ✓ Save Setti                   |   | Clos |

#### New Virtual Extension 🔗



#### Voicemail

This is where you can control each individual Voicemail extension. Voicemail on the SolSwitch is treated as a standalone feature. Each voicemail is given its own extension number so that it can be used in any way needed. The Voicemail section under Phone System shows a list of all the voicemails on the system. To add a new voicemail box, click the 'Add Mail Box' button. For a more comprehensive understanding of the voicemail layout and all of its options, please see the 'Voicemail' section further in this manual.

#### Adding a Voicemail Box:

- Extension Number: Enter an available extension number for your voicemail. This extension number is the number to dial in order to access the voicemail box directly.
- Mailbox ID: This is typically the actual extension number associated with the voicemail. The mailbox ID is the number dictated by the mailbox system when a user is sent to the mailbox and no greeting has been recorded. This recording reads: "The person at extension XXX is unavailable. Please leave a message after the tone." The mailbox ID is also used when forwarding voicemail messages. When adding a voicemail to an extension, it's highly recommended that the Mailbox ID be the same as the extension you are adding it to.
- Name: Enter a name for your voicemail box; for informational purposes.
- Email: The email address entered here will receive a notification message with the .wav file of the voicemail attached to each email.
- Email Only: Voicemails will be sent to emails but will not be stored locally.
- Email Transcript: A transcript of the voicemail will be included in the voicemail email.
- Passcode: This is a 3 to 7-digit number used to access the voicemail. It cannot start with a 0.
- Force Passcode Change: This option forces the user to change his/her passcode on the next voicemail login.
- Exit Destination: This is where a call will be routed if someone dials '0' during the playback of the voicemail greeting.
- Days Valid: The number of days the voicemail will be automatically deleted. A 0 value will require voicemails to be manually deleted.
- Say Caller ID: If this box is checked, the voicemail recording will be preceded by the caller's Caller ID information.
- Say Date/Time: If this box is checked, the voicemail recording will be preceded by the date and time that the message was left.
- Distribution List: When enabled, any messages left on the voicemail will be distributed to the Notify/Distribution Extensions.



| Extension Number<br>9100                  |   | Mailbox ID<br>100        |   |
|---|---|--------------------------|---|
| Name<br>John's Voicemail                  |   |                          |   |
| <sup>Email</sup><br>john.smith@sunwire.ca |   | Email Only<br>No         | ~ |
| Email Transcript<br><b>Yes</b>            | ~ | Passcode<br>1234         |   |
| Force Passcode Change<br>No               | ~ | Exit Destination<br>None | ŵ |
| Days Valid<br>0                           |   | Say Caller ID<br>Yes     | ~ |
| Say Date/Time<br><b>Yes</b>               | ~ | Distribution List        | ~ |

Save the Voicemail Box by clicking the 'Save Settings' button. Once this is completed, you will be given the option to configure the 'Notify Extensions' section. This section lists which users will receive 'Message Waiting Indicator' notifications on their devices when a voicemail message is left in that particular mailbox.

So(Switch.



### Notify Extensions

| Extension<br>100 - John Smith | ~       | Ŕ | × |
|-------------------------------|---------|---|---|
| Extension                     | ~       | Ŕ | + |
| Save Member S                 | ettings |   |   |

**Listening to Messages:** Once a message is left, a speaker icon will show up beside the mailbox. Click this speaker to view all of the messages that are in the voicemail box. From there you can play, download or delete them.



**Voicemail Greetings:** Use the 3 dots on the right and click Greetings to manage all of the greetings that have been recorded on the voicemail. You can play, upload or delete them.

#### Webchat

When Multi-Channel Queuing is enabled on a queue, all of the chats received by the queue will show up in this section. Sys Admins or users with permission to access Webchat can do so from Webchat under Phone Settings. Extension only users would access Webchat on their extension by clicking on 'Webchat Portal'.

ζ Τ2

| Features          |                 |  |
|-------------------|-----------------|--|
| Feature Profile   | Main            |  |
| Directory Profile | Staff Directory |  |
|                   |                 |  |
| Tools             |                 |  |
|                   | Outbound Fax    |  |
|                   | Webchat Portal  |  |

Once in the webchat portal extension users will see all of the chats assigned to them and any chats that are in MCQ queues that they are a member of. When an MCQ chat is received it will show up as a new chat on the left hand side. If the chat is in bold, the chat is still new and has not been read yet. Sys Admin users or others with access will be able to see all of the chats and all of the queues that have MCQ enabled.

If 'Call Queue' is set to 'Yes' on the queue's MCQ settings, when a new chat is received the phones in the queue will all ring. When the queue is answered that person will be assigned the webchat. The Notification Recording set in the queue will play a default message informing the user that they have been assigned a Multi-Channel message or it can play any other system recording.

The assigned user must reply to the webchat within the number of minutes the Response Timeout has specified inside the queue. If they do not reply, the call will be sent back to the queue to be assigned to the next person unless it's ended by a user. Once a message is replied to, if a response is not received within the number of minutes that the Chat Timeout has set inside the queue then the chat is marked as inactive.

So(Switch



When a chat becomes inactive or is ended then the user who was assigned the chat now has the ability to take another chat or call based on their current Load up to a maximum total Load value of 10. If the Load is set to Low, each chat will have a Load value of 2, Medium has a value of 3 and High has a Load value of 10. Therefore, a user could have 2 Medium Load chats and 2 Low Load chats at once totaling 10. Normal phone calls will always have a Load value of 10. If Fill Load is enabled and a call with a lower load is behind a chat with a higher load, that chat will skip ahead and be filled to the next agent with an available Load for it.

On the left side, you'll see all of the chats and you can filter chats based on what queue they are in or if they are assigned to you. You can also search all of the chats for text that matches the label or the name/number of the person. Label names can be set in the top right to better identify who the contact is.

The ordering of chat placement on the left side is sorted by the following priorities:

- 1. Ongoing VS Completed
- 2. Active VS Inactive
- 3. Unanswered VS Answered
- 4. Date of last message

| Queue View Assigned *       | 17055551234 - Mike Assigned to - John Smith Assign To Me Label   |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Search +                    |  |
|                             | Helio Mike, this is just a friendly reminder that a Surwire technician will be visiting your premises tomorrow morning at 9AM in order to install your equipment. See you soont .) |
| O3:10 PM<br>SMS Chat ended. | Hi there, Sorry - am I able to reschedule? Something has come up and unfortunately, I will not be available.<br>03:07 PM   |
|                             | We can definitely reschedule for you. Does next Thursday at 1PM work? Or Friday at 11AM?<br>You - 03:08 PM   |
|                             | Next Thursday at 1 PM would be great.<br>03:08 PM  |
|                             | Perfect! We've got you locked in for Thursday at 1PM. We look forward to getting your system up and running. Was there anything else I could help you with?<br>You - 03:09 PM      |
|                             | No. That's it, thank you.<br>03:09 PM  |
|                             | Have a great day, Mike. See you next week!<br>You - 03:10 PM   |
|                             | Chat ended.<br>03:10 PM  |
|                             | • •  |
|                             | Send To Queue: Select queue × Transfer Chat: Select User ×   |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



At the bottom of the chat, you can transfer the chat to another user to assign it to them or send the chat to a queue for someone to pick it up.

To initiate a new outgoing SMS message, click on the '+' button beside the search bar. Select the DID you wish to send from, the DID you want to send to as well as the message to send out. You also have the option of automatically assigning the chat to yourself.

Start New SMS Message

| Send From DID<br>17058053888 (General Inqu | Assign To Me<br>Yes | ~ |
|--|---------------------|---|
| n oboooboo (oonerar inqu                   | 100                 |   |
| Send To DID                                |                     |   |
|  |                     |   |
|  |                     |   |
| Message                                    |                     |   |

#### **XMPP** Presence

Allows the SolSwitch to update user status for XMPP servers.

- Server Address: Address of the XMPP server. Use format: http(s)://hostname:port
- Type: Server type being used for XMPP.



- Admin Username: Username of the server's admin account.
- Admin Password: Password of the above account.

# **Call Features**

## Placing a Call

Depending on how you want to place a call, several operations are available.

- To place a simple call, dial the number and then pick up the handset.
- Speakerphone is available by pressing the speakerphone key and then dialling the number.
- Paging is set up on a soft key and activated by pressing the appropriate button.
- Speed dials can be set as programable soft keys on a phone or you can dial O(speed dial entry) as defined in the extensions speed dial settings.
- Soft keys can be set by the phone's web GUI, the settings of the phone (depending on the model) or by the SolSwitch if the device is being provisioned.
- Detailed telephone features that can be set up by the agent are explained in the respective SIP Device's manual.

## Receiving a Call

To receive a call, you must pick up the handset, press answer on a soft key (will use speaker phone if the handset is hung up), or press the speaker-phone button for speaker phone.

## Call Forwarding

Call forwarding allows you to forward calls that are directed directly to a single extension and forward them to another extension or phone number. This feature can be set up in one of two ways.

- 1. Dial \*72. When asked to enter the number to be forwarded to, do so, then press the # key. The system will say "Call forwarding enabled" when done correctly.
  - a. To disable the above call forwarding, simply dial \*73.
- This same call forwarding can also be set up in the web portal under Phone System → Extensions
   → Edit Extension menu. Choose the forwarding method as an internal extension or external phone number. When \*72 or \*73 is dialled, it automatically changes the value in the web portal.



## Recording a Call

You might want to record a call for call quality assurance or confirm the details of a prior discussion. Call Recording is done in one of two ways, depending on how the feature is enabled. In the portal under Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Extensions  $\rightarrow$  Edit Extension:

- Calls are recorded automatically.
- Calls can be recorded on demand with a soft key or by dialling #1. Even in the last 2 seconds of a call, if the record soft key is pressed, it will record the entire call no matter how many transfers may have occurred.
- An email will be sent to an email address you entered in the Edit Extension area and will contain an audio copy of the call.

## Parking a Call

Inbound or outbound calls can be parked (put on public hold) by way of a soft key or by dialling ##. This allows you to pick up the call from any other device on the phone system.

- Park Call-## Parked calls are calls on hold that are available for anyone to pick up.
- Answer Parked (dial lot#) (Lot # is specified in Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Parking Lots)

## Do Not Disturb (DND)

All calls directed to the extension will not ring the extension, but will immediately follow a queue rule. This is activated only on a hard key from the phone.

Do Not Disturb – A hard key on certain phones used to ignore incoming calls. Your inbound calls will follow a previously-configured rule such as forwarding or voicemail.

#### **Roaming Extensions**

This feature allows an agent to log into any phone on the system and carry the extension with them.

- Log out of the existing telephone. Use dial code \*12
- Login to the new phone. Use dial code \*11. When asked to enter your extension number, do so, then press pound. When asked to enter your passcode, do so, then press pound.
- \*13 will tell you the extension you are logged into or if you are not logged on to any extension.



## Login/Logout of Queue

Any extension on the system has the ability to log itself in or out of a queue using the following codes:

- Login: \*16 + (Queue Number) + Dial/Send
- Logout: \*17 + (Queue Number) + Dial/Send

Logging in and out of an extension can only be done remotely if the number performing the login or logout has a virtual extension on the system. In order to achieve this, a call must be placed to an IVR. Once the IVR answers, assuming the call display associated with the number calling is visible and a virtual extension is pointed to that number, then the following commands will achieve the desired result:

- Login: Dial 016 + (Queue Number)
- Logout: Dial 017 + (Queue Number)

In the event that the device you are calling from has its caller ID number blocked and the system isn't aware the device is tied to a virtual extension, the following command must be entered:

- Login: Dial 016 + (Queue Number) + \* + (3-5 digit Virtual Extension)
- Logout: Dial 017 + (Queue Number) + \* + (3-5 digit Virtual Extension)

## Agent Ready/Not Ready

All phones by default are set to Ready, if you would like to set yourself to Not Ready you must dial \*908 and enter a reason code supplied to you by your company. An agent will not receive calls from a queue until his/her phone is set back to Ready. To return to Ready, simply dial \*908 again.

## **Call Monitoring**

This feature is often used to monitor calls on an extension from a managerial level between a caller and an agent and can be useful in training. An extension must have previously been given authorization to use the monitoring feature. To give permission, go to Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Extensions  $\rightarrow$  Click the Extension and navigate to Can Monitor Calls under Miscellaneous Options, select a Monitor Type, then click Save Settings. In some cases, you'll want to exclude extensions from being monitored which is called Privacy Exclusion. This can be done in the Call Options menu. Simply choose the extension you would like to exclude, set Privacy Enabled to Yes then press Save Settings. If supervisors try to monitor an extension



that has Privacy Enabled, they will be prompted that they do not have permission to monitor that extension.

#### Silent Mode

Silent monitoring allows a supervisor to monitor an agent without the agent knowing. The agent or caller will not hear the supervisor. To begin using this feature use the star code \*111. You will be prompted to enter the extension and press #. When you are finished monitoring, simply hang up or the monitor will stop when callers hang up.

#### Coaching Mode

Coaching allows a supervisor to coach agents during a call. When supervisors speak, they will be heard by the agent but not by the caller. To begin using this feature use the star code \*112. You will be prompted to enter an extension and press #. When you are done monitoring, simply hang up or the monitor will stop when callers hang up.

#### Barge-In Mode

Barge-In mode allows a supervisor to barge into a call. This essentially turns the call into a threeway conference. All parties will be heard when they speak. To begin using this feature use the star code \*113. You will be prompted to enter an extension and press #. When you are done, simply hang up or the monitor will stop when callers hang up.

#### Monitor Type: Single Call

This Monitor Type is the default. It allows the person monitoring to listen to an extension until the call ends. Once the call ends, simply hang up or the monitor will stop when the callers hang up.

#### Monitor Type: Continuous Monitoring

This Monitor Type allows the person monitoring to continuously monitor calls on an extension. Once the extension caller hangs up a call, the monitor will be placed on a loop until the extension is in another active call which you'll then be connected to. When you are done monitoring, simply hang up.



#### **Paging Groups**

Telephone-wide intercom and group-specific paging can be set up. For example, if you would like to page only the sales group, that feature is set up here. Soft keys are used to activate this feature, or by dialling a page extension that's set in Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Paging Groups. Page extensions can specify a group of extensions to be paged such as sales, accounting, etc., and only the phones set up in those respective groups will follow their respective rules.

## Anonymous Calling

In the event you want to make a call but do not want to display your identity, dial \*67, wait for a dial tone and dial the number. Your number will not be displayed on the recipient's phone.

## **Call Transfer**

Transfer – A hard key on certain phones used to transfer a call as attended or blind. An Attended transfer allows you to speak to the caller before transferring a call. A Blind transfer will send the call straight to that extension.

Transfer Blind Mitel:

- While on a call, press the transfer button. That places the call on hold.
- Dial the extension or phone number you wish to transfer the call to and then press the transfer key again.

Transfer Attended Mitel:

- While on a call, press the transfer button. That places the call on hold.
- Dial the extension or phone number you wish to transfer the call to and then press the Dial key.
- Once you are finished speaking with the person who you are transferring the call to, press the transfer key again. If they cannot take the call press the drop key over their call and take the call back off of hold.

Transfer Blind Polycom:



- While on a call press the Transfer button. That places the call on hold.
- Press the Blind button.
- Dial the extension or phone number to transfer and press Send to send a call to another phone number or extension.

Transfer Attended Polycom:

- While on a call, press the transfer button.
- Dial the extension or phone number to transfer to and then press send.
- Once you are finished speaking with the person who you are transferring the call to, press the transfer key again. If they cannot take the call press the cancel softkey to take the call back off of hold.

### **Call Conference**

Conference – A hard key or soft key on phones used to allow more than one person to be part of a call.

Mitel Conference:

- While on a call, press the conference button. That places the call on hold.
- Dial the extension or phone number you wish to conference in then press the dial key.
- Once you are speaking with the second party press the conference button again to bring the first party back into the call.
- To remove someone from the conference call highlight their number with the directional keypad then hit the Drop key. You can also press "Leave" to exit the conference and have the call continue for the other participants.

Polycom Conference:

- While on a call, press the conference button.
- Dial the extension or phone number you wish to add to the conference call and then press send. Your current call will be placed on hold while you call that number.
- Once you are speaking with the second party press the conference button again to bring the first party back into the call.
- While on a conference call, you can split the call again by using the Split key which places both calls on hold on your 2 lines. Use the line keys to select the line you want to talk to.



## **Telephone Feature Codes**

By using the dial codes, features can be enabled or disabled.

| Extension Features Codes         | Dial Code      | Soft Key* | Hard Key**     |
|----------------------------------|----------------|-----------|----------------|
| Extension Login                  | *11            | Login     | N/A            |
| Extension Logout                 | *12            | Logout    | N/A            |
| Extension Status                 | *13            | Status    | N/A            |
| Extension Ready (Queue)          | *14            | Ready     | N/A            |
| Extension Not Ready (Queue)      | *15            | Not Rdy   | N/A            |
| Queue Login                      | *16 + Queue    | N/A       | N/A            |
| Queue Logout                     | *17 + Queue    | N/A       | N/A            |
| Queue Forwarding                 | *104 + Ext. #  | N/A       | N/A            |
| Queue Forwarding Toggle          | *104 + Queue # | N/A       | N/A            |
| Extension Login/Logout Toggle    | *904           | In Out    | N/A            |
| Extension Ready/Not Ready Toggle | *908           | Rdy?      | N/A            |
| Access Voicemail system          | *98            | N/A       | Messages       |
| Block name/number per call       | *67+Number     | N/A       | N/A            |
| Call forwarding Enable           | *72            | N/A       | N/A            |
| Call Forwarding Disable          | *73            | N/A       | N/A            |
| Record Call                      | #1             | Record    | N/A            |
| Hold Call (for local phone only) | N/A            | Hold      | Hold           |
| Park Call                        | ##             | Park      | N/A            |
| Answer Parked (dial lot #)       | 50-70          | Park xx   | N/A            |
| Redial                           | N/A            | N/A       | Redial         |
| Do Not Disturb                   | N/A            | N/A       | Do Not Disturb |
| Transfer                         | N/A            | Transfer  | Transfer       |
| Conference                       | N/A            | Conf      | Conference     |
| Intercom Call                    | *22 + Ext      | N/A       | N/A            |
| Remote Call Pickup               | ** + Ext       | N/A       | N/A            |

| Manager Feature Codes            | Dial Code | Soft Key* | Hard Key** |
|----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|------------|
| Call Monitoring                  | *111      | Monitor   | N/A        |
| Call Coaching                    | *112      | Coach     | N/A        |
| Call Barge-in                    | *113      | Barge     | N/A        |
| Record Names for Staff Directory | *88 + Ext |           |            |

| Meet-Me Room Feature Codes                               | Dial Code |
|--|-----------|
| Help Menu: Announces all the * codes and their function. | *1        |



| <b>Reach Operator:</b> When dialled by any participant, they will be redirected from the meet-me room to the local operator as defined in Phone System $\rightarrow$ Miscellaneous Settings.  | *0  |
|---|-----|
| <b>Mute / Un-Mute Self:</b> Toggles the mute/un-mute status of only the person who dialled the * code.  | *6  |
| <b>Participant Count:</b> This option will privately read out the current participant count for the meet-me room. This option is for administrators only.   | *91 |
| <b>Lock / Unlock:</b> This option will lock or unlock the room. This option is for administrators only.   | *94 |
| <b>Mute All Participants:</b> This option will mute all participants, except for other admin users. This option is for administrators only.   | *96 |
| <b>Un-Mute All Participants:</b> This option will unmute all participants. This option is for administrators only.  | *97 |
| <b>Record Call:</b> Dialing *22 during the call will start to record the call in its entirety.<br>Once all participants have left the call, a secure (MD5 hash-based) recording URL<br>will be emailed to the email (addresses) specified in the meet-me room settings. | *22 |
| *Soft keys are programmable and may not show up on all phones   |     |

\*\* Hard key labels may vary between models.

## Speed-Dial Keys

Speed-Dial Keys can be added and managed from your telephone set or through the portal under Phone System  $\rightarrow$  Extensions.

# Voicemail

The SolSwitch includes a voicemail system. Among the features that it offers are:

- Three different types of greetings and the ability to import them as .mp3 or .wav.
- Notification of new messages through email. The notification message may also include an audio file containing the complete message. Or a text transcription of the message if it's included in your package.
- Mailboxes are all password-protected.
- Can optionally allow callers to review and re-record messages.

#### Accessing the Voicemail

Locally:

• From any phone, press the messages key, or dial \*98.



• Alternatively, dial \*98(voicemail extension #) of the voicemail you want to access.

Remotely:

- Call into an IVR and dial the voicemail extension number or call the person's extension and wait for the voicemail to come on.
- Dial \* when the voice prompt begins to handle your call in your voicemail then enter your passcode.



#### **Types of Greetings**

A greeting is intended to let the caller know that you are not able to answer their call. The greeting can also be used to convey other information like when you will be available, other methods to contact you, or other options that the caller can use to receive assistance. The SolSwitch has 3 types of greetings:

#### Busy Greeting

If the SolSwitch thinks that you are on the phone, the caller will hear your "busy" greeting. Your busy greeting can either be a generic message, like:


- The person at extension *number* is on the phone.
- *Recorded name* is on the phone or the busy greeting can be a message that you record.

#### Unavailable Greeting

If the SolSwitch thinks that you are unavailable (e.g. you don't answer the phone or your phone is not connected to the network) the caller will hear your "unavailable" greeting. The unavailable greeting can either be a generic message, like:

- The person at extension *number* is unavailable.
- *Recorded name* is unavailable. Or the unavailable greeting can be a message that you record.

#### Temporary Greeting

You can also record a temporary greeting. A temporary greeting will always be played regardless of your "busy" or "unavailable" status. This could be used, for example, if you are going on vacation and want to inform people not to expect a return call anytime soon, but you do not want to re-record your busy and unavailable greetings when you come back.

### Leaving a Message in a Mailbox

If you are not able to answer a phone call, your administrator may have configured the SolSwitch to allow the caller to record a message that you can listen to later. Depending on how the SolSwitch system was configured, the caller may first hear a greeting and/or some instructions before being allowed to record a message. The process of leaving a message looks like this:

- 1. Play the appropriate greeting. The SolSwitch administrator can control whether a greeting is played or not.
- 2. Play some short instructions. Again, the SolSwitch administrator can control the instructions.
- 3. Play a beep.
- 4. Record the message, and optionally allow the caller to review the message.

While listening to the greeting or the instructions, the caller can press any of the following buttons:

- "#" Skip the rest of the greeting and instructions and immediately begin recording the message.
- "\*" Transfer out of the message recording application. Typically used by the SolSwitch administrator to allow users to access their mailboxes.



• "0" Transfer to an operator.

After the greeting and the instructions have played the caller will hear a beep and then the system will start recording a message. To end the recording, the caller can hang up the phone or press the "#" button.

If the caller hangs up the phone to end the recording, the SolSwitch system will put the message in your "New" folder.

If the caller pressed the "#" button to end the recording the caller will be presented with the following options:

- "0" Transfer to an operator.
- "1" Save the message.
- "2" Review the message.
- "3" Re-record the message.

If the caller presses "1" the message will be placed in your "New" folder. If the user presses "0" the message will be cancelled, and the user will be transferred to the operator that's configured by a SolSwitch Administrator.

### Logging Into your Mailbox

Your phone may have a special button on it that has been configured to allow access to your mailbox. If not, you can access your voicemail by dialling \*98.

To access your voicemail externally simply call your extension and press \* when your voicemail answers. You will be prompted to enter your passcode.

### The First Time You Log In

The first time you log into your mailbox, you may be required to change some settings. In particular, you may be required to:



- Record your name.
- Record your busy greeting.
- Record your unavailable greeting.
- Change your password.

### Voicemail Menu Options

As outlined in the above diagram, each menu within the voicemail system has its own set of commands.

### Main Menu

"1" - Listen to messages in the currently selected folder. If you have any new messages, the "New Messages" folder will be selected. If you have no new messages, the "Old Messages" folder will be selected.

- "3" Greetings.
- "4" Send a Message.
- "0" Mailbox Options.
- "\*" Repeat the menu options.
- "#" Exit from the voicemail system.

#### Greetings

- "1" Record your Greetings.
- "2" Record your Name.
- "3" Listen to Greetings.
- "4" Activate Temporary Greeting.
- "#" Return to Main Menu.

### Mailbox Options

- "1" Change your password.
- "#" Return to Main Menu.

### During Message Playback

- "\*" Rewind the message by 3 seconds.
- "#" Fast forward the message by 3 seconds.
- "0" Pause the message playback. Press '0' again to resume playback.

"345678" - Pressing any of these buttons will halt the playback of the message and perform the corresponding action from the post-playback options.

## Solutions that shine

### After Message Playback

- "3" Advanced options.
- "4" Go to the previous message in the folder.
- "5" Replay the current message.
- "6" Go to the next message in the folder.
- "7" Delete or undelete the message.
- "8" Forward the message to another user on the system.
- "\*"- Replay the prompt.
- "#"- Exit the voicemail system.

#### Advanced Options

"3" - Play the message envelope. The voicemail system will play back the message "envelope". Depending on how the voicemail system has been configured, the message envelope may consist of the following items:

- Position.
- Date and time that the message was received.
- Caller ID information.
- Duration of the message.

Pressing "1" at any time during the playback of the message envelope will skip to the message playback. The voicemail system will then play back the message.

## **SolSwitch Connect**

### Accounts

Configure SSC accounts to set up for phone calls and/or messaging. You can view a Login Report of all accounts and their most recent login, Import or Export contacts and view or add Presence Accounts. Note that each Presence Account will use an available SSC licence. Click 'Add User' to create an account if you have a licence available. Accounts can be deleted by selecting 'Delete' and that will remove them from the server. Selecting 'Delete (Local Only)' will remove the account that's stored locally on the SolSwitch but the account will remain on the SolSwitch Connect server and still function.

- SSC Account Details: Manage all of the settings related to the SolSwitch Connect account.
  - Active: Setting the user to inactive suspends their SolSwitch Connect account.



- o Username: Full username for login will include the domain at the end of the field
- Password: The password log into the SolSwitch Connect account.
- Display Name: This is the name that will show up in other user's rosters.
- Email: When viewing a contact in a roster it will display this email address.
- Messaging: Enable/disable the messaging feature for the account. If enabled, choose the rosters they will participate in.
- Messaging vCard: Set information for the account such as Work/Mobile phone number, Department, and Title.
- Misc Settings: Additional optional settings.
  - SSC Tools: If enabled, it gives the user access to the SSC tools tab in desktop clients.
  - SMS: Allows SMS to be sent and received via the SSC client.
- SIP Settings: Set the SIP accounts and server here for the account to function. SSC can support up to 2 SIP accounts at once. A Line Label must be set for each SIP account to function.
- Incoming Call Routing: Handles how certain calls can be routed.
  - Auto Answer: When enabled, incoming calls will automatically be answered after the specified time.
  - SSC Desktop/Mobile: Enable or disable incoming calls coming directly or through a queue.

# Solutions that shine

| SSC Account Details                               |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
|---|------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-------------------|-------------|
| Active<br>Yes ~                                   |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Usemame *<br>john.smith                           |                        |                      |                 |                   | @sunwire.ca |
| Password *  |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Generate Password                                 |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Display Name *<br>John Smith                      |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Email *<br>john.smith@sunwire.ca                  |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Messaging   |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Enable Messaging: 🔽                               |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Primary Roster.<br>Sunwire                        | ~                      | Other Ros<br>- Choos |                 | èr -              | * +         |
| Messaging vCard                                   |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Work Telephone<br>7055216777                      |                        | Mobile Te<br>705555  | lephone<br>1234 |                   |             |
| Department  |                        | Title                |                 |                   |             |
| Misc Settings<br>Enable SSC Tools:<br>Enable SMS: |                        | Enable Co            |                 |                   |             |
| SMS Number  |                        | Conferen             | ce Numi         | bar               |             |
| SIP Settings                                      |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| SIP Server.<br>- Choose SIP Server -              | *                      |                      |                 |                   |             |
| Line Label #1<br>Extension 100                    | SIP Account #1<br>None |                      | ŵ               | VM Dial #1<br>*98 |             |
| Line Label #2                                     | SIP Account #2<br>None |                      | ŵ               | VM Dial #2        |             |
| Incoming Call Routing<br>Enable Auto Answer:      |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| SIP Device  |                        | Direct (             | Calls           |                   | Queue       |
| SSC Desktop:                                      |                        |                      |                 |                   |             |
| SSC Mobile:                                       |                        | <b>~</b>             |                 |                   |             |
|   |                        |                      | 1               | Save Setting      | s X Close   |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



 $\sim$ 

**Exporting SSC Accounts to CSV:** There is an option to export all existing SSC accounts located on the list SSC Accounts page, which allows a user to import the CSV to another system or customer.

**Note:** Passwords cannot be exported so that field will be left blank. To import this information, a password must be provided manually in the CSV.

**Importing SSC Accounts from CSV:** To mass import SSC Accounts, along with Roster Groups. Simply download the CSV template from the SSC Accounts CSV Import page. Fill it out accordingly and upload it back to the system. Below is a list of each column of the CSV file and what information is held in the field.

| Choose File   | No file chosen  |    |
|---|---|----|
| Please download   | the CSV template to fill out and upload back using the form above.  |    |
| Note: The CSV file  | must have the header line as this tool will always skip the first line in the uploaded file.  |    |
| The CSV file has s  | ome requirements on it listed below:  |    |
| <ul> <li>Column D is requ</li> <li>Column E is requ</li> <li>Column F is option</li> <li>Column G is required</li> <li>Column H is option</li> <li>Column I is option</li> <li>Column J is option</li> <li>Column K is option</li> <li>Column K is option</li> <li>Column M is option</li> <li>Column N is option</li></ul> | uired - Type (Must be either 'User' or 'Presence')<br>uired - Display Name<br>uired (If 'User' account type) - Email<br>onal - Enable Messaging (0 for NO, 1 for YES)(default: 0)<br>uired (If 'Presence' account type) - Work Telephone<br>ional - Mobile Telephone<br>onal - Department |    |
|   | Upload X Clo  | se |

Import SSC Accounts

**Note:** The CSV file <u>must</u> have the header line. The tool will always skip the first line of the CSV file.



### SolSwitch Connect Download

A list of downloadable SSC clients for various platforms including Windows, Mac, Android and iOS.

### SolSwitch Connect Rosters

Manage rosters for SSC. These function as a space where members of the roster can communicate with each other via private messaging or chat rooms. Contacts may also be manually added to Rosters as Common Contacts. A JID is required for each Common Contact for it to be displayed in SSC. JIDs follow the same format as an SSC Username: name@group The JID domain name must match the group name. Connon Contacts also require a Display Name, and either a Work Telephone, Extension or Mobile Telephone.

# Reporting

### **Call Detail Records**

Perhaps one of the more powerful reporting tools on the SolSwitch for general call information, the Call Detail Records shows a breakdown of all the calls on the system during the specified period. Additional search fields are available and include inbound and outbound calls, extension or routing type and offer an overview of which agents are taking calls from the queue, or which calls went to voicemail. There is also an option to select a Report Type to show recording calls only, which will only show calls that were recorded on the system as well as an option to see each leg of the call.

CDR Search

| 2024-04-15 00:00 - 2024-04-15 23:59 |                          | Call ID  |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|--|
| Source Name/#                       | Dest Name/#              | Connect Time<br>End Time<br>V Duration               |
| Search On<br>None                   | Reason Code<br>None      | Source Name Source Number Destination Name           |
| Call ID                             | Report Type<br>All Calls | Destination Number     Dialed Number     Disposition |
|                                     | Search Reset Filters     |  |

Once the search results are displayed, you will have the option to export the results to a CSV file for further processing by clicking on the blue down arrow. If there is a recording of a particular call, a small microphone will be displayed next to that call. For more details regarding the call, simply click on the call.



| Call Detail Rec | ords 生              |          |             |                 |               |   |
|-----------------|---------------------|----------|-------------|-----------------|---------------|---|
| 🕆 CALL ID       | START TIME          |          | SOURCE NAME | © SOURCE NUMBER | DIALED NUMBER |   |
| 9               | 2024-04-15 11:58:20 | 00:00:24 | John Smith  | 100             | 7055216777    | Q |

Clicking the call will display details such as when the call was initiated, where the call was routed, who answered it, as well as who ended it. If the call passes through specific IVRs or Queues, it will all be displayed. This is also where you can playback or save call recordings.

| Call ID 9                 |                                    |          |          |     |                 |     | $\times$ |
|---------------------------|------------------------------------|----------|----------|-----|-----------------|-----|----------|
| Filter                    |                                    |          |          |     |                 |     |          |
| TIME                      | ACTION                             | RESULT   | DURATION |     |                 |     |          |
| 2024-04-15 11:58:20       | John Smith (100) called 7055216777 | Routed   |          | Γ   |                 |     |          |
| 2024-04-15 11:58:20       | Calling 7055216777 on trunk SBC5   | Answered | 00:00:24 | ⊿ 🛓 | ▶ 0:00 / 0:23 = | •   | <b>T</b> |
| 2024-04-15 11:58:44       | Call ended by John Smith (100)     | Ended    |          | Γ   |                 |     |          |
| Showing 1 to 3 of 3 entri | es                                 |          |          |     | Show: 50 🗸      | < 1 |          |
|                           |                                    |          |          |     |                 |     | Close    |

### **Call Report Builder**

The Call Report Builder is similar to the Call Detail Records although it allows you to customize the type of CDR report you would like. Your custom reports can also be saved in the system for future use. Creating a report is as simple as entering a date range, checking off which columns to include in the report as well as adding optional filter(s) and choosing how to sort the report. To save a report, simply enter a Name for the report at the bottom of the page and click the '+' button. Saved reports will be displayed in the dropdown menu for future use. Clicking the 'Search' button will display the results on the screen. To download a file of the report, click the square button with 9 dots.

# So(Switch

# Solutions that shine

| Call Report Builder                 |                          |                           |                |                |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------|----------------|----------------|
| 2024-04-15 00:00 - 2024-04-15 23:59 |                          | 1-0-0-<br>1-0000<br>80000 |                |                |
| Columns to include                  |                          |                           |                |                |
| Leg ID                              | Source Type              |                           | Dest. ID       | Dialed Number  |
| Call ID                             | Source ID                |                           | Dest. Name     | Terminate Side |
| Server ID                           | Source Name              |                           | Dest. Number   | Exit Dialed    |
| Start Time                          | Source Number            |                           | Dest. Channel  | Global Record  |
| Connect Time                        | Source Channel           |                           | Dest. Trunk ID | Recording Name |
| End Time                            | Source Record            |                           | Dest. Record   | Call Length    |
| Day of the Week                     | Source Privacy           |                           | Dest. Privacy  | Disposition    |
| Dest. Type                          |                          |                           |                |                |
| Filter(s)                           |                          |                           |                |                |
| Add Filter                          |                          |                           |                |                |
| Sort By                             |                          |                           |                |                |
| Column<br>None ~                    | Sort Direction Ascending | ~                         |                |                |
| Save & Load Report                  |                          |                           |                |                |
| Saved Report Vone                   | Report Name              | +                         |                |                |
|                                     |                          | Search                    | Reset Filters  |                |

### **Current Calls**

The current calls screen displays all active calls currently in place on the system or just the current customer if the system has a Multi-Tenant licence. Each active call has data concerning the source, direction, destination, duration, source channel, destination channel as well as the ability to hang up the call. Only current active calls are displayed here.

| Current Calls     |             |            |          |                         |                   |              |
|-------------------|-------------|------------|----------|-------------------------|-------------------|--------------|
|                   |             |            |          | © SOURCE CHANNEL        |                   | HANG UP      |
| 100               | Outbound    | 7055216777 | 00:00:09 | SIP/JustinDesk-0001f9c1 | SIP/SBC5-0001f9c2 | ,20          |
| Showing 1 to 1 of | f 1 entries |            |          |                         | Sh                | ow: 50 🗸 🗌 🖓 |

## **Extension Time Report**

This page gives a detailed summary report of all calls sorted by extension for any specified time period. An example report would be the following:



| Extension Time Search               |   |                                      |        |   |
|-------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|--------|---|
| 2024-04-15 00:00 - 2024-04-15 23:59 |   |                                      | Î      | <ul> <li>Extension</li> <li>Inbound Calls</li> </ul>  |
| Display Type:<br>Totals             | ~ | With Calls Only:<br>Yes              | ~      | <ul> <li>Inbound Time</li> <li>Outbound Calls</li> <li>Outbound Time</li> </ul>   |
| Extension Filters                   | ~ | Queue Filters                        | $\sim$ | ✓ Total Calls ✓ Total Call Time   |
|                                     |   |                                      |        | <ul> <li>Avg Handle Time</li> <li>Avg Answer Time</li> <li>Wrap-Up Time</li> <li>Avg Wrap-Up Time</li> <li>Logged-in Time</li> <li>Logged-out Time</li> <li>Time Not Ready</li> <li>Time Ready</li> </ul> |
|                                     |   | Search Create Schedule Reset Filters |        |   |

The results would return:

- Total Inbound Calls & Total Time on Inbound Calls
- Total Outbound Calls & Total Time on Outbound Calls
- Total Calls & Total Call Time
- Total & Average Wrap-Up Time
- **Total Log-In Time and Log Out Time** (Returns the total amount of time the extension was logged in for or logged out for).
- Total Break Time (Returns the length of time agents were on break)
- Total Time Ready (Returns the total length of time agents were available for a call).

### Live Agent Stats

The Live Agent Stats page shows live details for specific agents (extensions). The following statistics are shown for each agent:

- 1. Inbound Calls
- 2. Outbound Calls
- 3. Total Calls
- 4. Average Handle Time (Average time spent on calls)
- 5. Average time to Answer
- 6. Service Level (Based on service level of queues that the agent is a part of)

| Live Age | nt Stats<br>porting / Live Agent Stats |               |                |             |                 |                    |                             |
|----------|--|---------------|----------------|-------------|-----------------|--------------------|-----------------------------|
| Chang    | e Agents                               |               |                |             |                 | Last Ref           | resh: 02:49:43pm 2024/04/15 |
| EXT      | NAME                                   | INBOUND CALLS | OUTBOUND CALLS | TOTAL CALLS | AVG HANDLE TIME | AVG TIME TO ANSWER | SERVICE LEVEL               |
| 100      | John Smith                             | 0             | 10             | 10          | 00:00:05        | 00:00:00           | NA                          |



### Live Queue Stats

The Live Queue Stats page will show you live details for all queues, agents and current calls. Queue Statistics include information for each queue relating to:

- 1. Calls
- 2. Callbacks
- 3. Available Agents
- 4. Answered
- 5. Abandoned
- 6. Waiting Time
- 7. Estimated Wait Time
- 8. Voicemails
- 9. Service Level
- 10. Chats
- 11. Chats Assigned

Queue Member Status shows the last updated time, a list of extensions as well as what queue(s) that extension belongs to, it's current status, if the status is on the phone, which queue the call came from as well as the duration of the call if one exists. In addition, you are able to change what queue stats to display, whether all or some of the queues.

|         | IE Stats<br>rting / Live Queue Stats |       |           |               |                |           |           |                |              |                        |
|---------|--------------------------------------|-------|-----------|---------------|----------------|-----------|-----------|----------------|--------------|------------------------|
| Change  | Queues                               |       |           |               |                |           |           |                | Last Refresh | ı: 03:00:28pm 2024/04, |
| EXT     | QUEUE                                | CALLS | CALLBACKS | AVAIL. AGENTS | ANSWERED       | ABANDONED | WAIT TIME | EST. WAIT TIME | VOICEMAIL    | SERVICE LEVEL          |
| 1234    | Test Queue                           | 0     | 0         | 1             | 0              | 0         | 00:00:00  | 00:00:00       | 0            | 0                      |
| Queue N | Members                              |       |           |               |                |           |           |                |              |                        |
| NAME    |                                      | QUEU  | IES       |               | STATUS         |           | QUEUE/NUI | MBER           | DURATION     | UPDATE                 |
| 100 108 | nn Smith                             | Tost  | Queue     |               | On Call (Outbo | und)      | 70552167  | 77             | 00:00:22     | 0                      |

### Live Stats Report

The Live Stats report shows the last updated time and live details for all or select queues. Stats are split into two sections the Queue Statistics, and the current agent status. We are able to see the call taken and missed by the agents in addition to the overall taken/missed calls of the queues.

## Solutions that shine

| Select Q<br>5007 - |    |    |    |    | ~      |        |    |           |       |        |          |           |          |   |   |                   | La | st Refresh: | 11-39-25am | 1 2024/10/ |
|--------------------|----|----|----|----|--------|--------|----|-----------|-------|--------|----------|-----------|----------|---|---|-------------------|----|-------------|------------|------------|
| QUEUE              | QD | AN | AB | VM | AN %   | AB %   | SL | CURR WAIT | CALLS | AGENTS | ,        | WAIT TIME |          |   |   | BACKS<br>MISS / V |    | I           | TALK TIME  |            |
| Sales              | 12 | 10 | 2  | 0  | 83.33% | 16.67% | 30 | 00:01:37  | 1     | 2      | 00:00:02 | 00:02:05  | 00:00:46 | 1 | 1 | 0                 | 0  | 00:00:12    | 00:01:57   | 00:00:43   |
| TOTAL              | 12 | 10 | 2  | 0  | 83.33% | 16.67% | 30 | 00:01:37  | 1     | 2      | 00:00:02 | 00:02:05  | 00:00:46 | 1 | 1 | 0                 | 0  | 00:00:12    | 00:01:57   | 00:00:43   |

**Queue Members** 

| AGENT       | QUEUES         | EXT | STATUS    | DURATION |   | CALLS<br>MISS | OUT. CALLS | CALLBACKS | LOG. ON  | AVAIL.   |          | N CALLS  | WRAP-UP  | BREAK    |
|-------------|----------------|-----|-----------|----------|---|---------------|------------|-----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| Bruce Wayne | Service, Sales | 668 | Available | 00:00:00 | 0 | 14            | 0          | 0         | 11:39:25 | 11:39:25 | 00:00:00 | 00:00:00 | 00:00:00 | 00:00:00 |
| Johnny Depp | Sales          | 123 | On Call   | 00:01:50 | 8 | 4             | 0          | 1         | 11:39:25 | 11:34:02 | 00:05:23 | 00:00:00 | 00:00:00 | 00:00:00 |

### Multichannel Messages

All activity in the webchat portal is recorded and can be found with the Multichannel Log Search. Start by selecting a time frame to search for multichannel logs. You can also specify the Session ID, search any text in the Message, if the Direction was incoming or outgoing, the user that sent the message and the Handler is the type of chat either SMS, Webchat, Facebook or an API.

| Multicha         | nnel Log Search          |          |          |       |                         |                                    |   |                             |  |
|------------------|--------------------------|----------|----------|-------|-------------------------|------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|--|
| 2024-07          | -05 09:19 - 2024-07-05 ( | 09:30    |          |       |                         |                                    |   |                             | Session ID   |
| Session ID       |                          |          |          |       |                         | Message                            |   |                             | ♥ User<br>♥ Direction<br>♥ Handler                       |
| Direction<br>Any |                          |          |          | •     | User                    |                                    | Handler<br>Any                          | ~                           | Vessage  |
|                  |                          |          |          |       |                         | Search                             | Reset Filters                           |                             |  |
| Multiple av      | and Lan Davida           |          |          |       |                         |                                    |   |                             |  |
| Multichai        | nnel Log Results 👤       |          |          |       |                         |                                    |   |                             |  |
| Session ID       | TIMESTAMP                | USER     |          | HANDU | ER MESSAGE              |                                    |   |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:19:00      | sunwire  | Outgoing |       | Hello Mike, this is ju  | st a friendly reminder that a Sun  | wire technician will be visiting your p | premises tomorrow morning   | at 9AM in order to install your equipment. See you soon! |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:19:00      | System   | Incoming |       | Chat assigned to new us | ser                                |   |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:19:00      | System   | Incoming |       | Start of chat history   |                                    |   |                             |  |
| 92               | 2024-07-05 09:19:00      | System   | Outgoing |       | Chat ended.             |                                    |   |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:21:00      | Customer | Incoming |       | Hi there. Sorry - am I  | able to reschedule? Something ha   | s come up and unfortunately, I will no  | t be available.             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:21:00      | sunwire  | Outgoing |       | We can definitely resch | hedule for you. Does next Thursday | y at 1PM work? Or Friday at 11AM?       |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:22:00      | Customer | Incoming |       | Next Thursday at 1 PM a | would be great.                    |   |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:22:00      | sunwire  | Outgoing |       | Perfect! We've got you  | locked in for Thursday at 1PM. W   | e look forward to getting your system ( | up and running. Was there a | anything else I could help with?                         |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:22:00      | Customer | Incoming |       | No. That's it, thank yo | ou.                                |   |                             |  |
| 522              | 2024-07-05 09:22:00      | sunwire  | Outgoing |       | Have a great day, Mike. | . See you next week!               |   |                             |  |
| Showing 1 t      | to 10 of 10 entries      |          |          |       |                         |                                    |   |                             | Show: 50 $\checkmark$ $<$ 1 $>$                          |



### Queue Agent Busy Report

This page gives a detailed report of busy reason codes by an agent. This report can be filtered by queue (one, multiple or all), by agent (one, multiple or all) or by reason code (one, multiple or all). Based on these filters, the display of the report can be grouped by day or by queue.

| Busy Reason Search  |                                     |                                      |                        |   |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------|---|
|                     | 2024-04-17 00:00 - 2024-04-17 23:59 |                                      | 10-0<br>11111<br>11111 |   |
| Extension Filters   | ✓ Queue Filters                     | ✓ Reason Filters                     | Croup By<br>Queue      | ~ |
|                     |                                     | Search Create Schedule Reset Filters |                        |   |
|                     |                                     |                                      |                        |   |
| Busy Reason Records |                                     |                                      |                        |   |
| Billing             | ≑ #30 - Break                       | ‡ #40 - Lunch                        | 🔶 Total/Time           |   |
| John Smith          | 1 / 00:14:51                        | 0 / 00:00:00                         | 1 / 00:14:51           |   |
| Jane Doe            | 0 / 00:00:00                        | 1 / 00:29:31                         | 1/00:29:31             |   |
| Totals              | 1 / 00:14:51                        | 1 / 00:29:31                         | 2/00:44:22             |   |

### **Queue Alerts**

The Queue Alerts page allows the configuration of alerts that can be sent based on queue statistics. These alerts are checked every minute on the system, and if any of the items are over the set limit on this page an email will be sent to the specified email(s). The page allows for the creation of multiple 'Alert Groups' for the same queue, meaning that different thresholds and emails can be set for the same queue. The Notify Interval can also be set, which limits how often emails will be sent.

| Extension Details  |  |                        |                                |  |
|--|--|------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
|  |  |                        |                                |  |
| Queue<br>1000 - Sales  | ~  | Alert Group<br>Group 1 |                                |  |
| Group Details  |  |                        |                                |  |
| Group Name<br>Group 1  | Notify Email(s)<br>example@sunwire.ca  |                        | Notify Interval (minutes)<br>1 |  |
| Notifications  |  |                        |                                |  |
| * Notfications will be sent when the limits below are reader | ched or passed. A value of 0 will cause no notifications to be sent for that ite | em.                    |                                |  |
| Wait Time (seconds)<br>60                                    | Calls in Queue<br>2  |                        | Callbacks in Queue<br>2        |  |
| Abandon Rate<br>25   | Talk Time (seconds)<br>300   |                        | Busy Reason Codes: O Yes O No  |  |



### Queue Call Breakdown

A historical report of inbound calls answered and inbound calls abandoned (Inbound calls that hang up before being answered). These stats also display a percentage of service level (S/L). This stat represents the ratio of abandoned calls to completed calls. The S/L Calls number displays the total calls that were answered within the service level time.

### Queue Call Reason Report

This page can be filtered by start date/time, end date/time, queue (one, multiple or all), agent (one, multiple or all) or by reason code (one, multiple or all). Based on these filters, the display of the report can be grouped by day or by queue.

| Queue Call Reason R<br>ashboard / Reporting / Queue Call Rec |                |                       |                        |               |   |                            |   |
|--|----------------|-----------------------|------------------------|---------------|---|----------------------------|---|
| Call Reason Search   |                |                       |                        |               |   |                            |   |
|  | 2024-04-17 00: | 00 - 2024-04-17 23:59 |                        |               |   | (1-0)<br>(1000)            |   |
| Extension Filters  | ~              | Queue Filters         | ✓ Reason F             | ilters        | ~ | Group By<br>Queue          | ~ |
|  |                |                       | Search Create Schedule | Reset Filters |   |                            |   |
|  |                |                       |                        |               |   |                            |   |
| Call Reason Records<br>Sales                                 |                |                       |                        |               |   |                            |   |
| 🕆 Agent  | Inquiring      | Booking               | Wrong Department       | 🕆 Unknown     |   | 🕆 Total Calls / Total Time |   |
| John Smith   | 1/00:02:32     | 1/00:04:35            | 1/00:00:28             | 1/00:03:14    |   | 4 / 00:10:49               |   |
| Jane Doe   | 2 / 00:02:06   | 1/00:02:50            | 2 / 00:01:10           | 0 / 00:00:00  |   | 5 / 00:06:06               |   |
| Total  | 3 / 00:04:38   | 2/00:07:25            | 3 / 00:01:38           | 1/00:03:14    |   | 9 / 00:16:55               |   |

## Queue Callback Details

Here you can manage all of the callbacks that were requested on any queue. You see the queue that the callback is in, cancel the callback or see how many callback attempts are remaining.

| QUEUE               |            | ATTEMPTS REMAINING | NEXT ATTEMPT / STATUS | CANCEL     |
|---------------------|------------|--------------------|-----------------------|------------|
| Billing             | 7055551234 | 1                  | In Queue              | çığı       |
| Sales               | 7055554321 | 1                  | In Queue              | ŞØ         |
| Tier 2 Test         | 7055216777 | 1                  | In Queue              | ŞØ         |
| Showing 1 to 3 of 3 | entries    |                    | Show:                 | 50 🗸 < 1 🗦 |



### **Queue Graphs**

This report generates a graph which represents queue activity between selected dates and times. The report will show the number of calls that were waiting in a queue as well as the number of calls that were spent talking in a queue. Below is a sample report:



### Queue Service Level Report

This page allows a user to pull a report between two dates and filter by selecting queues answer/abandoned calls, then displays that pulled record to see all the answered and/or missed calls.

| Queue SL   | . Search   |             |          |            |              |                 |           |   |   |                   |
|--|--|-------------|----------|------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------|---|---|-------------------|
| 2024-04-   | 17 00:00 - 2024-0  | 04-17 23:59 |          |            |              |                 |           | 01318   | <ul> <li>Queue</li> <li>Calls Abandone</li> </ul> | d <= 30 secs      |
| Oueue Filters     Call Records:       Image: Constraint of the second sec |  |             |          |            |              |                 |           | <ul> <li>Calls Abandoned &gt; 30 secs</li> <li>Calls Abandoned</li> <li>% of NET Abandoned</li> <li>Calls Answered Within S/L</li> <li>Calls Answered After S/L</li> <li>Calls Answered</li> <li>Total Calls</li> <li>Avg. Wait Time</li> </ul> |   |                   |
| Queue SL   | <ul> <li>✓ Avg. Wait Time</li> <li>✓ Service Level</li> <li>✓ Service Level</li> <li>Queue SL Records</li> </ul> |             |          |            |              |                 |           |   |   |                   |
|  |  |             |          |            |              |                 |           |   |   | 000<br>000<br>000 |
|  | ⇔ AB <= 30S  | 🕆 AB > 30S  | CALLS AB | 🕆 % NET AB | 🕆 ANS IN S/L | + ANS AFTER S/L | CALLS ANS | TOTAL CALLS   |   | S/L               |
| Billing  | 0  | 0           | 0        | 0.0%       | 0            | 0               | 0         | 0   | Os  | 0.0%              |
| Sales  | 2  | 0           | 2        | 0.0%       | 0            | 9               | 9         | 11  | 5s  | 0.0%              |
| Service  | 2  | 0           | 2        | 0.0%       | 0            | 2               | 2         | 4   | 14s   | 0.0%              |
| All Calls  | 26.7%  | 0.0%        | 4        | 26.7%      | 0.0%         | 100.0%          | 11        | 15  | 7s  | -                 |

Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries



000

888

#### Answered Calls

| ↓ DATE/TIME         | 🗧 CALLER INFO                     |         |    | 🕆 WAIT TIME | 🗍 S/L MET |
|---------------------|-----------------------------------|---------|----|-------------|-----------|
| 2024-04-17 16:04:53 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 90 | 00:00:01    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 16:03:16 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 86 | 00:00:01    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:59:33 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 82 | 00:00:02    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:54:53 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 78 | 00:00:02    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:50:53 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 74 | 00:00:02    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:38:36 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 70 | 00:00:03    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:16:08 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Sales   | 66 | 00:00:03    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:05:26 | SUNWIRE <7055216777>              | Service | 31 | 00:00:12    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 15:00:52 | Anonymous <anonymous></anonymous> | Service | 27 | 00:00:04    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 14:54:47 | Anonymous <anonymous></anonymous> | Sales   | 23 | 00:00:04    | No        |
| 2024-04-17 13:16:12 | Anonymous <anonymous></anonymous> | Sales   | 19 | 00:00:01    | No        |

Showing 1 to 11 of 11 entries

#### Abandoned Calls

| → DATE/TIME     → | CALLER INFO                 | 🕆 QUEUE | 🕆 CALL ID | 🗘 WAIT TIME | ≑ Q > 30 |
|---|-----------------------------|---------|-----------|-------------|----------|
| 2024-04-17 15:13:25   | SUNWIRE <7055216777>        | Sales   | 58        | 00:00:13    | No       |
| 2024-04-17 15:12:46   | SUNWIRE <7055216777>        | Service | 45        | 00:00:23    | No       |
| 2024-04-17 15:12:04   | SUNWIRE <7055216777>        | Service | 37        | 00:00:15    | No       |
| 2024-04-17 11:50:53   | UNKNOWN <unknown></unknown> | Sales   | 12        | 00:00:18    | No       |

Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries

### Scheduled Reporting

The scheduled reporting page allows select reports to be set to run at regular intervals. The report will automatically run on the select day/time, for the selected time range, and the results of the report will be sent via email.

The initial page shows currently scheduled reports, their next run time, and gives the option to Add, Edit, Disable and Delete reports.

| Q Search                        |                            | Select Report Type V Schedule Re | eport |
|---------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------------|-------|
| ≜ NAME                          | © REPORT                   | I NEXT RUN TIME                  |       |
| Daily totals for previous month | Extension Time Report      | 2024-09-01 00:00:00              | ÷     |
| T1 Monthly SL Report            | Queue Service Level Report | 2024-09-01 00:00:00              | ÷     |
| Tier 1 Daily Reports            | Extension Time Report      | 2024-08-11 23:00:00              | :     |
| Tier 2 Monthly Report           | Queue Service Level Report | 2024-09-01 00:00:00              | ÷     |
| Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries     |                            | Show: 15 🗸 🚺                     | 1 >   |
| : Selected Items                |                            |                                  |       |

## Solutions that shine

To add a report, select report type then Schedule Report. You can also go directly to the report in question and click Create Schedule. Once a Schedule is created it will show the details page that allows the user to set up a wide range of options for when and how the report should run. The following options are available on this page:

- Enabled: This allows the report to be disabled or enabled at any time.
- Schedule Name: Name for the report, used to identify the reports on the initial page as well as when the results are emailed.
- Email Results To: The email accounts that should receive the results. Multiple email accounts can be added by separating them with a comma.
- Run Report: When the report should run. This has the following options:
  - Weekly: Run the report every week on the selected day and time.
  - $\circ$   $\;$  Monthly: Run the report every month on the selected day and time.
  - Number of Days: Run the report with a set interval of days, set by the frequency. Ie if the frequency is set to 60, the report will run every 60 days at the selected time.
- Time to Run: This specifies what time the report will generate and send an email.
- Time Span: The span of time that the report should cover when it runs. The following options are available:
  - Previous Weekdays: Allows selection of specific days of the week. The report will run on each of those days individually, using the set time frame if the report has the option for times.
  - Previous Week: The report will run for the previous 7 days.
  - Previous Month: The report will run for the previous calendar month. Ie, if the report is run at any point during May with Previous Month selected, the report will run for the full month of April.
  - Previous Number of Days: The report will run for a previous set number of days, starting from the previous day.

## Solutions that shine

### Schedule Extension Time Report

| Yes               |                            |          |              |   |
|-------------------|----------------------------|----------|--------------|---|
|                   | le Name<br>otals for previ | ous week |              |   |
|                   | esults To<br>uling@sunwir  | e.ca     |              |   |
| Run Rep<br>Weekly |                            |          |              | ~ |
| Day Of<br>Monda   | The Week<br>I <b>Y</b>     |          |              | ~ |
| Time To<br>09:00  | Run                        |          |              | ~ |
| Time Sp<br>Previo | oan<br>us Week             |          |              | ~ |
| rom:              | Hour<br>00                 | ~        | Minute<br>00 | ~ |
| ō:                | Hour<br>23                 | ~        | Minute<br>59 | ~ |
|                   |                            |          | _            |   |

### **SIP Ping Monitor Report**

This feature generates a graph which represents SIP account activity between selected dates and times. It will display, in milliseconds, the Packet Loss, Ping response and when a SIP account was offline. To use this tool 'Ping Monitoring' needs to be enabled on the SIP account.

## Solutions that shine



### SMS Log

If your SolSwitch has SMS enabled on DIDs, you can view all of the messages that have been sent and received on them. You can search using the number, SMS ID and also any text in the message itself.

#### SMS Log Search

| SMS ID       Satus       Satus       Any         Message       Direction       Direction       Direction         Source Number       Destination Number       Destination Number         SMS Log Results          Search       Reset Filters         SMS Log Results             Status               Status <t< th=""><th>(1000)<br/>1011</th><th>SMS ID</th></t<>  | (1000)<br>1011                        | SMS ID  |
|--|---------------------------------------|---|
| Any           Source Number         Destination Number           Search         Reset Filters           SMS Log Results         TIMESTAMP         FROM         TO         Direction         Status           SMSID         TIMESTAMP         FROM         TO         Direction         Status           SMSID         Q24-07-05 09:22:59         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           G68713930164f         Q24-07-05 09:22:70         17055216777         Treev         N/A           G68713827adda         Q24-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         send         OK   | ~                                     | <ul> <li>From</li> <li>To</li> <li>Direction</li> </ul> |
| SMS Log Results         TIMESTAMP         FROM         TO         DIRECTION         STATUS           6687/33375925         2024-07-05 09:22:59         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687/3339164f         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687/3329164f         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687/3329164f         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17058064909         send         OK           6687/3329164f         2024-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         send         OK | ~                                     | <ul> <li>Status</li> <li>Message</li> </ul>             |
| SMS Log Results         TIMESTAMP         FROM         TO         DIRECTION         STATUS           668713b375925         2024-07-05 09:22:59         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           668713b30164f         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A           668713b3276d2a         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17058064909         send         OK           668713b3276d2a         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17058064909         send         OK  |                                       |   |
| SMS ID         TIMESTAMP         FROM         TO         DIRECTION         STATUS           6687/35375925         2024-07-05 09:22:59         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687/36396605         2024-07-05 09:22:50         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A           6687/3639164f         2024-07-05 09:22:27         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687/3839164f         2024-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A  |                                       |   |
| 668773b375925         2024-07-05 09:22:59         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           668773b3016df         2024-07-05 09:22:50         17055064909         17055216777         recv         N/A           668773b3016df         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17055016777         17058064909         send         OK           668773b327adda         2024-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A   |                                       |   |
| 6687f389d60d5         2024-07-05 09:22:50         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A           6687f389d60d5         2024-07-05 09:22:50         17055216777         17055216777         recv         N/A           6687f3892d64         2024-07-05 09:22:70         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A           6687f3827adda         2024-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A   | MESSAGE                               |   |
| 6687f3930164f         2024-07-05 09:22:27         17055216777         17058064909         send         OK           6687f3827adda         2024-07-05 09:22:10         17058064909         17055216777         recv         N/A   | Have a great day, Mike. See you r     | next week!  |
| 6687f3827adda 2024-07-05 09:22:10 17058064909 17055216777 recv N/A   | No. That's it, thank you.             |   |
|  | Perfect! We've got you locked in f    | for Thursday at 1PM. We loc                             |
| 6687f34a7a70d 2024-07-05 09:21:14 17055216777 17058064909 send OK  | Next Thursday at 1 PM would be        | great.  |
|  | We can definitely reschedule for      | you. Does next Thursday at                              |
| 6687f33eec5c2 2024-07-05 09:21:03 17058064909 17055216777 recv N/A   | Hi there. Sorry - am I able to resc   | hedule? Something has co                                |
| 6687f2e1592fc 2024-07-05 09:19:29 17055216777 17058064909 send OK  | Hello Mike, this is just a friendly r | eminder that a Sunwire tech                             |



### Survey and IVR Reports

Whenever a call is sent to an IVR or Survey, all of the options the caller selects are recorded. Select a time frame and an IVR or Survey to view what options were chosen during the time frame. You can also search for specific Call IDs or filter out certain extensions or queues.

| Survey and IVR Se | earch                                |  |             |                   |                |                |  |
|-------------------|--------------------------------------|--|-------------|-------------------|----------------|----------------|--|
|                   | Timeframe 2024-10-10 00:00 -         | Timeframe<br>2024-10-10 00:00 - 2024-10-10 23:59 |             |                   |                |                |  |
|                   | Survey / IVR Name<br>Survey (Survey) |  |             | ∽ Call ID         |                |                |  |
|                   | Extension Filters                    |  | $\sim$      | Queue Filters     | $\sim$         |                |  |
|                   |                                      |  | Load Report | Reset Filters     |                |                |  |
|                   |                                      |  |             |                   |                |                |  |
| SURVEY NAME       | OPTION #1                            | OPTION #2  | OPTION      | N#3 OPTION#4      | OPTION #5      | TOTAL ANSWERED |  |
| Survey            |                                      |  |             |                   |                |                |  |
| Question #1       | Very Dissatisfied                    | Dissatisfied                                     | Neutra      | al Satisfied      | Very Satisfied | 9              |  |
|                   | 11%                                  | 22%  | 11%         | 33%               | 22%            |                |  |
| Question #2       | Strongly Disagree                    | Somewhat Disagree                                | Neutra      | al Somewhat Agree | Strongly Agree | 9              |  |
|                   | 22%                                  | 11%  | 22%         | 22%               | 22%            |                |  |

## **Toll Report**

If calls are made to long-distance areas not covered in your calling plan they will incur a toll fee. You can search for any date range to see all of the calls made within that time, the area that was called and the cost of each call. If you have a Toll-Free number it will show you how much you are charged whenever it is dialled.

### **ADMINISTRATOR GUIDE**



## Solutions that shine

| Toll Reports                             |          |               |                               | Date.            | Time   |
|--|----------|---------------|-------------------------------|------------------|--|
| Timeframe<br>2024-07-22 09:45 - 2024-07- | 22 23:59 | Search        | Create Schedule Reset Filters | ✓ Dura<br>✓ Sour | tion<br>ce Number<br>ination Number<br>ination |
| foll Report                              |          |               |                               |                  |  |
| DATE/TIME                                |          | SOURCE NUMBER | DESTINATION NUMBER            |                  | COST OF CAL                                    |
| 2024-07-22 11:07:20                      | 00:01:35 | 667           | 12126399675                   | USA - New York   | \$0.05   |
| 2024-07-22 10:54:24                      | 00:01:19 | 667           | 15124631782                   | USA - Texas      | \$0.04   |
| 2024-07-22 10:42:36                      | 00:01:08 | 667           | 14163922489                   | Canada - ON      | \$0.04   |
| 2024-07-22 09:47:07                      | 00:02:41 | 667           | 16048737000                   | Canada - BC      | \$0.08   |
| 2024-07-22 09:45:44                      | 00:00:30 | 667           | 14186435321                   | Canada - QC      | \$0.02   |
|  |          |               |                               | Total Outbound:  | \$0.23   |
|  |          |               |                               | Total Toll-Free: | \$0.00   |
|  |          |               |                               | Total:           | \$0.23   |

### Usage Report

Select time ranges to generate a graph showing internal, outbound, inbound and combined call data.



### Voicemail Usage Report

The Voicemail usage report shows each voicemail, its name as well as the extension it is assigned to and the size of the mailbox.



| Voicemail Usa                  |                         |                            |                              |
|--------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| <b>≑ ЕХТ</b><br>9100           | <sup>A</sup> MAILBOX ID | ≐ NAME<br>John's Voicemail | ♦ MAILBOX USAGE<br>460.47 KB |
| Showing 1 to 1 of <sup>7</sup> | 1 entries               |                            | Show: 50 🗸 🚺 🗦               |

## **Provisioning**

Provisioning is a way of remotely programming specific settings on a device. Provisioning is supported on the following device types: Mitel/Aastra, Cisco, Linksys and Polycom. Provisioning is available via HTTP or HTTPS. Please contact Sunwire for additional information regarding configuring SSL certificates.

### **Device Provisioning**

Adding a SIP Device: Select the proper device type from the dropdown menu then click the 'Add Device' button. Depending on the device selected only some of the options below will be applicable.

### Adding/Editing Device Details:

- Device Info
  - o Device Type: Only used for identification purposes, does not affect provisioning.
  - Firmware Version: Select an available firmware version from the list.
  - Device Name: Also for identification purposes.
  - MAC Address/Identifier: The MAC address or identifier of the device you are adding to provisioning.
- Provisioning
  - Enable Authentication: Whether HTTP authentication should be used or not.
  - Authentication Username: HTTP authentication username to use.
  - Authentication Password: HTTP authentication password to use.
     \*\*The following encryption options are only supported on Cisco SPA-5XX phones.
  - Provisioning Encryption Key: Leave blank to disable encryption. The encryption key (string) specified here must be used when provisioning the Cisco phones. When provisioning the Cisco phones to use encryption, you must log in to the Cisco phone's profile rule must be specified as such:

Profile Rule: [--key ENCRYPTION-KEY-HERE ]



\*Ensure the encryption key is prefixed with [--key and ends with a ]

- SIP Options
  - Primary: The primary SIP server that this device should register with.
  - Secondary: The secondary SIP server that this device should register with. Please note that some devices (such as Polycom) will register to both SIP servers simultaneously while others (such as Aastra) will only failover if the primary is unavailable.
- Network Options
  - Enable VLAN: Enables VLANs on the phone.
  - VLAN Type: Sets the VLAN type as Static, CDP or LLDP.
  - VLAN ID: On Cisco phones, if the VLAN type is set to Static this is the VLAN ID used by the phone. On Panasonic Phones, this sets the VLAN ID used by the PC.
  - Voice VLAN ID: This is only for Panasonic phones and sets the VLAN ID used by the phone.
  - Keep Alive (seconds): Specify the interval in seconds to send keep alive packets.
  - Enable Option66: Allows Option 66 to override the SIP server.
  - Routing Type: For devices with a WAN and LAN port set this option to NAT to allow the device to handle NAT for the LAN device. Set to Bridged to allow the router on the WAN to handle NAT for the LAN device.
- Directory Options
  - Feature Profile: Select the feature profile for this device. See the Feature Profiles section for more details.
  - Directory Profile: Select the directory profile for this device. See the Directory Profiles section for more details.
  - Directory Softkeys: When set to yes, the directory profile will populate the softkeys on the phone that are not filled by the feature profile. This option is only available if Expansion Modules are not being used.
  - Expansion Module: Set the number of expansion modules attached to the phone. The expansion modules will display contacts from the Directory Profile.
  - Allow Local Contacts: Choose whether or not to allow users to manually create contacts on their phone. If set to no, the server will remove any manually created contacts after a reboot of the phone.
  - Populate Local Directory: The server will fill the softkeys on the phone from the directory profile by default. When this option is enabled the directory profile will also be pushed to the phone's local directory (which will erase any locally created contacts).
     \*\*Note: The local directory also attempts to display on the softkeys. If this option is enabled, contacts will display on the phone twice if the phone has enough open softkeys to allow it.\*\*



- Time Options
  - NTP Server (optional): Specify an NTP server to sync time with.
  - GMT Offset: Specify the time zone for the device.
  - Time Format: Display in a 12 or 24 hour format.
- Web Admin Options
  - Web Admin Passcode: Specify a password to access the phone's advanced settings. Must be at least 8 digits and under 4294967295.
  - Enable Web Admin: Setting this to Yes allows the phone's web interface to be accessed after the phone has been provisioned. The recommended default is No.
  - Web Admin Port (if applicable): Specify the port used to access the phone's web interface.
- Miscellaneous Options
  - No Key Entry Timeout (seconds): Specify the amount of time for the phone to wait after a number has been dialled before automatically calling that number.
  - Request Validation: If set to Off, the phone uses the first registration if the user part doesn't match any registration. If set to On, the phone is forced to match the user portion of signalling exactly. This helps alleviate ghost calls.
- SIP Line Options
  - Label: Label to display on the phone next to line key.
  - SIP Account: Specify the SIP account that should be attached to each of the device's line keys.
  - Show Ext #: Whether or not to append the phone's extension number to the label.
  - Call Waiting: Set to Yes to allow this line to able to receive a second call.
  - DTMF Type: Sets the Dual-Tone Multi-Frequency to rfc2833 or inband.
  - Modem Line: Disables Line Echo Canceller for faxes, jitter buffer length increases from 200ms to 300ms.
  - Keep Alive: Set to Yes to allow keep alive packets to be sent.
  - Keep Alive Interval: Specify the interval in seconds to send keep alive packets.
  - Keep Alive Packet Loss Timeout: Defines the number of max lost packets for SIP
     OPTIONS or SIP NOTIFY Keep Alive before re-registration. Between 3-10, the default is 3.
  - SIP Port: Specify the port to use for SIP traffic.
  - Dial Out #: Setting a Dial Out number will ignore the SIP account and Show Ext# line settings turning this line key into a speed dial key.
  - Enable T38: Allows the T38 codec to be used on the line.
  - SIP Register Expiration: Specify the amount of time in seconds that the SIP can stay registered for.



- SIP Reregister Before Expiration: Specify the amount of time in seconds to reregister the SIP before the registration is set to expire.
- SIP Registration Failure Retry Wait Time: Specify the amount of time in seconds to wait before retrying a SIP registration after a failed registration.
- SIP Registration Failure Retry Wait Time Upon 403 Forbidden: Specify the amount of time in seconds to wait before retrying a SIP registration after a 403 Forbidden response is received from a SIP registration.

**Viewing Provisioning Status:** Administrator(s) also have access to real-time and historical provisioning logs under Advanced Tools  $\rightarrow$  Monitor and Debug  $\rightarrow$  System Logs.

Any changes made in the device provisioning page will require a reboot of the phone to apply.

### Rebooting a phone through the SolSwitch

A reboot can be made through the web portal by going to Provisioning  $\rightarrow$  SIP Accounts and then selecting all of the phones you wish to reboot. At the bottom of the page click 'Selected items' then select 'Reboot Selected'. To select all of the phones automatically click the checkbox at the very top of the list.

# **Provisioning a Mitel/Aastra IP Phone**

## Configuring the Phone

Use the following directions to configure an Aastra/Mitel phone:

- 1. Press the settings button
- 2. Press Advanced (Password 22222, and enter)
- 3. Select Configuration Server
- 4. Choose Download protocol HTTP
- 5. Change HTTP Server to your provisioning server as defined in Advanced Tools  $\rightarrow$  System Settings
- 6. Change HTTP Port to 80 and HTTP Path to prov
- 7. Select Save
- 8. Reboot the phone

### Manually Rebooting a Mitel Phone

Software changes to a phone may require a reboot. Using the settings button on the phone, press Settings  $\rightarrow$  Restart  $\rightarrow$  Yes.

# So(Switch

## Solutions that shine

# **Provisioning a Polycom IP Phone**

## Configuring the Phone

Use the following directions to configure a Polycom phone:

- 1. Press the Menu Key
- 2. Select Settings
- 3. Select Advanced (Password 4-5-6, and enter. For V5.6 Polycoms, enter 6-5-4)
- 4. Select Admin Setting
- 5. Select Network Configuration
- 6. Scroll down using the arrow keys and select Server Menu/Provisioning Server
- 7. Change Server Type to HTTP
- Change Server Address to your provisioning server as defined in Advanced Tools → System Settings followed by "/prov" at end of the server address
- 9. Select Back twice
- 10. Select Save & Reboot

### Manually Rebooting a Polycom Phone

Software changes to a phone may require a reboot. Using the menu button on the phone, press Menu  $\rightarrow$  Settings  $\rightarrow$  Basic  $\rightarrow$  Restart Phone. "Are you sure?" will appear, and select Yes. After a time, the IP address will appear with the phone MAC address and phone software revision.

# **Provisioning a Cisco SPA-122 ATA**

## Configuring the ATA

Use the following directions to configure a Cisco SPA-122 ATA:

- 1. Connect a PC to the ATA Ethernet port
- 2. Connect to the ATA's web interface using the default web address (192.168.15.1)
- 3. Login using the default username and password (admin/admin)
- 4. Open the 'Voice' tab
- 5. Open the 'Provisioning' page
- 6. Set the profile rule to the following: http://Client Provisioning Address/spa\$MA.xml



- If you are using Encryption, the profile rule would have to be entered as such: [--key EncryptionKey] http://Client Provisioning Address/spa\$MA.xml
- 7. Click 'Submit Changes'

## Manually Rebooting an ATA

Software changes to an ATA will require a reboot. Unplug the power cable and plug it back in to initiate a reboot.

# **Provisioning a Grandstream ATA**

## Configuring the ATA

Use the following directions to configure a Grandstream ATA:

- 1. Connect a PC to a Router
- 2. Connect the ATA to the same Router as the PC.
- 3. Connect an analog phone to the ATA, and wait for a dial tone.
- 4. Dial \*\*\*02 and record the IP address
- 5. Open the ATA configuration page, by typing that IP address into a web address bar
- 6. Log in with "admin"
- 7. Go to advanced settings
- 8. Under Firmware Server Path
  - Enter: Client Provisioning Address/prov
- 9. Under Config Server Path
  - Enter: Client Provisioning Address/prov
- 10. Save and reboot the device

### Rebooting a Grandstream ATA via Web GUI or a Phone

If the web GUI is enabled on the ATA you can access it at its IP address and log into the unit. Proceed to the bottom of either the basic or advanced settings page and click on Reboot. With an analog phone connected, you can access the ATAs IVR menu by dialling "\*\*\*". Press 99 to access the reset/reboot menu and then press 9 once the IVR prompt is played. You will then hear "rebooting".

## Solutions that shine

# **Provisioning Other Devices**

Please see specific manufacturer documentation for instructions on how to provision the device. See the provisioning server address in Advanced Tools  $\rightarrow$  System Settings.

## **Directory Profiles**

Directory Profiles are pre-defined speed dial lists. Once directories are created, they must then be selected and attached to the appropriate device in the Device Provisioning section. To add a new Directory Profile, select the 'Add New Profile' button. To edit, import or delete an existing profile, click the 3 dots on the right of the profile. To quickly create similar directories, click the "from" and "to" radio buttons to copy from and paste into another directory. Any changes to contacts in a directory used for softkeys will require a reboot of the phone to apply them.

### **Importing Directory Profiles**

When importing a directory profile a CSV file is required. Download the CSV template and fill it out with the required information. If later on you wish to move some items around, you can edit the directory and move items around by dragging the left icon.

## Solutions that shine

| Directory CSV   | / Import  |                         | $\times$ |
|---|---|-------------------------|----------|
| Importing to:   | Staff Directory   |                         |          |
| Choose File   | No file chosen  | Remove existing records |          |
| Note: The CSV<br>file.<br>The CSV file ha<br>Column A is o<br>Column B is r | ad the CSV template to fill out and upload back using t<br>file <b>must</b> have the header line as this tool will always s<br>as some requirments on it:<br>optional - Entry Name<br>required - Entry Contact Number<br>optional - Buddy Watch |                         |          |
|   |   | Upload X Clos           | e        |

### Adding/Editing a Directory Profile

- Profile Name: For information purposes, there is an option for Auto Update Profile which recognizes if the name or extension number of an entry in the directory profile is updated or deleted anywhere else in the system. The directory will then update its entries to reflect the changes.
- Add New Directory Listing: To add a new directory listing, click the 'Add New Entry' button.
  - Name: Text to appear on the phone next to the button.
  - Contact Number: Phone or extension number.
  - Speed Dial: The number used to call the directory listing directly.
  - Buddy Watch: Whether or not the SolSwitch should monitor the status of this extension. Only specified on internal extension numbers.
- Sorting Directory Listings: To sort listings in a directory, use the icon to the left of the speed dial number to drag and drop the listings in the correct order.



### **Feature Profiles**

Feature profiles are a way to configure specific settings on an individual or on multiple devices. Once feature profiles are created, they must then be selected and attached to the appropriate device in the Device Provisioning section. To add a new feature profile, select the proper device brand and click the 'Add Profile' button. Any changes made to a feature profile will require a reboot of the phone to apply them.

**Mitel/Aastra Feature Profile:** You are able to copy one Aastra profile to another, within the list view, as well as import and export Aastra feature profiles. The following options are available for the Aastra feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Default Mode: Specify whether the handset or headset should be used by default.
- Number of line keys: The number of line keys that should be available on the phone. If 4 is selected, the redial and callers list buttons will be replaced with lines 3 and 4.
- Show missed calls: Choose whether or not the number of missed calls should be displayed on the screen.
- UI Ring Focus: When on a call, if a call comes in the phone screen can either continue to show the current call or show the information for the incoming call.
- Enable Call Waiting Beep: When enabled, the handset will beep when receiving a call while already on a call.
- Enable More Key: Choose whether the 'more' key should display on the screen once the softkeys are full (ex, 4 bottom soft keys) or only once there are too many to fit on the screen at once (ex, 5 bottom soft keys).
- Remove Own Extension: When set to yes, the user's own extension will be removed from the Top Soft Keys when provisioning to the phone. This is compatible with the "Own Ext" option.
- Auto ReSync Mode: This specifies if configuration files, firmware files or both will be automatically resynced on reboot, default Off.
- Phone Language: The language displayed on the phone screen. Supports English and French.
- Background Image: Select a Background image to use for idle display.
- Screensaver Image: Select a Screensaver image to use for the sleeping display. Image Format: 320x240 (6867i/6920) 480x272 (6869i/6930) 800x480 (6873i/6940) 24 or 32-bit color depth

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.

1MB Max File Size



.PNG or .JPG

- Top Soft Keys: Up to 44 top soft keys may be specified. The actual number available will vary based on the phone model.
  - Name: Label displayed on phone LCD (if supported).
  - Function: Each key can serve the following function.
    - BLF (Busy Lamp Field): This option is used to provide the live status of other extensions on the system.
    - BLF/Xfer: This option is the same as above, although pressing the button will call the specified Value.
    - Callers List: If used, when the button is pressed, phone call logs will be displayed.
    - Speed Dial: Used to initiate a call to the specified value.
    - Speed Dial/Xfer: This option is the same as above, although it can also be used to transfer an active call.
    - DND: Sets the phone to Do Not Disturb.
    - Redial: Directs the user to the Outgoing caller's list.
    - Directory: Directs the user to the directory list.
  - Value: Internal or external number in relation to the specified Function.
- Bottom Soft Keys: Up to 20 bottom soft keys can be specified. The actual number available will vary based on the phone model. The functions are identical to the ones used for the top soft keys above. However, bottom soft keys can only appear during certain states. Additionally, presence can only be set on the top soft keys and not the bottom soft keys.
  - States: Select the state(s) at which the soft key should appear on the phone.
    - Idle: Display the key when the phone is not in use.
    - Connected: Display the key when a call is in progress.
    - Incoming: Display the key while an incoming call is ringing.
    - Outgoing: Display the key while an outbound call is ringing.
    - Busy: Display the key when the phone is in a DND state.



| eneral Setti                      | ngs                                      |   |                             |   |        |
|-----------------------------------|--|---|-----------------------------|---|--------|
| Profile Name<br>John Smith        |  |   |                             |   |        |
|                                   |  |   |                             |   |        |
| Default mode<br>Handset           |  | ~ | Number of line k<br>4 Lines | eys                                     |        |
| Show Missed Cal<br><b>'es</b>     | lis                                      | ~ | UI Ring Focus<br>Active     |   | ,      |
| Enable Call Waitir<br><b>'es</b>  | ng Beep                                  | ~ | Enable More Key<br>No       | 6                                       |        |
| Remove Own Ext<br><b>No</b>       | ension                                   | ~ | Auto ReSync Mo<br>Off       | de                                      |        |
| Phone Language<br>E <b>nglish</b> |  | ~ |                             |   |        |
| ckground Imag                     | ge                                       |   | Screensaver Ima             | age                                     |        |
| Choose File                       | No file chosen                           |   | Choose File                 | No file chosen                          |        |
| oftkeys                           |  |   |                             |   |        |
| Top Softkeys                      |  |   |                             |   | ,      |
| Note: Not all                     | models support 44 t<br>Key maximum to er |   |                             | erify your model's To<br>sired entries. | p Soft |
| ⊞ 1                               |  |   |                             |   |        |
| Name<br>Park 50                   | Function<br>BLF                          | ~ | Value<br>50                 | Own Ext<br>No                           | ~      |
| i≣ 2                              |  |   |                             |   |        |

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.

### **ADMINISTRATOR GUIDE**



## Solutions that shine

X

**Cisco Feature Profile:** The following options are available for the Cisco feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Branding: Used to display the company's brand name on the phone.
- Show Missed Calls: Specify whether or not the phone set should display missed calls.
- Enable DND: Allow or disallow Do-Not-Disturb functionality.
- Enable Call Waiting: Whether or not to allow incoming calls while the phone is in use.
- Enable Directory Key: Whether or not to display the Directory soft key.
- Enable Park Key: Whether or not to display the Park soft key.
- Enable Record Key: Whether or not to display the Record soft key.

### New Cisco Feature Profile @

| General Settings               |   |                        |             |
|--------------------------------|---|------------------------|-------------|
| Profile Name<br>John's Profile |   | Branding<br>Cisco      |             |
| Show Missed Calls<br>Yes       | ~ | Enable DND<br>Yes      | ~           |
| Notifications                  |   |                        |             |
| Enable Call Waiting<br>Yes     | ~ |                        |             |
| Soft Keys                      |   |                        |             |
| Enable Directory Key<br>Yes    | ~ | Enable Park Key<br>Yes | ~           |
| Enable Record Key<br>Yes       | ~ |                        |             |
|                                |   |                        |             |
|                                |   | ✓ Save Setting         | ngs X Close |



### Grandstream Feature Profile: The following options are available for the Grandstream feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Custom Layout File: Grandstream offers a configuration tool to customize the look and feel of the phone. Upload the file here and it will be applied to all phones with this feature profile.
   When set, there is an Export button that can be used to download the current layout which can be used for other profiles.
- Enable Call Waiting Tone: Sets the phone system to play the call waiting tone if there is another incoming call.
- Always Ring Speaker: Determines if the speaker will play the ringtone if the speaker channel is not set as the default channel.
- Enabled Missed Call Backlight: If set to "Yes", LCD backlight will be turned on when there is a missed call on the phone.
- Enable Missed Call Indicator: If set to "Yes", the LED indicator on the upper right corner of the phone will light up when there is a missed call on the phone.
- Headset Type: Choose the preferred headset type when answering calls.
- Date Format: Choose the format that will be shown on the display.
- Enable Video Call: Enables the video call feature on the phone.
- Enable Transfer: Enables the Transfer function.
- Start Video Automatically: Permits the phone system to enable the video feature automatically when it makes an outbound call.
- Remote Video Request: Configures the preference to handle video requests from the remote party during an audio call. "Prompt": A message will be prompted if a video request is received. Users can select "Yes" to establish a video or "No" to reject the request. "Accept": Video requests will be accepted automatically, and video will be established. I "Deny": Video request will be rejected automatically.
- Video Layout: Defines whether to enter full screen when an incoming video call is answered.
- Auto Preview: Configures whether to turn on video to preview the video of the caller. If set to "Yes", the user can view the video and hear the caller on the incoming page when there is an incoming call. If set to "Yes with Ringing", the caller can view the view of the caller and hear the ringtone on the incoming page but cannot hear the caller.



| Profile Name<br>Grandstream             |   |  |   |
|---|---|--|---|
| ustom Layout File                       |   |  |   |
| Choose File No file chose               | n | Config Tool                            |   |
| eneral Settings                         |   |  |   |
| Enable Call Waiting Tone<br>Yes         | ~ | Always Ring Speaker<br>No              | ~ |
| Enable Missed Call Backlight<br>Yes     | ~ | Enable Missed Call Indicator<br>Active | ~ |
| Headset Type<br>Normal Headset          | ~ | Date Format<br>MM-DD-YYYY              | ~ |
| Enable Video Call<br><b>Yes</b>         | ~ | Enable Transfer<br>Yes                 | ~ |
| Start Video Automatically<br><b>Yes</b> | ~ | Remote Video Request<br>Prompt         | ~ |
| Video Layout<br>Default                 | ~ | Auto Preview<br>No                     | ~ |

Linksys Feature Profile: The following options are available for the Linksys feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Show Missed Calls: Specify whether or not the phone set should display missed calls.


• Enable Call Waiting: Whether or not to allow incoming calls while the phone is in use.

| Profile Name<br>Linksys Profile |   |                            |
|---------------------------------|---|----------------------------|
| Show Missed Calls<br><b>Yes</b> | ~ | Enable Call Waiting<br>Yes |

Polycom Feature Profile: The following options are available for the Polycom feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Display Logo on Phone: Whether or not to display the SolSwitch logo on the phone.
- Default Mode: Specify whether the handset or headset should be used by default.
- Show Missed Calls: Specify whether or not the phone set should display missed calls.
- Enable DND: Allow or disallow Do-Not-Disturb functionality on non-VVX series phones.
- Quick Transfer: Enables the ability to blind transfer someone while on a call.
- Show Queue Stats: This Enables the display of stats on the phone's MicroBrowser.
- Call Waiting Type
  - Ring: The phone will ring while on a call and receiving an incoming call.
  - Beep: The phone will beep while on a call and receiving an incoming call.
  - o Silent: The phone will flash and display incoming call details on LCD.
  - Disabled: Call waiting will be disabled.
- Direct Call Ring Tone: The ring tone to play when a call is routed directly to your extension.
- Queue/Ring Group Ring Tone: The ring tone to play when a call is received via a queue or ring group.
- Soft Keys: Up to 10 soft keys can be specified. Soft keys are used to display specific functions available depending on the state of the device.
  - Name: Label displayed on phone LCD (if supported).
  - Function: Each key can serve the following function.

# So(Switch...

## Solutions that shine

- Applications: Used for accessing the phone's Application page. (Usually the Micro Browser).
- Buddies: Displays contacts and their current status. Contacts are managed in Directory Profiles. See Directory Profiles section.
- Callers: Directs the user to the caller's list.
- Conference: Initiate a conference call.
- Custom: When specified, the custom text box will appear where a value can be specified. When pressed, the corresponding DTMF for the value will be initiated.
- End Call: Ends the current call.
- Hold: Puts the current call on private hold.
- Hook Flash: Sends a hook flash signal to the remote end. Only supported when the remote end is an analog or T1 port.
- Issue: Allows the ability to report a call issue.
- Intercom: Pages an extension and places your call on their speaker phone.
- Login/Logout: Toggles the login/logout roaming feature.
- New Call: Initiates the dial tone to place a new call.
- Page: Defaults to extension 8000 which can be set up as a paging group.
- Park: Place the current call on park.
- Ready Toggle: Toggles the phone's Do-Not-Disturb status.
- Record: Records the current call from the beginning.
- Redial: Directs the user to the Outgoing caller's list.
- Speed Dial: Activates the phone's speed dial list.
- Transfer: Initiate a transfer.
- o Custom: Internal or external number in relation to the specified Function.
- States: Select the state(s) at which the soft key should appear on the phone.
  - Idle: Display the key when the phone is not in use.
  - Dial tone: Display the key when there is a dial tone.
  - Proceeding: Display the key when an outbound call is in progress but not yet connected.
  - Alerting: Display the key when an incoming call is ringing.
  - Active: Display the key while on an active call.
  - Hold: Display the key when on private hold.
- Sorting Soft Keys: Soft keys can be sorted by dragging and dropping the key up or down in the list. Once you are satisfied with your sort order, select the 'Save Ordering' button.



|  |                               | 8                |                           |                               |      |
|--|-------------------------------|------------------|---------------------------|-------------------------------|------|
| neral Settings                                     |                               |                  |                           |                               |      |
| rofile Name:<br>Polycom                            |                               |                  |                           |                               |      |
| isplay logo on phone<br>'es                        |                               | ~                | Default mode<br>Handset   |                               | 3    |
| how Missed Calls<br><b>'es</b>                     |                               | ~                | Enable DND<br>Yes         |                               |      |
| Juick Transfer<br><b>(es</b>                       |                               | ~                | Show Queue St.<br>No      | ats                           |      |
| tifications  |                               |                  |                           |                               |      |
| all Waiting Type                                   | ~                             | Direct call ring |                           | Queue ring tone               |      |
| ang  |                               | High Double      | Inil                      | Loud Warble 2                 |      |
| Softkeys   |                               | High Double      |                           | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | -    |
| Softkeys   | Functio<br>New C              | n                |                           |                               |      |
| Softkeys   |                               | n                | ldie/                     | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | Setu |
| Softkeys   |                               | n<br>Call Y      | ldie/                     | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | Setu |
| Softkeys   | New C                         | n<br>Call Y      | ldle/                     | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | Setu |
| Softkeys   | New C                         | n<br>Call Y      | ldle/                     | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | Setu |
| New Call<br>= 2<br>Name<br>Transfer<br>= 3<br>Name | Functio<br>Functio<br>Functio | n<br>Call Y      | Idle/<br>Custom<br>Custom | Dial/Proc./Alert/Active/Hold/ | Setu |

## **ADMINISTRATOR GUIDE**



## Solutions that shine

Yealink Feature Profile: The following options are available for the Yealink feature profiles.

- Profile Name: For informational purposes only.
- Show Missed Calls: Specify whether or not the phone set should display missed calls.
- Enable Call Waiting: Whether or not to allow incoming calls while the phone is in use.
- Call Waiting Tone: Whether or not to enable a tone when there is a call waiting.
- Call ring tone: To select from 8 different ring tones
- Display logo on phone: Whether or not to display a logo on the phone.
- Default mode: To set the default mode for which to use the phone, Headset or Handset.
- Enable DND: Allow or disallow Do-Not-Disturb functionality.
- Bottom Soft Keys
  - Statuses: Will display soft keys based on the phone's current status.
  - o Soft Keys: Displays available functions based on the phone's current status
  - $\circ$  Functions:
    - Call Failed
      - Cancel/Switch Call/New Call
    - Call In
      - Call Switch/Answer/Forward/Silence/Reject
    - Connecting
      - Cancel/CallSwitch
    - Transfer Connecting
      - Cancel/Call Switch/Transfer
    - Dialling
      - Cancel/Send/IME/Delete/History/Call Switch/Directory/Line Selection/Pool/Group Pickup/Direct Pickup
    - Ring Back
      - Cancel/Call Switch /Call Completion
    - Transfer Ring Back
      - Cancel/Call Switch/Call Completion/Transfer
    - On Talk
      - Cancel/Mute/Swap/Call Switch/New Call/Answer/Reject/Hold/Private Hold/Transfer/Conference
    - Hold
      - Cancel/Call Switch/Answer/Reject/Transfer/Resume/New Call
    - Held
      - Cancel/Call Switch/Answer/Reject/New Call
    - Transfer to



- Cancel/Directory/Call Switch/Send/Transfer/IME/Delete
- Conferenced
  - Cancel/Call Switch/Answer/Reject/Mute/Hold/Split

#### New Yealink Feature Profile @ × **General Settings** Profile Name Yealink Display logo on phone\* Default mode Handset Yes Show Missed Calls\* Enable DND\* ~ Yes No \* Only available on T2XX model phones Notifictaions Call Waiting Call Waiting Tone Call Ring Tone V V Enable Enable Ring 2 Softkeys ~ Function Call Failed Call Switch Function New Call Function Call In Answer Function Reject Function Connecting Cancel 1



## **SIP Accounts**

A SIP (Session Initiation Protocol) Account is used to authenticate a SIP device such as a telephone or ATA (Analog Telephone Adapter) to the SolSwitch. Any new device must first be added as a SIP account. To add a new SIP account, click the 'Add SIP Account' button.

- Active: Choose to mark the SIP as active or inactive.
- Description: For information purposes only
- SIP Host Type:
  - Dynamic: The most common authentication-based method used for IP phones or ATA.
    - Username: Specify the username required to authenticate to the SIP Account.
       SIP Account Usernames cannot contain all digits if it is equal to or less than 11 characters.
    - Password: Specify the password required to authenticate to the SIP Account.
       Strong passwords are required.
    - Allowed IPs: Allow IPs to use the SIP account
    - Blocked IPs: Block IPs from using the SIP account
  - Static: Most commonly used for trunks when the SIP peer has a static IP.
    - Name: Specify the name without spaces for this peer
    - Host: Static IP address or hostname of the peer
    - Port: Port number that will be used.
    - Domain (optional): Specify the domain name of the SIP registrar.
  - Register: When the SolSwitch must register to an outside dynamic SIP account.
    - Name / BTN: Name or Billing Telephone Number for this peer
    - Registrar: Remote SIP server IP or hostname
    - Domain: Specify the domain name of the SIP Registrar
    - Username: Specify the username for the remote SIP server
    - Password: Specify the password for the remote SIP server
    - Verify Password: Ensure the password was typed the same both times.
- Transport Type: Whether this SIP account should use TCP, UDP or TLS & SRTP. The default is UDP. Encrypted communication is currently supported for Trunks, Aastra/Mitel devices, and some soft phones.
- NAT: Whether or not this SIP device will be behind NAT. If enabled, the SolSwitch will always respond to the source IP address and port of the received SIP packets.
- DTMF Mode: Choose inband or rfc2833 in order to ensure the settings match the SIP device.
- Alarm Notification: Specify an email address here to receive notifications when the peer changes from online to offline and vice-versa.



- Available Codecs: Choose which codecs should be allowed on this SIP account. The T.38 codec requires G.711 codec to be enabled as well. For video SIP devices, select one or all H.XXX codecs.
- SIP Post API Enable: Enables the SIP Post API to send a packet capture.
- Dynamic Features: Allow incoming calls to send in particular features. This is mainly used for trunks to disable feature codes such as #1 and ##.
- International Calls: Sys Admins have the option to allow or not allow international calling on each Sip account. Calling to high-cost areas is disabled by default and must be enabled to make calls to those areas. By enabling international calling you are responsible for all long-distance charges. Please see section 15. Long Distance of our terms and conditions available at <u>https://www.sunwire.ca/company/terms-and-conditions/</u> for more information. To view our Long Distance Rates please visit: <u>https://www.sunwire.ca/company/long-distance-rates/</u>
- Stay In Audio Path: When disabled, the SIP path will be changed to bypass the SolSwitch. This is not recommended and should only be used in specific scenarios where the setup is intended for that.
- Pass incoming ANI+DNIS: When enabled, this feature will send ANI and DNIS information as DTMF toner when the line is answered. Enabling this option is not recommended.
- Delete Block: Place a check here in order to prevent this peer from being deleted. To delete the peer, the check mark must first be removed.
- Ping Monitoring: When enabled, the SolSwitch will ping the peer once per second until the feature is disabled. Ping results may be viewed in graph format under → Reporting → SIP Ping Monitor Report.
- Status: The status is displayed for each peer. The following status levels may be displayed:
  - OK: Peer is okay, SIP packet response time displayed in milliseconds.
  - Unreachable: The peer was online but is now unreachable.
  - Offline: Peer is offline.
  - Lagged: SIP response times are in excess of 10 seconds (10,000ms).
- IP: The IP address of the SIP device.
- Trunk: The trunk the SIP account is using.
- Extension: The extension the SIP account is attached to.
- Reboot Phone: Allows the remote reboot of the phone.
- Refresh MWI: Resets the Message Waiting Indicator on a phone.



# **Add-on Tools**

## Create Callback

This feature allows you to manually enter a number/caller into a queue as a call-back. As soon as an agent in a queue is available for a call, the system will automatically dial a manually entered number and connect the agent.

## **Outbound Faxes**

This page allows you to queue a PDF attachment and send it out to the system to any fax number of your choice. To create an Outbound Fax, click the 'Create Fax' button.

#### **Creating an Outbound Fax:**

- To Phone Number: The numbers that you would like the fax to be sent to.
- From: Displays a dropdown of users created in the Fax to Email section under Phone System, which the outbound fax will be sent from.
- Confirmation Email Address: A notification will be sent to the email address specified here which will announce the results of the fax transmission.
- Maximum Number of Tries: The number of attempts the fax will try to send before stopping.
- Threshold: Adjust the black/white threshold for converting the PDF to Fax format. The default is 90% lower the threshold if too much of the page is turning black during conversion.
- PDF to Fax: Upload a PDF of the file you would like to be sent.





Х

## Create An Outbound Fax

|   |                  |            | Add Recipient                                  |
|---|------------------|------------|--|
| <sup>From</sup><br>Tier2 Faxing Main (705 | 8056389)         | ~          | Confirmation Email Address<br>tier2@sunwire.ca |
| Maximum Number of Tries<br>5              |                  | ~          | Threshold: 90%                                 |
| Ρ   | DF to Fax (Note: | Non-portra | it layout pages will be cropped) :             |
|   | Choose File      | No file    | chosen   |
|   |                  |            |  |

## SolCast

The SolCast is used as a recurring calling tool where you schedule the valid dates, days, times and retry attempts of a particular batch. You can create as many batches as you like.

Adding a SolCast Batch: To add a new batch, click the 'Add New Batch' button. There are 5 steps to fill out for each batch; outlined on the left in the 'Batch Menu'. Below is a breakdown of each section of the batch menu and its components.

| Filters 🛬 Q Search          |          | Add New Batch  |
|-----------------------------|----------|----------------|
| ANAME NAME                  | ÷ STATUS | PROGRESS       |
| Sunwire SolCast Batch       | Dialing  | 4 of 6 :       |
| Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries |          | Show: 15 🗸 🚺 🔊 |



- **Batch Information:** This screen is where you set the main SolCast batch details. Ensure to save the Batch Information before proceeding to the next part of the batch menu.
  - Batch Name: Give the batch you are creating a unique name.
  - $\circ$   $\,$  Caller ID Name: The name to be displayed when calling numbers.
  - Active: Whether or not the batch will run.
  - Valid Period, Valid Days, and Valid Time: Select the timeframe that you would like the batch active for.
  - Retry Attempts: The maximum number of times to try calling a contact number.
  - Retry Delay: The amount of time to wait before attempting to retry calling a contact number. Note that this time is as of the end of the batch running, not from the last retry attempt.
  - Simultaneous Calls: The number of lines to use at the same time to make multiple calls.
  - DTMF 1 goes to: Where to send the caller if they press '1' during the message playback.

| Batch Menu        | Batch Information                            |                           |   |   |      |
|-------------------|--|---------------------------|---|---|------|
| Batch Information | Batch Name<br>Sunwire SolCast Batch          |                           |   |   |      |
| Batch Dial List   | Caller ID Name<br>SUNWIRE INC                |                           |   |   |      |
| Contact Numbers   | Active<br>Yes                                |                           |   |   | ~    |
| Answered Steps    | Valid Period<br>2024-07-08 - 2024-07-15      |                           |   |   | 1993 |
| Voicemail Steps   | Valid Days                                   |                           |   |   |      |
|                   | Sun  | Mon                       | 🔽 Tue   | Ved   |      |
| Save Settings     | 🕑 Thu  | 🔽 Fri                     | Sat   |   |      |
| Exit              | Start Time Hour<br>08                        | ✓ Start Time Minute<br>00 | <ul> <li>End Time Hour</li> <li>17</li> </ul> | <ul> <li>✓ End Time Minute</li> <li>OO</li> </ul> | ~    |
|                   | Retry Attempts<br>2 times                    |                           |   |   | ~    |
|                   | Retry Delay<br>1 hour                        |                           |   |   | ~    |
|                   | Simultaneous Calls                           |                           |   |   |      |
|                   | DTMF1 goes to<br>Extension: 100 (John Smith) |                           |   |   | ~    |

• **Batch Dial List:** This batch menu is where you set your dial list. You can use the 'Upload CSV' button to upload a list of users to contact. Ensure that the CSV is formatted properly. Click the button to see the proper format.

Users can also be entered manually using the 'Manual User Entry' form, whose options are listed below:

• Name: The user/contact's name.



- Phone #: The phone number to call which is associated with the above name.
- Fields 1-5: Fields 1 through 5 can be used to enter various contact information such as Email address, street address, billing type, balance due, etc.

The 'Edit Field Names' button will allow you to change the Field 1, Field 2, Field 3, Field 4, and Field 5 labels to custom labels of your choice.

| Batch Menu                              |                   | Manual User | Entry    |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|---|-------------------|-------------|----------|---------|----------|------------------|----------|----------|---------------------|----|
|   | Batch Information | Name        |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Batch Dial List   | Phone #     |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Contact Numbers   | Balance     |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Answered Steps    | Account     |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Voicemail Steps   | Not Used    |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Save Settings     | Not Used    |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | Exit              | Not Used    |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   |                   |             |          |         |          | Save Record      |          |          |                     |    |
|   |                   |             |          |         |          | Edit Field Names |          |          |                     |    |
| Batch Dial List<br>Upload CSV<br>Search |                   |             |          |         |          |                  |          |          |                     |    |
|   | PHONE #           | NAME        | BALANCE  | ACCOUNT | NOT USED | NOT USED         | NOT USED | ATTEMPTS | a LAST ATTEMPT      |    |
| 1                                       | 7055551111        | Jason       | \$85.55  | 123456  |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 12:57:24 | 1  |
| 2                                       | 7055552222        | John        | \$45.21  | 2312    |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 12:58:30 | 1  |
| 3                                       | 7055553333        | Jim         | \$12.44  | 1247    |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 12:59:47 | 1  |
| 4                                       | 7055554444        | Sandra      | \$454.22 | 456123  |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 12:59:52 | T. |
| 5                                       | 7055556666        | Jill        | \$45.22  | 51324   |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 12:59:58 | 1  |
| 6                                       | 7055557777        | Jack        | \$457.25 | 1234    |          |                  |          |          | 2024-07-08 13:00:05 | 1  |

Ensure to save your changes before proceeding to the next phase of the batch menu.

• **Contact Numbers:** This area can be used to specify different contact information based on which rate centre is used for the call.

For example, if you select a specific rate centre such as Toronto, all calls going to the Toronto rate center will show the phone number entered as the CID information. Also, specific recordings can be played based on where the call is being made to. There is no limit to the rate centres that can be added so long as they are configured in your SolSwitch.

This option can be very useful for large companies with office numbers across multiple cities. This gives the person receiving the call a local number that they can call back. Ensure to save your changes before proceeding to the next menu page.

# So(Switch.

# Solutions that shine

| Batch Menu        | Batch Contact Numbers   |  |   |
|-------------------|---|--|---|
| Batch Information | This area can be used to specify different contact inform   | nation based on which rate centre is used for the call.                      |   |
| Batch Dial List   | In the "Calling Steps" section, a "Contact #" step will us<br>the customer. If not, the digits of the phone number will | e the values below to determine what the customer will here be read to them. | ar. If a system recording is selected, it will be played to |
|                   | Rate Center<br>Default  | Phone Number 8885216777  | System Recording Vone                                       |
| Contact Numbers   | Rate Center   | Phone Number   | System Recording  |
| Answered Steps    | Sudbury   | 7055216777   | None × ×  |
| Voicemail Steps   | New Rate Center Select Rate Centre  | New Phone Number   | Add Rate Centre   |
|                   |   |  |   |
| Save Settings     |   |  |   |
| Exit              |   |  |   |

- Answered Steps: This screen is used to tell the SolCast what actions it should take when a phone call is answered. Ensure to save your changes before proceeding to the next menu page. Below are the options to choose from as well as the function they serve:
  - Reading: Will play whatever system recording is selected from the reading dropdown.
  - Field: Will spell out whatever field is selected from the 'Batch Dial List'. For example, if you select 'Balance' then the system will look up that particular field in the 'Batch Dial List' for each entry and read off the balance.
  - Read Number: Will playback the batch's contact number based on the rate centre being called. If no rate centre is chosen, the default contact number is displayed.
- Voicemail Steps: The same steps above apply to calls that are answered by a voicemail system although the steps themselves can be different whether a call is answered or goes to voicemail.

| Bat | ch Menu                              | Calling Steps<br>Steps to follow when answered by a person |       |   |   |   |
|-----|--------------------------------------|--|-------|---|---|---|
|     | Batch Information<br>Batch Dial List | Step 1 Type<br>Reading                                     | ~     | Step 1 Recording<br>Advertisement Message | ~ | × |
| ī   | Contact Numbers                      | Step 2 Type<br>Field                                       | ~     | Step 2 Field<br>Balance                   | ~ | × |
|     | Answered Steps                       | Step 3 Type<br>Read Number                                 | ~     |   |   | × |
|     | Voicemail Steps                      |  | Add S | Step                                      |   |   |
|     | Save Settings                        |  |       |   |   |   |
|     | Exit                                 |  |       |   |   |   |



# **Advanced Tools**

## 911 Management

The SolSwitch has built-in support to control 9-1-1 address information. If you subscribe to 9-1-1 services from Northern 911 or Digital Conceptions, you will be provided with API access credentials which should be entered here.

## **API Management**

The SolSwitch comes with a set of API functions available for third-party software integration.

To access API Permissions, navigate to Advanced Tools > API Permissions

To view information about the API functions available, click on the "View SolSwitch API function list and usage" link at the top of the API Management page.

#### View SolSwitch API Documentation

The API Permissions section allows you to specify who can access the API and what they have access to. Permissions are based on IP address and/or API Key.

| Q | Search             |              |                                  | Add Access List |
|---|--------------------|--------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|
|   | + ACCESS LIST NAME | ↓ IP ADDRESS | API KEY                          |                 |
|   | API Test           | 10.0.201.202 | KQSeHdMdSBNBLGcfBAGJdZSPeFNaMaVO | :               |
|   | API Test 2         | 10.0.201.50  | DbXbATeLTFJXVZdeYXCFOXAflCAeagLB | :               |
|   | Sunwire Test       | 10.0.201.196 | BMXWGgWFNPIHcfFHVLYPNBJfSeWfCQLB | :               |

Click the "Add Access List" button to add a new entry or press the Edit icon to modify an existing entry.

For each Access List, you must specify the following:

- Access List Name: To describe the purposes of this entry.
- Access to Customer: Only for multi-tenant platforms. Specify which customer it will have permissions to.
- Allow from IP address: Enter the IP address to allow access. This is recommended but only required when no API Key is specified.



- **API Key:** 256-bit key used for authentication to the API. A key is required when no IP address is specified. Use the Generate Key button to generate a random key.
- **API Function Permissions:** Select checkboxes for each function that this access list can use. For Digit Validation Log, you must also specify which DV can be accessed.

## Backup & Restore

The SolSwitch supports two methods of backing up its data. A light backup will contain everything in Phone System such as the call flow, extensions, voice prompts, voicemail greetings and messages. If you are using the system to record calls, see the Recording Backup section for more information. A light backup will result in a much smaller file size and contain everything except for the Call Detail Records. A full backup will save everything in the system.

**Automatic FTP Backup:** To use automatic FTP backup, you must already have access to a separate FTP server. Enter the FTP server, username, password and path to match your FTP account information. The backup frequency specifies how often (in days) the backup should be run. Backup time specifies the time of day that the backup should be run. The next backup date is the next date that the system will be backed up. This date is re-adjusted based on the selected backup frequency. If an automatic backup fails to reach the FTP server then the backup will need to be manually re-enabled. Press the 'Save Settings' button to save your settings. The 'Backup Now' button performs an immediate backup to the FTP server.

**Manual Backup:** Manual backups are performed by clicking the 'Backup and Download' button. You will then be prompted to download and save a backup file to your hard drive.

**Restoring a Backup:** In order to restore a SolSwitch, you must have a backup file of the same version. Click the 'System Restore' button, select the backup file and wait while the file is uploaded and the system is restored.

## **Customer Management**

If you have purchased the Multi-Tenant License, this option will be available. Add, edit and remove customers in this section. The customer number, first name, last name and company fields are required. You also have the option to Export an entire customer to a file and then use that file to Import the customer to a new system. When doing so, everything except call records will be imported.

**Max SIP accounts:** This specifies the maximum number of SIP accounts allowed on a customer's account. Set a value of 0 for unlimited SIP Accounts.



**Max Trunks:** Specifies the maximum number of concurrent inbound or outbound calls on a customer's account. Internal calls between extensions are not considered trunk calls. Set a value of 0 for unlimited trunk calling.

**Toll Plan:** Defines how calls should be billed for this customer. See the Toll Management section for more details.

**Default Route Group:** Specifies the default outbound route for calls from a customer. See the Route Groups section for more details.

Recording Email: Specifies how the recording will be delivered in the email.

**Time Zone:** This sets the desired time zone which will convert the times on that customer throughout the SolSwitch.

**Recording Language:** Determines the default language for recordings played throughout the system. This can be overridden by some system functions such as Queues and IVRs.

**SolSwitch Connect Settings:** This allows you to set up SolSwitch Connect users on a specific customer.

- SSC Server: Select the SSC Server to use for this customer. This is configured in Advanced Tools
   → System Settings → SolSwitch Connect Servers.
- **Group:** It is recommended to have a unique group per-SolSwitch Customer. If a group is shared between customers Max Users and Presence Users will all also be shared between those customers.
- SSC Server: Select the SSC Server to use for this customer. This is configured in Advanced Tools
   → System Settings → SolSwitch Connect Servers.
- **Group:** It is recommended to have a unique group per-SolSwitch Customer. If a group is shared between customers Max Users and Presence Users will all also be shared between those customers.
- Max Users: Set the maximum number of SolSwitch Connect accounts that can be created.
- Max Presence Users: Set the maximum number of Presence accounts that can be added.

## **Firewall**

Firewall rules can be added to ensure that certain networks can have traffic allowed or denied for SolSwitch services. Single IPs, whole subnets or entire countries can be added to an allow or deny rule. Click 'Add New Rule' to create a firewall entry. These firewall rules work alongside our built-in security tool Guardian, please see below.



## Guardian

• The Guardian protects the SolSwitch from unauthorized access. In this section, you can view and remove blocked IP addresses as well as add IP addresses to the exemption list. All IP addresses that have been previously are historically logged, click on 'Blocked History' to search.

The following actions will be monitored by the Guardian.

- Using proprietary techniques, the SolSwitch Guardian ensures that only authorized devices may provision on the SolSwitch.
- The SolSwitch Guardian analyses every SIP registration attempt. Upon detection of an unauthorized attempt, Guardian will automatically alert the administration and immediately block the IP address.
- The SolSwitch Guardian monitors SIP traffic to detect floods or malicious packets and will automatically block the source IP address and alert the administrator.
- The SolSwitch Guardian will detect unsuccessfully web portal login attempts and automatically block access.
- The SolSwitch Guardian enforces strong passwords to prevent easy brute-force password discovery.
- The SolSwitch Guardian monitors call patterns and volumes and will alert the administrator if unusual activity occurs.

## Monitor and Debug

From the Advanced Tools menu, click the Monitor and Debug icon.

### ADMINISTRATOR GUIDE

# Solutions that shine

| ø | Advanced Tools        | ~ |
|---|-----------------------|---|
|   | 911 Management        |   |
|   | API Management        |   |
|   | Backup & Restore      |   |
|   | Customer Management   |   |
|   | Firewall              |   |
|   | Guardian              |   |
|   | Monitor and Debug     | ~ |
|   | Concurrent Calls      |   |
|   | Customer Usage        |   |
|   | Device Statistics     |   |
|   | Portal Activity       |   |
|   | Resource Monitoring   |   |
|   | SIP and RTP Captures  |   |
|   | SIP Connection Times  |   |
|   | System Logs           |   |
|   | System Status         |   |
|   | Trunk Graph           |   |
|   | Trunk Missed Calls    |   |
|   | Trunk Monitoring      |   |
|   | Verify CIDs           |   |
|   | Voicemail Transcripts |   |

#### Concurrent Calls

So(Switch...

This will show a graph of all of the calls across every customer system-wide. Right-click the graph to zoom out or click and drag to zoom in. You can hover your mouse over any point of the graph to see the exact number of calls at that time.

# So(Switch...

# Solutions that shine



#### Customer Usage

This icon will be displayed if the Multi-Tenant License was purchased. Select a customer and time range in order to generate usage graphs. The graphs can display inbound, outbound and internal calls. Right-click the graph to zoom out or click and drag to zoom in.



#### Device Statistics

This shows information about the SolSwitch, the network Interfaces, IP Table, DNS Library, Disk Information and SIP Peers.

#### Portal Activity

This section is used to pull web interface activity logs. Data includes date, time, username, customers, IP address, feature accessed, as well as HTTP GET and POST data.

#### Resource Monitoring

A graph that displays the system's CPU and memory usage for any given period. Right-click the graph to zoom out or click and drag to zoom in.

#### SIP and RTP Captures

This section gives administrator(s) access to raw packet traces. Traces are kept for a total of 24 hours.

The SolSwitch is developed and supported by Sunwire Inc.



- SIP Method: Select which method to search on
- **Filter URI (User):** Specify the user part of the URI to filter on. This is usually the phone number dialled or the username of the SIP account. Optional but recommended.
- Filter Source/Dest IP: These fields are used to filter source and destination IP address.
- Search Start: Specify the time to start searching for packet traces.
- **Search Timeframe:** Specify the timeframe from the Search Start time. A maximum of 10-minute window can be searched at once in order to prevent performance impacts while traces are searched.

#### SIP Connection Times

This shows how long the SIP process took connect to the database when processing calls, this is not the latency. The first graph allows you to see the minimum, maximum and average millisecond (ms) for all SIP connection times over a set period. The second graph will enumerate slow SIP connections (any deemed to be at 200ms or greater) and display the quantity as one graph over time.

#### System Current Calls

Similar to 'Current Calls' under 'Reporting' This report shows all current active calls system wide for a system that has a Multi-Tenant Licence. Each active call has data concerning the source, direction, destination, duration, source channel, destination channel as well as the ability to hang up the call.

#### System Logs

This allows the administrator(s) to view real-time call and provisioning logs as well as all API requests and SMTP activity on the SolSwitch. This information is refreshed every 5 seconds. Click the Clear button to clear the buffer, click the Free Scroll button to prevent the screen from scrolling as activity updates and click the Pause button to stop new activity from being displayed. You can also search for historical data on a specific date instead of viewing it live.

The VoIP log gives you access to the system's log file in order to troubleshoot specific calls and find their origin, path, route group, etc. To use this tool, follow these directions:

- Enter whatever you would like to search for in the Filter field. For example, if you want to troubleshoot a call to a specific number, enter part of or the whole number. Or if you would like to look at a call to a specific device, enter the SIP username in the search field. You can also search using the Call ID from the Call Detail Records. The results outputted will reflect any reference to your search in the VoIP log.
- 2. By looking at the Date/Time, find the corresponding call that you are troubleshooting.
- 3. See the call in its entirety by clicking on the 'Thread'. This will change your search results to show anything within that particular Thread giving you full details of the entire call in question.



The Provisioning log shows all of the MAC addresses that are requesting files from the SolSwitch and the name of the file they are looking for.

The SMTP log shows all SMTP relays including where the email came from, and which address it was sent to. This report can be useful when troubleshooting email issues.

The API log shows all of the API requests that have been sent to the SolSwitch as well as the IP address and API key.

#### System Status

This section displays all service status for every system as part of the SolSwitch deployment. Shows current calls in progress, total processed calls and current uptime.

#### Trunk Graph

Used to graph incoming and outgoing calls on a specific trunk. Select a trunk and time range to generate usage graphs. Right-click the graph to zoom out or click and drag to zoom in.

#### Trunk Missed Calls

Select a Time/Date, Customer, Trunk or search by DID to view all calls rejected due to customer or trunk congestion.

#### Trunk Monitoring

This page allows the user to set up scheduled reports to be emailed automatically, in addition to allowing trunk alerts to be sent out based on trunk capacity usage.

Scheduled Reporting, when enabled, allows a frequency of monthly or weekly, on a specific hour, which will report from that day to the previous month/week (based on the frequency). Scheduled reporting will report on all trunks.

Alerting, when enabled, allows alerts to be sent based on how much capacity is being used. In the example below, if trunk capacity is equalled to or greater than 90% it will send an alert to the alerting email. Alerting will email based on what is enabled, per customer per trunk. Different alerts will be sent based on what is enabled. Whether a call fails how many calls failed in the last hours, for which trunk and/or customer, or if calls had got over the threshold.



#### Scheduled Reporting

| ~ Time<br>00:00 |       |
|-----------------|-------|
|                 | 00:00 |

#### Alerting

| TRUNK     | CAPACITY | FREQUENCY |  |
|-----------|----------|-----------|--|
| Devel 2.0 | 90       | 15        |  |
| SBC1      | 90       | 15        |  |
| SBC2      | 90       | 15        |  |
| SBC3      | 90       | 15        |  |
| SBC4      | 90       | 15        |  |
| SBC5      | 90       | 15        |  |

| ↑ CUSTOMER        |  |
|-------------------|--|
| Alex Levesque     |  |
| Denver Dewar      |  |
| Derrick Chartrand |  |
| Hemil Modi        |  |
| Josey Frescura    |  |

#### Verify CIDs

This page will indicate any fields with improperly formatted Caller ID numbers.

#### Voicemail Transcripts

This page allows you to search for a timeframe and view all Voicemail transcripts on a specific customer or system-wide. It will show the voicemail name, its extension, how much time was used measured in 15-second increments and the result.



## Network Management

**DHCP Server Configuration:** Enable this option to enable the SolSwitches built-in DHCP server on a specific interface. This should be used only when there are no other DHCP servers on the same network.

**Nat Settings:** You must complete this section if your SolSwitch is behind NAT and you intend to use a SIP device outside of the network. Specify the external IP address that should be used for SIP and voice traffic. The Internal Network section specifies all subnets that are internal to the SolSwitch. For example, if your internal network is 192.168.0.0 to .255 then you would specify 192.168.0.0 as Internal Network IP and 255.255.255.0 as the Subnet Mask.

**Network Interfaces:** This section is used to specify IP information for each of the SolSwitch's network interfaces as well as DNS information. You may specify whether interfaces are static or automatic (DHCP). Secondary (alias) IP addresses on a single interface are supported.

| IP Address | Subnet Mask |
|------------|-------------|
|            |             |
|            |             |
| omatic     |             |
| .0         |             |
| teway:     |             |
|            | 0           |

Network Interface Information

**Network Tools:** This provides basic network commands to assist with troubleshooting. Select one of the following commands, Ping, Traceroute or Arp then click on 'Execute'.

 Ping: This will ping the destination IP. Broadcast (-b) allows a ping to a broadcast address. Timeout (-w) specify a timeout, in seconds, before ping exits regardless of how many packets have been sent or received (default 5). Interval (-i) wait interval in seconds between sending each packet (default 1, value must be at least 0.2).



- Traceroute: This will show wall hops along the route to the IP. If Disregard hostnames (-n) is selected, there will be no resolution trying to map the IP addresses to host names when displaying them.
- Arp: Address Resolution Protocol will show all MAC addresses and their associated IP addresses on all SolSwitch interfaces.
- **Static IP routes**: If you have multiple subnets or gateways on your network you may need to specify static routing. Use this section to specify static routes.

## Reboot / Shutdown

This option also allows you to remotely restart or shutdown the SolSwitch. The Graceful Shutdown button will wait until all calls are completed before shutting down.

## **Recording Backup**

This section is used to archive call recordings to a separate server. To use this feature, you must have access to a separate FTP server. Enter the FTP server, username, password and path to match your FTP account information. The Day Limit field specifies how many days to keep recordings on the SolSwitch before archiving. After a recording has been archived, it is still accessible through the SolSwitch interface as long as it has not been removed from the archiving server.

## **SMS** Providers

Here you can add an SMS provider and that will allow it to be selected on any DID added to DID Management.

- Provider Name: Used for identification purposes, this is what will show in DID management.
- Provider Type: Select from a list of available SMS providers.
- URL: Provider endpoint URL for sending outbound SMS
- Backup URL: Backup ULR to use if the primary fails.
- Account/Username: Account username or account number for authentication (if required).
- Key: Key or password for authentication (if required).

## **SNMP** Configuration

The SolSwitch allows the setup of an SNMP community; this is used for an external SNMP service to poll the SolSwitch.



## System Settings

#### General:

- Web Address: If your system is behind a router, specify the external IP address or hostname used to access the web interface.
- **Provisioning Server:** Similar to the Web Address, this field defines the external IP address or hostname used to provision devices. In most cases, the Provisioning Server address is the same as the Web Address appended with /prov.
- Main Email: From address to use when sending out alerts.
- Alert Notify Email: Email address to send system alerts to.
- **Timezone:** Specify the correct time zone for the location of the SolSwitch.
- **Default Recording Language:** The default language used for system recordings. This can be overridden on individual customers or on some system features, such as Queues and IVRs.
- Default NTP Server: Where the SolSwitch should get its time.
- **Allow TCP SIP Traffic:** Allow incoming TCP SIP to the server. When set to no, this traffic will be dropped by the firewall.
- Cross Customer Routing: When placing a call to a DID belonging to a different customer on the same SolSwitch, determine how to route the call; Direct route Route internally to the DID, staying local to the system (treated as one continuous call); Route Group Route the call externally through the normal group process, and let the upstream route direct a new call back (treated as two distinct calls).

**SIP Servers**: If the SolSwitch can be accessed from multiple hostnames or IP addresses, you would specify them here.

**SMTP Servers**: The SolSwitch sends out emails for alarm notifications, voicemail to email and other features. Specify the SMTP Server to use to send email. Enter the username and password for the SMTP server if the server requires authentication.

**SolSwitch Connect Servers:** Here a SolSwitch Connect Server name, host address auth name, auth key and top-level group are added. You can view the maximum number of users allowed on the system. If you need more users we will add them for you.

**Voicemail to Email:** This section allows control over how voicemail email messages are generated. Attach Message specifies whether or not the audio file should be attached to the email. The email body can be configured using the variables provided. Below is an explanation of what each voicemail variable represents:



\${VM\_NAME} – Mailbox owners name

\${VM\_DUR} – Length of message

\${VM\_MSGNUM} – Message number

\${VM\_MAILBOX} – Mailbox the message is in

\${VM\_CIDNUM} – Caller ID number

\${VM\_CIDNAME} – Caller name

\${VM\_CALLERID} - Caller ID Info ex: "John Smith" <5551234466>

\${VM\_DATE} - Date the message was left

\${VM\_TIME} – Time the message was left

#### Voicemail to Email

| Attach Message Yes Format Wav49  | ✓ Max Logins<br>3   |
|--|---|
| Email Address<br>noreply@sunwire.ca  | From Name<br>SolSwitch VM   |
| Email Subject<br>New message from \${VM_CALLERID}  |   |
| Email Body<br>You have a new message from \${VM_CALLERID} in the \${VM_NAME} mailbox.<br>Duration: \${VM_DUR}<br>Left on \${VM_DATE} at \${VM_TIME}. | Variables:<br>\${VM_NAME} - Mailbox owners name<br>\${VM_DUR} - Length of message<br>\${VM_MSUNN} - Message number<br>\${VM_CIDNUM} - Caller ID number<br>\${VM_CIDNUM} - Caller ID name<br>\${VM_CIDNAME} - Caller ID Info - Ex: "John Smith" <5551234466><br>\${VM_DATE} - Date the message was left<br>\${VM_TIME} - Time the message was left |
|  | Save All  |

## System Updates

Here you can check if a system update is available for your system. You will need to have our Software Assurance service to install an update without incurring a fee. If you have any questions regarding this don't hesitate to contact us.

## Toll Billing

#### Toll Management

- **Toll Destinations:** If you have already specified toll destinations, click the Export to CSV button to view or edit the data. If this is your first time using this feature, a CSV file must be created and uploaded. For this, you may use any spreadsheet application. The CSV must be formatted as follows:



|   | А                             | В       | С      | D      | E         |
|---|-------------------------------|---------|--------|--------|-----------|
| 1 | Area                          | Prefix  | WSCost | Retail | Wholesale |
| 2 | Afghanistan - Areeba Mobile   | 0119377 | 0.3045 | 0.3959 | 0.307545  |
| 3 | Afghanistan - At Mobile       | 0119375 | 0.3141 | 0.4083 | 0.317241  |
| 4 | Afghanistan - AWCC Mobile     | 0119370 | 0.3308 | 0.43   | 0.334108  |
| 5 | Afghanistan - Etisalat Mobile | 0119378 | 0.2943 | 0.3826 | 0.297243  |

The first row must be a header row. The first column specifies the Area. The second column specifies the area's calling Prefix. The third column is for informational purposes only but is still required. This column defines your cost for the area. All remaining columns must match the rate lists specified in Toll Rate Lists.

- **Toll Rerun:** This re-processes toll Billing for the specified time range. All tolls will be reprocessed the next time toll billing runs at 1 AM the next day, from the chosen date until the current date. The selected date range must be 2 months or less.
- **Toll Sync:** This will sync this SolSwitches toll billing with another SolSwitch using a Toll Billing Info API key. The SolSwitch will automatically sync itself every hour except for 1 AM when toll billing is processed. Press the Sync Now button to sync immediately.

#### Toll Minute Groups

This section is used to specify areas that may be included in a plan at a special rate. In other words, the Toll Minute Groups will override the previously uploaded Rates List when applicable. To create a minute group, simply choose a name and add all prefixes on individual lines.



| New Minute Group        | Ø |               |              | $\times$ |
|-------------------------|---|---------------|--------------|----------|
|                         |   |               |              |          |
| Name<br>Sudbury         |   |               |              |          |
| Prefixes (One per line) |   |               |              | ^        |
| 1249203<br>1249239      |   |               |              |          |
| 1249266                 |   |               |              |          |
| 1249350                 |   |               |              |          |
| 1249360<br>1249377      |   |               |              |          |
| 1249431                 |   |               |              |          |
| 1249651<br>1249804      |   |               |              |          |
| 1249805                 |   |               |              |          |
| 1249806                 |   |               |              |          |
| 1249864<br>1249868      |   |               |              |          |
| 1249878                 |   |               | <b>Q</b>     | -        |
| 12/0870                 |   |               |              | 11       |
|                         |   |               |              |          |
|                         | ~ | Save Settings | $\times$ Clo | se       |

#### Toll Plans

Toll plans are used to create plans that will be assigned to customers. Each plan requires a name and a rate list. All minute groups will be listed here under the Minute Groups section. These fields are used to specify the number of minutes allowed in a given month to that area without incurring the associated rate list costs. If 1,000,000 or more minutes are specified, the system will treat it as unlimited calling. The following options are also available on this page:

**Billing Increment**: The increments, in seconds that will be used to calculate billing. The first number is the minimum billing time, and the second is the increments to be used after the minimum. For example, with 30/6, a 10-second call will be billed as 30 seconds, and a 31-second call will be billed as 36 seconds.

**Unlimited Local Calls**: Local calls will be determined using the extension Caller ID and rate centers set up on the system. If the external number is not in the same rate center, it will be considered a long-distance call.

#### Toll Rate Lists

Specify the names of each rate list that you will be offering customers. For example, retail or wholesale.

#### Toll Reporting

Use this section to pull reports regarding call accounting. Reports can be downloaded in CSV, PDF or XLS format. Types of reports are as follows:



- Summary by Customer: Display selected customer(s) and total monthly charge
- Detail by Customer: Display selected customer(s) and all individual calls for the month
- Summary by Extension: Display a summary of selected customer(s) and extensions by month
- Detail by Extension: A report for individual or all extensions for selected customer(s)
- Detail by Extension: A report for individual or all extensions for current customer

## **Trunks and Routing**

This section is used to configure trunks as well as inbound and outbound routing.

#### DID Management

Use this section to add or remove DIDs on the SolSwitch. DIDs can be added as a single DID or a range. Rate Center, Description and Notes fields are for informational purposes only. The Customer field specifies the customer to assign the DID to. This field will only be displayed if the Multi-Tenant License was purchased.

The Active field specifies whether or not the DID is active. You also can strip caller ID name and number from a DID as soon as it arrives in the system. This is flagged per DID – keep in mind that Caller ID information will still be available in trace files.

The Call Limit field allows you to specify how many incoming calls the DID can receive at once. Set this value to 0 for unlimited.

The Apply Toll field is to be Enabled if you would like calls to this number to be processed by toll billing as a toll-free number.

The SMS provider field allows you to select from SMS providers configured in Advanced Tools  $\rightarrow$  SMS Providers to allow the DID to send and receive SMS.

#### Rate Centres

Rate centres are used in route groups (discussed next). This section allows for outbound routing to be area-based rather than prefix-based. Rate centre information is automatically downloaded from LocalCallingGuide.com. To add a Rate Centre, click the Add Rate Centre button. Simply enter the Name of the Rate Centre along with any NPA and NXX (Area Code and Exchange) in that area.

To update Rate Centre data, simply click the Edit button on any existing Rate Centre and click the Update Rate Centre button. This will ensure that Rate Centre prefixes are kept up to date.



#### Route Groups

Route Group tables are used to handle call routing. To add a new Route Group, select the Add New Group button. If this will be the default route group, click the check box. A check mark will be displayed next to your default route in the Route Groups list. An option is available for an incoming call to skip to the next trunk in the Route Group if the current one is busy. To edit an existing route group name, click the Edit icon. To manage a route group, click the Manage icon.

Adding Routes: Each entry in the Route Group table is capable of supporting unlimited routes. To add a new route, click the 'Add New Route' button. The following must be specified:

- Type: Specify whether the SolSwitch should route based on prefix or rate centre.
- Route Prefix: Specify the prefix to match on the dialled number.
- Match Length: Specify the full length of the number to match. Use 0 to match any length.
- Strip Digits: Strip this many digits from the beginning of the dialled number before routing.
- Dial Prefix: Prefix the following string to the dialled number before routing.
- Route To: Specify whether to route to a trunk or another route group table.

Adding Failover Routes: If the primary route fails a failover route will be attempted. To add a failover route, click 'Edit' on an existing Route and then click the Add New Route button. Specify the following information and click the 'Save' button:

- Strip Digits: Strip this many digits from the beginning of the dialled number before routing.
- Dial Prefix: Prefix the following string to the dialled number before routing.
- Route To: Specify whether to route to a trunk or another route group table.

Editing Routes: When editing a route, two additional options become available:

- Require Pass Code: Specifies whether or not a user must enter a passcode before a call is completed to this route. Passcodes are specified per extension (see Extensions section for more details).
- Force Trunk Caller ID: If enabled, this option allows caller ID name and number to be overwritten when a call is placed to this route.
- Managing Priorities: While editing a route with multiple entries, you will be given the option to adjust priorities. Priorities specify the order in which the routes are tried.



| 0 | Trunk | ~ | SBC1 | ~ | 1 |   |          |
|---|-------|---|------|---|---|---|----------|
|   |       |   | 0001 | Ť | 1 | ~ | $\times$ |
| 0 | Trunk | ~ | SBC2 | ~ | 2 | ~ | $\times$ |
| 0 | Trunk | ~ | SBC3 | ~ | 3 | ~ | $\times$ |
|   | 0     |   |      |   |   |   |          |

#### Trunk Management

Trunks are used to connect the SolSwitch to another SolSwitch, PBX or provider. The following options are available for every trunk:

- Trunk Name: Specify the name of the trunk
- Description: Information purposes only
- Call Limit: The trunk will be limited to this many calls. Enter 0 for unlimited.
- Record Trunk Calls: Enable this option to record all calls passing through this trunk.
- Allow Dynamic Conf: Allow trunk to use # codes to place conference calls.
- Apply toll to trunk: Enable calls passing through this trunk to be processed by toll billing.
- SIP Device: Specify the SIP account that will be used as a trunk.
- Inbound Calls
  - Use Local Routing: If this option is selected, all incoming calls will be compared to the local extension table for termination. This option is usually used when connecting the SolSwitch to another PBX. If there is no match, the system will proceed to 'Use DID table'.
  - Use DID Table: If this option is selected, all incoming calls will be compared to the local DID table for termination. If there is no match, the system will proceed to 'Use Route Group'
  - Use Route Group: If this option is selected, calls will be routed according to the route group specified. If there is no match, the call will be rejected as an invalid number.
  - o Digit Manipulation
    - Add Prefix: The string specified in this field will be prefixed to any incoming DID.



- Strip Digits: The system will strip this many digits from the beginning of any incoming DID.
- Outgoing Calls
  - Use E.164 Numbering: The international standard for phone number formatting. Enabling this will make sure that numbers follow the format.
  - Unlimited Outbound Calls: enable the trunk to have unlimited outbound calls as long as it is under the call limit (if it is set).
- Accessibility: When using SolSwitch with Load Balancing, this option specifies which SolSwitch has access to this trunk.

# **Security**

## **Portal Permissions**

In this section, you control permissions for each portal user type by selecting the corresponding checkboxes.

|                     | SYS ADMIN | BASIC | REPORTING |
|---------------------|-----------|-------|-----------|
| Expand All          | •         | •     | •         |
| Dashboard           |           |       |           |
| D Phone System      | 8         |       |           |
| C SolSwitch Connect | 2         |       |           |
| C Reporting         |           |       |           |
| C Provisioning      | 2         |       |           |
| C Add-on Tools      | 2         |       |           |
| C Advanced Tools    | 8         |       |           |
| C Security          |           |       |           |
| C Notes             | 2         |       |           |

## Portal User Types

Set your different types of users so that you can give them particular permissions.

## **Portal Users**

Add, edit or remove portal users as well as designate their portal user type. To add a new portal user, select the Add Portal User button. To edit or delete an existing portal user, click the corresponding icon to the far right of the user.



Enter the first and last name, email address (used to reset a password if needed), username and password. Passwords require a minimum of 8 characters, with a minimum of 1 upper-case letter and a minimum of 1 digit.

When a system has multi-tenant licensing enabled, this option controls which users have access to customers other than their own.

CDR Filter limits what the user can search for on the CDR report.

Users can also be given access to specific Outbound Fax numbers which they can send from

Menu type options are Categorized and Uncategorized. This defines whether or not users will see subcategories (sub-folders) when logging into the interface.

Remove CDR Recordings is an option for the user to have permission to delete CDR recordings.



| irst Name<br>Peter   |                   | Last Name<br>Parker                |                          |
|--|-------------------|------------------------------------|--------------------------|
| <sup>mail</sup><br>oparker@sunwire.ca  |                   |                                    |                          |
| lsername<br>oparker  |                   | Password                           |                          |
| CDR Settings   |                   |                                    | ~                        |
| User Can Delete Recordings<br>Yes  | ~                 |                                    |                          |
| lote: Users will only be able to see ca  | Il records for th | ne filters selected below. Not add | ding a filter or setting |
| lote: Users will only be able to see ca<br>Il filters to "None" will allow the user<br>CDR Filter #1 |                   |                                    | ding a filter or settin  |
| Il filters to "None" will allow the user   | to view ALL ca    |                                    | ding a filter or settin  |
| Il filters to "None" will allow the user   | to view ALL ca    | ll records.                        | ding a filter or setting |
| Il filters to "None" will allow the user   | to view ALL ca    | ll records.                        | ding a filter or setting |
| Il filters to "None" will allow the user<br>CDR Filter #1  | to view ALL ca    | ll records.                        | ding a filter or setting |



## Notes

The Notes section allows you to add several text notes with anything that should be documented. Click 'Add Note' then add a name for the note and the text of the note. Please know each note is limited to 2000 characters.

| Q Search                    |  | Add Note         |
|-----------------------------|--|------------------|
| ↓ NAME                      | NOTE   |                  |
| Customer Details            | Here you can add important customer information. | 1                |
| Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries |  | Show: 15 V < 1 > |

# Glossary

AGENT – End user using the telephone system.

ATA – Analog Telephone Adapter required when older technology phones are used.

**CALL LEG**– Call Leg is a discrete segment of a call connection in a VoIP network. A call leg is a logical connection between the router and either a telephony endpoint over a bearer channel or another endpoint using a session protocol.

CDR – Call Detail Record

**CID** – Caller Identification

**DID** – Direct Inbound Dial all telephone numbers including toll-free numbers.

**DTMF mode** – Dual Tone Multi-Frequency signalling used for telecommunication signalling over analog telephone lines.

IP PHONE - Internet Protocol phone

**IVR** – Interactive Voice Response Having a recording prompt the caller to choose options.

**MWI (Message Waiting Indicator)** – Flashing red light on phones that indicates someone left a voice message.



NANP – North American Numbering Plan

**NAT** – Network Address Translation is the translation of an Internet Protocol address (IP address) used within one network to a different IP address known within another network.

**NPA** – Numbering Plan Area Code The first three digits of a 10-digit North American Numbering Plan (NANP) number, commonly called the Area Code.

**NPX** – Central Office Code The first three digits following the Area Code in a 10-digit NANP number, commonly called the telephone *exchange* or *prefix* 

- **OCN** Operating Company Number
- PARK Public hold
- **PBX** Private Branch Exchange
- **PoE** Power over Ethernet
- SIP Session Initiation Protocol
- SL Service Level used for reporting inbound call-to-answer ratios.
- **TRUNK** A trunk is a communication line between two switching systems.
- **TCP** Transmission Control Protocol.
- **UDP** User Datagram Protocol
- VoIP Voice over Internet Protocol

WEIGHTING – Call Priority